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Summary of
the Activity
Autonom in 2020

2020 short overview
Autonom is an integrated provider of modern mobility solutions, adapted to the needs of its
clients. The company has the most extensive mobility network in Romania and is in the top 5
players, by turnover, in the main sectors of activity: Operating Lease and Car Rental.

The figures represent the consolidated financial results:

Consolidated EBITDA: RON 144,053,282
Consolidated profit: RON 7,206,972
Consolidated net financial debt: RON 425,764,500
Consolidated revenue: RON 327,028,313
Consolidated debt sustainability indicators (31 December 2020):

Net financial debt / EBITDA of 2.96
Interest Coverage Ratio of 7.64

Operating Lease
Operating lease is a tool for outsourcing car fleets, in order to optimize operational costs,
suitable both for companies with large fleet of vehicles and for small entrepreneurial companies that operate only a few vehicles.

Total Consolidated Operating Revenue:

RON 171.344.898

Total Number of Cars: 6,718
Total Number of Clients: 1,519

Modern mobility solutions
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2020 short overview
Rent-A-Car
Diversified range of short-term car rental services (between one day and 12 months). Over
85% of the turnover of this division is generated by legal entities.

Total Consolidated Rent-A-Car Revenue: RON 46,843,245
Occupancy: 69%
Number of cars on December 31st 2020: 1,829
Number of agencies: 43 agencies in 30 cities

Used Car Sales
Vehicles in our Rent-a-car and Operating Lease parks that have reached the end of the
depreciation period are available for purchase to both individuals and legal entities.

Total Consolidated Revenue from Used Car Sale: RON 79,387,342
Total used cars sold in 2020: 2,378
Percentage of cars sold to retail (individuals): 53%
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The evolution of Autonom Group
Our consolidated results from 2020, as well as those from previous years, support the company's
strategy for sustainable development

Consolidated revenue (RON)

Consolidated profit (RON)

2016

116,339,919

2016

11,963,591

2017

143,618,232

2017

14,426,419

2018

251,363,792

2018

16,417,142

2019

338,713,583

2019

17,566,180

2020

327,028,313

2020

7,206,972

Operating Lease Fleet

Rent-A-Car Fleet

2016

1856

2016

1404

2017

2503

2017

1551

2018

6702

2018

1663

2019

7118

2019

2034

2020

6718

2020

1829

Development:
186 new clients for the operating lease division;
Further investments in fleet development- 1.822 cars purchased in 2020;
IDR - Long-Term Issuer Default Rating „B+” granted by the Fitch rating agency in June 2020;
Increase of Net Promoter Score from 74% to 82%.

Sustainability:
Project Help: 100 cars offered free of charge during the state of emergency, to assist NGOs,
government structures or volunteers in their mission to stop the spread of COVID-19 or to
support those affected by the pandemic;
Autonom Foundation: 70 projects carried out by Autonom volunteers to support the
Romanian educational system.
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Significant events in 2020
The impact of the pandemic and the measures taken for business
continuity:
1. Autonom's main line of business, represented by the provision of operating lease services to
companies, was moderately affected by the pandemic. Although the size of the operating lease
fleet decreased slightly, the division's revenues increased by 7.5%. Globally, it was estimated an
increase close to 0 for this type of service. Contributions to this result were:
Flexibility and support provided to clients to overcome difficult and uncertain periods;
The benefits offered by this type of service, highly valued especially in times of crisis, namely:
flexibility, optimized costs, increased financing capacity.
2. The short-term car rental division has been affected by the reduction of the number of
tourists as well as business trips. The impact on the turnover of this division was -28.9%. To
mitigate the effects of the pandemic on this line of business, the group has cancelled or
postponed the acquisitions scheduled for this division.
3. In the context of a drastic decrease in the sales of new cars at national and global level, the
company focused on managing as efficiently as possible the process of selling cars from the
stock of used cars. Thus, starting with 06.03.2020, Autonom began an accelerated program for
the sale of cars available in the company’s stock. The results were impressive: Autonom
recorded an increase of 72.4% of the revenues generated by this division compared to the
previous year.
4. At the team level, the following measures were implemented for reorienting and training
employees to deal with the new context:
Suspension of employment for both current and probationary periods;
Reduction of external expenses with personal development (cancellation of trainings, etc.) and
reduction of non-essential expenditures, with a focus on online training and internal resources.
5. Other implemented measures to optimize costs:
Reduction of fuel costs costs (travel reduction) up to 90%; renegotiation of tariffs and the
discount grid;
Implementation of measures to reduce fixing costs.
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Letter from
the founders

Letter
From the founders
Dear Partners,
Today we are sharing with you the annual report presenting the activity of Autonom Services in
2020 - a year marked by an unprecedented health crisis, which has brought multiple challenges
to the markets and sectors in which we operate. More than a year after the onset of the
pandemic, we believe that we have responded correctly to these challenges. The experience of
15 years of activity, as well as our management based on values and autonomy, guided us in all
the decisions we made during this period.
A year ago, on the occasion of the publication of the annual report for 2019, we expressed our
confidence in our team, business model, as well as in our experience of operating and even
growing the business in crisis situations.
2020 has been an extremely difficult year for all companies, especially for those operating in
sectors that rely on human interaction. We also had several successive shocks, manifested
extremely quickly: travel restrictions collapsed the car rental market ‘from the airport’, a
significant part of our customers had temporary liquidity problems, health restrictions affected
our operations and supply chains, and extreme uncertainty forced us to work with multiple
scenarios and in multiple iterations.
At the same time, 2020 confirmed to us that Autonom's business model is agile and
sustainable, built to withstand shocks. We believe that the key elements that helped us get out
of this crisis stronger and better prepared for the future were the following:
Robust risk policy, ‘financial fortress’ type, with high liquidity and solvency, consistently
practiced from the first years;
Providing modern mobility solutions, vertically integrated, with mostly recurring revenues;
High diversity of clients, companies, and individuals alike;
Organizing Autonom as an autonomous and involved ‘team of teams’, which allowed us to be
agile and mobilize very quickly.
Autonom closed the year 2020 with a consolidated turnover of RON 327 million and a net profit
of RON 7.2 million. Despite the negative impact of the pandemic, we managed to
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recover the lost income from the rent-a-car division by increasing the turnover within the
operating lease service. Therefore, we ended 2020 with RON 171.3 million lei revenues
generated from operating lease and additional services (+7.5%), RON 46.8 million lei revenues
from car rental (-28.9%) and RON 79.4 million lei revenues from vehicle sales (+72.4%).
10% increasing operating revenue to RON 297,575,485
Extremely prudent financial management - liquidities of RON 74,613,162
29% decrease in the revenue of the Rent-A-Car division to RON 46.8 mil
Decreased consolidated profit of RON 7.2 mil (-59% vs 2019)
In the annual report published in May last year, we presented our expectations for 2020, for
each line of business. The proximity of the final results to the estimates made at the beginning
of the pandemic, demonstrates the ability of the management team to quickly understand the
context and changes, in order to realistically adapt the business to new conditions and manage
assets to their full potential.
Operating Lease Estimates: short-term moderate impact on cash flow but, in general, an
increase in this segment this year, of over 10% | The actual evolution: Although the size of the
operating lease fleet decreased slightly, the division's revenues increased by 7.5%. For a full
picture, public analyses of the global operating lease market indicated near-zero growth in 2020.
Although the COVID-19 pandemic affected a significant number of businesses, we managed to
attract 186 new clients and end 2020 with a total fleet of 6,718 vehicles.
Rent a Car Estimates: a 35% decrease in tourism-related rentals in H1 compared to the budget
and by 25-30% for the whole year | The actual evolution: The actual decrease in the volume of
short-term rentals was 29%, in line with our expectations and below the decreases reported by
other similar companies internationally, ranging between 40-50%.
The biggest negative impact was registered between March and May 2020, in the context of
severe traffic restrictions imposed throughout Romania. At the beginning of June, the activity
started increasing, and, from August until the end of the year, the average rental rate was very
high, over 80%. The annual average was 69%, down 14% from the 2019 average - a good result,
given the impact on the local and international tourism industry. To adapt to the new context,
the fleet was resized in line with the market changes. The reduction of the fleet led to a decrease
in revenues on this line of business, but significantly limited the losses that could have occurred.
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A promising pillar of the car rental division was the replacement car segment for RCA insurance,
which we focused more on and which consequently increased, by 31%, in 2020 (growth is
measured given the number of cars offered for replacement).
AutoRulate business line of Autonom sold 2,378 used cars from our car rental or operating
lease fleets last year. It is a record result, with an increase by 72% compared to the previous
year. This growth, together with the opening of a new location dedicated to the retail market in
Q2 2020, give us confidence in our development potential in this segment.
We are proud that, given a year full of challenges, the client satisfaction indicator continued to
increase and the NPS (Net Promoter Score) reached 82%, in 2020, compared to 74%, which was
registered in 2019, in an industry where the average falls below 30%, according to statistics
provided by Statista.com. We want to thank all our teams for being able to adapt so well to the
new reality and for continuing to support our clients. We communicated proactively with all
clients and provided a significant portion of them with concrete solutions to increase their
liquidity and reduce their costs. We are confident that the relationships built during the crisis will
remain strong in the years to come.
This year is a special one for us because it marks 15 years since the establishment of Autonom
and 30 years of entrepreneurship in our family. In 1991, our parents made their first steps in the
business environment, in Piatra Neamţ, when they opened an antique shop where we spent so
much time reading and investing in our development. Later on, they opened a network of car
parts stores and car services. Today, we are one of the most important employers, and the
family's local businesses are still among the most valued in the community. They became part
of the Autonom Group four years ago, and we want to follow our parent-business model –
namely, on the 30th anniversary of our company's activity, for Autonom to remain a family
business.
We are pleased to announce that, in March 2021, we successfully completed the merger by
absorption process, following which BT Operational Leasing was fully integrated into Autonom
Services. Through this merger, we took an important step in the development of the operating
lease division of the Autonom Group, by increasing the client portfolio and the assets held, as
well as by working closely with the strongest local financial group. Integration also accelerated
our development, by achieving important financial and operational synergies. Even though the
merger is over, our partnership with Banca Transilvania continues to thrive.
As many of you remember, in June 2020, we received a ‘B +’ rating from Fitch - Long-Term
Issuer Default Rating. The application for this assessment was prepared during the global onset
of the COVID-19 pandemic, when the future of mobility services was under a big question mark.
Fitch appreciated our resilience and agility under to the new reality brought by the pandemic.
autonom.ro
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Although ‘B +’ is a speculative rating, it is very good for the industries in which we operate. We
believe that this is an important development, especially for investors who have participated in
the private placement for Autonom corporate bonds and must be analyzed in the context of the
period and the sector in which Autonom operates. Moreover, we are pleased to report that we
have used the findings of the Fitch team to guide us in improving the resilience of our business,
financially.
Community involvement has remained a priority for us in this year of marked by a health crisis.
Autonom volunteers continued to support education in Romania and to be with children to help
them stay connected to school by developing 70 projects, carried out through the Autonom
Foundation. In addition, as part of the HELP project, launched at the beginning of the pandemic,
we provided approximately 100 cars during the state of emergency to assist NGOs,
government, or voluntary structures in their mission to stop the spread of COVID-19 or support
those affected by the occurred situation. With a dedicated team and through our colleagues
from all over the country, we managed to support 66 NGOs and organizations in Romania,
which had a significant impact and showed that ‘together, we can’.
Going ‘in depth, we want to thank again the entire Autonom team for their exceptional
performance in 2020. We all had so much to learn from this challenging experience! It was a
year in which we took full advantage of the situation to accelerate the learning and
development of the team - we never had so many hours of training, so many books read, so
many new situations to learn from. Developing people remains the investment with the
greatest satisfaction for us and the main factor for the sustainability of our business. Being able
to provide the framework in which people can constantly exceed their limits, in the context of
accelerated business growth, is one of the biggest challenges. This is perhaps our most personal
success in these 15 years of entrepreneurship. Financial results are just a natural consequence
of a business done ‘properly’.
Therefore, even in the context of the dynamic situation related to the pandemic development,
we believe that we are at the beginning of a new growth cycle for our companies, as it was in
2009. Of course, the external and internal factors could argue against. However, one of the few
certainties we have is that our business model, evolving and inclusive, can adapt whenever
necessary. We will accelerate investment in the coming years to further develop and prepare
the group for the economy of the future.
Thus, we estimate that 2021 will be a very active year for us, in which we will have a 2-digit
growth rate of income and a significantly better profitability than in 2020, maybe even better
than in 2019. We aim to strengthen our position in the markets in which we operate and test
new products and markets. We will continue to evaluate all opportunities for sustainable
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growth, both organically and through acquisitions of companies compatible with our model. We
will strive to be even more present in the Romanian entrepreneurial community and to build
together a more ethical and efficient business environment.
Marius Ștefan
Dan Ștefan
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About
Autonom
and the company strategy

About Autonom
Autonom Group is the most important independent player with Romanian capital on the car
operating lease and rent-a-car markets of Romania.

Integrated mobility solution provider, for legal and individual entities;
National network comprising of 43 agencies in 30 cities, in Romania, a
differentiated business model as compared to competitors;
Vehicle fleet on December 31st, 2020: 8,547 vehicles (6,718 in operating lease
regimen, 1,829 in rent-a-car regime);
15 years of experience.

From start-up to a prominent national player in the mobility services market
Autonom is a company with 100% Romanian capital, established in 2006, in Piatra Neamţ;
Autonom Group is a Top 5 player, by turnover, in the main sectors of activity: operating lease
and car rental;
In 2018, Autonom purchased BTOL, a company founded in 2001, to consolidate its clients
portfolio, achieve economies of scale, as well as cost optimizations. The company thus
increased its market share and concluded a distribution agreement with Banca Transilvania,
for 5 years. On January 1st, 2021, BTOL was absorbed by Autonom;
Autonom International is the majority shareholder of Autonom Services, with a 98% stake in
the share capital. The shareholders of Autonom International are Marius Ștefan and Dan
Ștefan, holding equal shares;
In 2018, Autonom became the first company in Romania to be included in the EBRD Blue Ribbon
Program, which includes 30 companies out of the 20 countries where the EBRD is present;
At the first edition of ‘Made in Romania’, organized by the Bucharest Stock Exchange,
Autonom was selected in the league of the 15 important companies for the Romanian
economy growth;
As of December 31st, 2020, the group had 313 employees: 306 employees of Autonom
Services and 7 employees of BTOL;
It is the only local company that received the title of Best Employer, 5 years in a row
(2014-2018), according to the global study organized by AON Hewit;
Autonom is one of the 123 organizations recognized by WorldBlu worldwide, which
promotes democratic principles and encourages freedom in the workplace.
autonom.ro
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Autonom evolution and strategy
2006

Autonom is founded in Piatra Neamţ. At that time, the car park had only 3 Dacia
Logan cars. The company opens offices in Bacău, Bucharest, Iași, Suceava,
Constanţa and Galaţi.

2007

Autonom opens agencies in new cities: Brașov, Cluj, Sibiu, Târgu Mureș, Timișoara.

2008

The financial crisis of 2008-2009 was a turning point in the history of the
Company and its repositioning. Autonom starts to offer the operating lease
service to companies (medium- and long-term rentals).

2010
2018

The territorial expansion continues and Autonom opens offices in the largest cities
in Romania, building a unique mobility network at national level. In 2014, the
international expansion also began, with the opening of the first office in in
Budapest, Hungary.
Also, that year, Autonom Group began to analyze the acquisition of companies
specialized in segments similar or related to the main business.

2018

Autonom Group takes over BT Operational Leasing, the operating lease division
within Banca Transilvania.

2019

The company changes its visual identity and issues the first bond issuance,
listed on the Bucharest Stock Exchange.

2021

In March 2021, Autonom announced the completion of the absorption merger
process following which BTOL was fully integrated into Autonom Services S.A.

autonom.ro
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During its 15 years of activity, Autonom Group has expanded its services portfolio and currently
offers to its clients, both legal and individual entities, various transport solutions, adapted to
their needs.
The same diversification strategy is applied to the client portfolio. None of the business lines
has developed dependency on a single client or a group of clients. This diversification of
services, as well as clients has helped the company over time, especially in 2020. We hereby
enclose, below, the share of revenues for the first 3 clients of Autonom rent-a-car lines and
operating lease, for 2020.

Rent-a-Car Autonom Services S.A.
Value (RON)

% din T/O
division

% of
total T/O

Client 1

9,674,358

15%

4%

Client 2

6,500,832

10%

3%

Client 3

2,605,128

4%

4%

% din T/O
Valoare (lei)
division

% of
total T/O

(turnover in 2020 of RON 46,843,245)

Leasing Operaţional Autonom Services S.A.
(turnover in 2020 of RON 171,344,898)
Client 1

5,425,121

3%

2%

Client 2

4,406,142

3%

2%

Client 3

4,046,620

2%

2%
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Autonom today
In 2021, Autonom celebrated 15 years of existence, an important milestone for a 100%
Romanian entrepreneurial company. In 2006, when it started its activity, in Piatra-Neamţ, the
Company was initially focused on the rent-a-car sector (short-term car rental), offering services
mainly to individuals. The company expanded rapidly, initially around Moldova region (2006)
and later in most major cities in the country (2007 - 2008), becoming the first and only company
with extensive coverage at the national level.

43 agencies in over 30 cities and 3 countries

15 years of activity

313 employees and over 8.500 cars
11.878 books read by our colleagues in the period 2015-2020
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Main business segments
Operating Lease:
The main category of services provided by the Group with a contractual duration between
12 and 57 months;
Operating Lease is an outsourcing product for optimization of operational expenses, a
full-service contract being difficult to reverse because customers develop high dependency;
Careful commercial risk management policy through the Finance and Risk Department;
High granularity of clients, focus on clients in the SME category (average fleet / customer ~ 5
vehicles);
The operating lease activity represents 52% of the total revenues of Autonom Services S.A.

Fixed monthly payment
components

Vehicle Depreciation
Financing Expenses
Car Replacement
and Road Assistance

Insurance
Tires
Door to Door Services
Maintenance and Repairs

Taxes and Fees
Monitoring and Telematics
Other Administrative Expenses

Client benefits
Reduction of operating expenses

Balance optimization

High flexibility and focus on core business

Simplified internal processes

Predictability of car fleet spending

Rent-A-Car:
Diversified range of short-term car rental services (between one day and 12 months). Over 85%
of the turnover of this line of business was generated in 2020 by legal entities. The car rental
activity represented 14% of the total revenues of Autonom Services S.A. in 2020.
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Used car sales
The expanded range of cars in the car rental and operational leasing parks: motor vehicles and
commercial vehicles for individuals and companies. The used car sales activity represents 24%
of the total revenues of Autonom Services S.A. in 2020.

Distribution channels corresponding to operating lease, rent-a-car and
used car sales business lines:
The main means of attracting clients is through the direct sales force of the Company. In
addition, the Company also uses the following distribution channels:
Internet portals built for market education and lead generation, among which we mention:
www.leasingoperational.ro,
www.leasingoperational.com,
www.autonom.ro,
www.autonom.com, www.autoinlocuire.ro sau www.rentavan.ro. In addition, the Company
has over 200 relevant Internet domains, in various stages of development;
Partnerships with financial-banking institutions (for example Banca Transilvania), car
importers and dealers, equipment importers / distributors, financing and insurance brokers.
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The company positioning
Autonom is the integrated provider of mobility solutions, available at national level, to
which companies can fully or partially outsource their mobility services.
The company has a unique and valuable position, providing various mobility solutions to SMEs
and entrepreneurial companies in Romania, with fleets of up to 100 passenger or commercial
vehicles, through its network of 43 agencies present in 30 cities in Romania.

Markets where Autonom is active in Romania
Operating lease and rent-a-car markets are dominated by multinationals. Autonom Services
Group is the most important independent operator on the operating lease and rent-a-car
rmarkets in Romania.

Operating Lease Market in Romania
According to ASLO, the number of vehicles used through operating lease increased at a fast
pace, from 9,600 in December 2007, to over 65,000 in December 2017.
The share of vehicles used through operating lease in the total registrations of new vehicles
was between 10% and 20% after 2017.
Like mature markets, the main operators are groups with global operations (Arval, ALD
Automotive, LeasePlan), regional and local banking groups (Unicredit, Erste-BCR), as well as
companies of car manufacturers (Porsche, Renault).

Rent-A-Car Market in Romania
The market for rent-a-car services is also dominated by the multinational groups present in
the mature markets of Europe and the United States (Avis, Europcar, Sixt, Hertz, Enterprise).
The group estimates that, under normal conditions (without a health crisis like the one
caused by COVID-19), the corporate segment, with a major contribution of the car
replacement service, has a share comparable to retail on the rent-a-car market.
Operators of multinational licensing active in the rent-a-car industry focused primarily on
airport locations, while the Group developed a nationwide network of agencies in 31 cities,
which allowed it to access a wide-range of clients. This aspect protected the business in the
context of the global pandemic when air traffic in Romania was significantly restricted.
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For 2019, the Company estimated that the car rental market in Romania was approximately
11,000 units, and the value of this market could be around 80 million euros. The company
estimates that, in 2019, it had a market share between 15% and 20%.
In the context of the global pandemic, there is no relevant data on the size of the rent-a-car
market in Romania, in 2020. However, despite the slight decrease of its fleet, Autonom
maintained its market share in Romania. In 2020, most short-term car rental companies,
focused on serving individual clients and highly dependent on tourism and the travel of the
target audience, have felt the effects of the crisis caused by the spread of the coronavirus.
Car rentals to individuals represent a small share of the total revenue of Autonom and,
therefore, the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the Company was not as strong as on
the other players in the market.

Used cars market
The used cars market is extremely fragmented - there are sales made through dedicated
sites, specialized suppliers, car dealers, leasing, and rent-a-car companies, as well as
individually. The used cars import activity in Romania is quite significant. For this reason, it is
difficult to estimate the market share held by Autonom.
According to ACAROM, in 2020, the number of used cars registered in Romania was 405,045
units, which comprises a decrease of 9% compared to 2019.

Company employees
As of 31.12.2020, the Autonom team consisted of an effective number of 313 employees (306
Autonom Services employees and 7 BTOL employees). Among Autonom employees, 100% are
people with higher education. The company pays great attention to the education of its
employees. In this sense, the company provides a personalized learning experience through
trainings, coaching, courses, and support from company leaders. For more information on
Autonom's organizational culture, please see the Non-Financial Statement.
Autonom employees are not organized in unions.
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Autonom Mission
Autonom is a family company that thinks on the long term. Success for us is provided by the
client satisfaction and the evolution of colleagues.
Business growth, profitability and financial stability are all-natural consequences.

Autonom Values
Autonom's vision is to
be an authentic
business model.

We evolve daily
We do what is necessary
to help our customers.

The management system is
based on our values and
autonomy.

Honesty and integrity are
fundamental for the
development of our company.
We are adaptable and flexible.
Simplicity is our way.
We are a team. Respect,
common sense and a smile
are our secrets.

Autonom is an organization
focused on learning. We
encourage the personal growth
of our colleagues and we
support the continuous
transformation of the company.
We have a positive impact on
the society and the
environment.

Awards
Best Employer (2014-2018)
Aon Romania

World Blu Membership
The international network of organizations
that promote democracy in the workplace

Business Review’s Excellence
Business Award

Car rental company of the year (2014,2017)
Hotel Tourism & Leisure Investment Conference
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Analysis of
financial results

Analysis of financial results
Autonom 2020
In times of crisis, cost optimization and risk outsourcing solutions that give companies the
flexibility to quickly adapt to new market conditions are appreciated by companies. Therefore,
the operating lease and car rental services in the medium term have once again proved to be
very good solutions for companies in this difficult period. Therefore, having a diversified
portfolio of services has helped to mitigate the shocks received from the market at group level.
By increasing the turnover from the provision of operating lease service, but also by increasing
the revenues from the sale of used cars, we managed to recover the lost revenues from the
rent-a-car division and, thus, close 2020 with an increase in operating revenues by 10%.
The results of 2020 are the outcome of the autonomous, agile, and sustainable business model,
built to withstand shocks, but also of the experience of the management team and the
involvement of all team members.

Autonom’s revenues in 2020
2020

2019

119,138,956

107,933,439

10.4%

Additional services revenue

52,205,942

51,386,106

1.6%

Rent-a-car revenue

46,843,245

65,860,025

(28.9%)

9,884,647

47,454,242

(79.2%)

Second-hand car sales revenue

79,387,342

46,053,124

(72.4%)

Other operating income

19,568,181

20,026,647

(2.3%)

Total operating revenue

327,028,313

338,713,583

(3.4%)

All amounts are expressed in RON, unless otherwise specified

Operating lease revenue

Car sales revenue

Evolution

Operational and additional services (car rental and car fleet sales) increased by 10%, in 2020,
compared to the previous year. The 7.5% increase in operating lease revenues, as well as the
72.4% increase in used car sales helped the Group change the negative effect of the 28.9%
decrease in revenues recorded by the car rental division.
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Total operating revenues remained at a level similar to 2019, with a slight decrease of 3.4%, a
difference from the decrease in revenues generated by the sale of new cars, a secondary business line for Autonom.

Autonom’s expenses 2020
2020

2019

(48,518,269)

(58,030,728)

(16.4%)

(9,458,343)

(46,796,426)

(79.8%)

Cost of vehicles sold from the car fleet

(83,871,712)

(50,397,385)

66.4%

Employee benefit expenses

(26,076,433)

(28,230,206)

(7.6%)

(2,090,573)
(110,784,800)

(2,783,101)
(90,958,724)

(24.9%)
(21.8%)

(11,990,285)

(12,037,360)

(0.4%)

(969,416)

(8,469,730)

(88.6%)

(293,759,831)

(297,703,660)

(1.3%)

All amounts are expressed in RON, unless otherwise specified

Expenses with car fleet
Cost of vehicles sold

Administrative costs
Amortization, depreciation, and loss of value

Evolution

of the car fleet and equipment
Other operating expenses
Other (losses) / gains - net
Total operating expenses

With the onset of the pandemic, all Autonom teams were involved to find ways to optimize
costs. We have started programs to resize the expenses of the car fleet, personnel, and
administrative expenses. Consequently:
Fleet maintenance costs were reduced by 16%;
Staff costs were reduced by 8% by suspending employment: for both current and
probationary periods;
Administrative expenses were reduced by 25%.
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Autonom’s profit in 2020
2020

2019

33,268,482

41,009,923

(18.9%)

(25,274,151)

(21,726,236)

16.3%

Financial income

1,329,928

507,193

162.2%

Profit before tax

9,324,259

19,791,406

(52.9%)

(2,117,287)

(2,225,226)

(4.9%)

7,206,972

17,566,180

(-59.0%)

7,206,972

17,563,546

(-59.0%)

-

2,634

7,206,972

17,566,180

3.6

8,78

All amounts are expressed in RON, unless otherwise specified

Operating profit
Financial expenses

Income tax expenses
Net profit for the financial year

Evolution

Attributable to:
Owners of equity of the parent company
Non-controlling Interests
Total overall result
Result per share

(-59.0%)
-

The group's operating profit decreased by 19% in 2020, while the consolidated net profit was
RON 7,206,972, decreasing by 59% compared to the previous year.

Autonom’s assets in 2020
Dec. 31st 2020

Dec. 31st 2019

Evolution

537,640,128

532,544,153

1.0%

275,776

2,442,166

Car fleet and equipment for rent

202,146,510

195,664,513

3.3%

The right to use assets

323,970,352

322,882,415

0.3%

Other tangible assets

1,047,470

683,698

53.2%

Real estate investments

1,591,527

1,651,396

-3.6%

Investments in equity instruments

423,696

423,696

-

Trade receivables

172,554

384,713

(55.1%)

8,012,243

8,411,556

(4.7%)

All amounts are expressed in RON, unless otherwise specified

Fixed assets
Intangible assets

Loans to affiliated parties
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(88.7%)

3.3%
0.3%
53.2%
-3.6%
(55.1%)
(4.7%)
103,822,538

123,525,967

(16.0%)

1,799,740

10,561,590

(83.0%)

21,425,893

15,963,853

34.2%

Other receivables and current assets

4,971,276

7,230,612

(31.2%)

Expenses registered in advance

1,012,467

391,778

158.4%

74,613,162

89,378,134

(16.5%)

641,462,666

656,070,120

(2.2%)

Current assets
Inventories
Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents
TOTAL ASSETS

At the end of 2020, the total fleet of Autonom Group comprised of 8,547 cars. The net
decrease of the fleet compared to 2019 was 605 cars. The short-term rental fleet has been
reduced by 205 cars to adapt to new market demands as part of the cost optimization
process.
However, in 2020, Autonom Services SA purchased 303 cars for the rent-a-car division and
1,519 for the operational leasing division.
Of the total assets held, the Group sold in the financial year ended December 2020, 2,378
vehicles.
The tangible and intangible (net) assets of the group amounted to RON 641,462,666.
Significant changes (increases / decreases) in the Group's assets were:
Trade receivables: increased by approximately RON 5.4 million, from RON 15,963,853 in
2019, to RON 21,425,893, in 2020. Between March 15 and May 15, in order to help our
clients during the isolation period, extended payment terms were granted, payments will be
recovered in installments;
Expenses registered in advance: increased by 158.4% to reduce client risk and more prudent
asset value management;
Cash and cash equivalents: decreased by 17%: from RON 89,378,134, in 2019, to RON
74,613,162 in 2020, as a result of investments made in assets;
Stocks (cars in the fleet for sale): decreased by approximately 83%, in 2020, compared to
2019, from RON 10,561,590 to RON 1,799,740, as a result of the increase in sales of used
cars, by 72.4%, namely cars from the car rental fleet and from operating lease.
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Autonom’s equity & liabilities of 2020
All amounts are expressed in RON, unless otherwise specified

2020

2019

Share capital

20,000,000

20,000,000

-

Other capital reserves

14,811,431

13,485,527

9.8%

Retained earning

72,077,807

65,780,117

9.6%

106,889,238

99,677,078

7,2%

-

7,475

TOTAL EQUITY

106,889,238

99,684,553

7.2%

Non-current liabilities

379,353,020

380,379,524

(0,3%)

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

51,508,411

90,007,861

(42.8%)

Bonds

96,622,374

95,341,617

1.3%

212,758,855

180,880,106

17.6%

Trade and other liabilities
Deferred revenue

3,897,578
6,475,814

3,327,317
3,800,409

17.1%
70.4%

Deferred income tax liability

8,089,988

7,022,214

15.2%

155,220,408

176,006,043

(11.8%)

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

12,592,511

15,134,040

(16.8%)

Finance lease liabilities

73,432,309

76,883,979

(4.5%)

Lease liabilities

66,055,713

81,487,710

(18.9%)

71,400

71,400

3,068,475

2,428,915

26.3%

534,573,428

556,385,567

(3.9%)

641,462,666

656,070,120

(2.2%)

Equity

Equity attributable to equity
holders of the parent company
Non-controlling interests

Finance lease liabilities

Current liabilities

Provisions
Deferred revenue
TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
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Evolution

-

-

Equity and Liabilities of Autonom in 2020
Significant changes (increases / decreases) in the Group's debts and equity were:
Equity increased by 7%, as a result of the reinvestment of the profit related to 2019,
amounting to RON 17,566,180;
Leasing liabilities: in 2020, long-term debt increased by 18% and current debt decreased by
19% compared to 2019.

Cash Flow Autonom 2020
Autonom Group ended the year 2020 with cash amounting to RON 74,613,162, a significant
contribution having the bond issuance from November 2019, thus ending the year with
important reserves to ensure the development of the activity in the next period.
Autonom Group has a diversified structure of sources for financing assets as follows: overdraft
facilities at 3 financial institutions, ongoing loans to 12 banks and ongoing leasing contracts
with 10 leasing companies.
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2021: Perspectives
In 2021, Romania continues to face an increased number of COVID-19 cases in all the regions of
the country. Therefore, at the time of publication of this report, Romania is still under the state
of alert. If the number of COVID-19 cases starts to grow again at an accelerated pace, there is
likely to be a new quarantine period, most probably implemented at the local level, affecting
only certain counties or regions that are subject to restrictions.
In December 2020, Romania started the vaccination campaign, and on the date of publication of
this report, approximately 10% of the population is completely vaccinated against COVID-19.
Based on the decisions taken by the governments from countries that have a higher vaccination
rate, it is expected that the restrictions in Romania and neighboring countries will be relaxed as
the size of the immunized population increases. At the same time, a decrease in the number of
COVID-19 cases is expected.
Despite the increase in the number of COVID-19 cases in Romania since the beginning of the
year, in 2021 Autonom registered increases on all business lines. Local companies, as well as
international companies have developed a major interest in investing in operating lease
services, and on the rent-a-car side, Autonom has recorded a historic rental level. The group
continues to work with different case scenarios to be able to adapt quickly to any last-minute
changes. The results obtained by the Group in Q1 in 2021 show that the situation is evolving
according to the positive scenario rendered by Autonom.
Therefore, the management is confident about the evolution of the business in 2021 and aims
at a 2-digit growth rate of revenues and a significantly better profitability than in 2020, maybe
even better than in 2019. The company's management intends to strengthen its position in the
markets in which Autonom activates, as well as testing new products and markets. A relevant
example in terms of continuing the activity to consolidate Autonom’s position is the AutoRulate
business line - in Q2 2020, the company opened a new location dedicated to the retail market,
from which it expects to further accelerate the revenues generated by sales of used cars from
the Autonom car rental or operating lease fleets.
In 2021, the company's management will continue to evaluate all opportunities for sustainable
growth, both organically and through acquisitions of companies compatible with the company's
business model. A similar approach was applied in the case of BT Operational Leasing, which
since January 2021 is fully integrated into Autonom Services. Through this merger, Autonom
has taken an important step in the development of the Group's operational leasing division, by
increasing its client portfolio and assets, and by working closely with the strongest local
financial group - Banca Transilvania. The integration has also accelerated the development of
Autonom Services by achieving important financial and operational synergies.
Autonom also pays more attention to the market for electric and hybrid cars in the context of
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the growing demand for such vehicles, as well as the potential for the development of green
fleets for clients. In Romania, in the first three months of 2021, approximately 2,500 new
electric cars were sold, over 50% more than in the same period of 2020. Regarding electric cars,
more and more companies and individuals believe that they have become much more practical
due to improvements in battery technology, greater autonomy in terms of the number of
kilometers traveled, and the increase in the number of charging stations. In addition, electric
vehicles reduce transportation costs, especially for consumers with regular routes of 100-150
kilometers per day. Given the context in which more and more new and attractive models of
electric cars appear, such as Dacia Spring, Ford Puma, Toyota Hybrid, the management believes
that this market will continue to progress. Thus, Autonom can benefit from this development by
providing green operating lease to companies.

Development options
Maintaining the objectives of a sustained growth of business, to a significant extent using
the current customer base, as well as a healthy addition of new customers, according to the
commercial credit policy;
Maintaining a vast portfolio of satisfied customers (significant contract extension rate of
over 95% in the last seven years) and long-standing relations with the Group, which will
continue to be the foundation of the business;
Focus on maintaining targeted profit margins at the individual contract level, even in the
conditions for assuming a business advance below the theoretical growth potential;
The Group's sustainable competitive advantages (national network of agencies, specific
insurance policy and damage management, etc.) will ensure its flexibility in capitalizing
opportunities for organic growth in the profile markets, as well as the ability to react in the
case of disruptive changes in the mobility market (shared mobility, ride sharing) and in
recessionary economic conditions;
Increasing the average maturity of financing, through bond issuance, in line with an average
maturity of about four years of the operating leases portfolio, which would result in an
increase in the Group's flexibility in capitalizing on market opportunities.
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Autonom Management:
Administrative, management
and supervisory bodies
General aspects
The Company is administrated by a Board of Directors comprised of 3 (three) directors
appointed by the GSM for a mandate of 4 (four) years. According to the Company’s Articles of
Association, the majority of the Company’s directors shall, at any given moment, be
non-executive directors.
The Company’s management is delegated by the Board of Directors to a general manager. The
Company’s general manager is currently Mrs. Mihaela-Angela Irimia (the ‘General Manager’),
who was appointed to this position on November 1st, 2014, for an unlimited term. The
Company is represented in relation to third parties and for justice proceedings by the General
Manager. Additionally, in the decision-making process, Mr. Marius Ștefan and Mr. Dan George
Ștefan, each acting as Company employees holding the positions of CEOs (COR Code 112028)
have a decision-making role and a determining contribution to the Company’s development
strategy and directions.
The share capital of Autonom Services SA is owned as follows: (i) Autonom International S.R.L.
owns 1.960.000 shares, representing 98%, (ii) Marius Ștefan owns 20.000 shares, representing
1%, and (iii) Dan-George Ștefan owns 20.000 shares, representing 1%. Autonom International
S.R.L. is an entity controlled in equal percentages (50%) by the brothers Dan-George Ștefan and
Marius Ștefan, the two of them exercising the control of the company.

Members of the Board of Directors
Name and Surname

Capacity

Date of
appointment

Term valid until

Mihaela-Angela Irimia

Chairman of the
Board of Directors

Martie 13th, 2013

November 1st, 2022

Elena-Gianina Gherman

Member of the
Board of Directors

November 7th, 2014

November 1st, 2022

Dan Iacob

Member of the
Board of Directors

November 7th, 2014

November 1st, 2022
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The business address of each member of the Board of Directors, as well as of the General
Manager is in Piatra-Neamţ City, 4 Fermelor Street, Neamţ County.

Duties of the General Manager
The operative management of the Company is entrusted to the General Manager, who is in
charge of taking all the measures related to the management of the Company, thereby
complying with the powers granted to the Board of Directors and the GSM.
The General Manager’s duties are (i) to hire and dismiss Company staff, (ii) to approve the
receipts and payments up to the limit of the amount established as such by the Board of
Directors and (iii) to ensure the fulfilment of the decisions of the Board of Directors.
The General Manager is under the obligation to inform the Board of Directors on a regular basis
on the operations carried out and on any other aspects taken into consideration, including
potential irregularities found while carrying out such duties.

Duties and decisions of the Board of Directors
The Board of Directors supervises the activity of the General Manager, and any member of the
Board of Directors is entitled to request from the General Manager information regarding the
Company’s operative management.
The members of the Board of Directors are in charge of (i) fulfilling all the obligations regarding
the reality of the payments made by the Company’s shareholders, (ii) the real existence of the
paid-up dividends, (iii) the existence of the registries required by the law and the correct
maintenance thereof, (iv) the accurate fulfilment of GSM resolutions and (v) the fulfilment of any
other duties required by the law or by the Articles of Association.
The Chairman of the Board of Directors coordinates the activity of the Board of Directors and
reports before the GMS regarding the activity of the Board of Directors.
The Board of Directors may validly decide in the presence of a majority of its members, with a
majority of votes. In case of parity of votes, the vote of the Chairman of the Board of Directors
shall be decisive.
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The management team
Marius Ștefan
Mr. Marius Ștefan is one of the current shareholders of the Company and its founder. He is the
CEO, thus having an essential decision-making power in the management of the Company. He
currently holds an MBA in Marketing from the University of Maryland - Robert H. Smith School
of Business and he is a graduate of a Master's Degree in Management from SNSPA (2001). He
is a graduate of the Academy of Economic Studies in Bucharest, specialized in International
Transactions (1999). In 2013 he became a member of Young Presidents Organization, currently
a member of the European YPO board. In 2015 he became a board member of Teach for
Romania, and in 2017 he became a board member of Entrepreneurship Academy and vice
president of the Romanian Business Leaders board.

Dan-George Ștefan
Mr. Dan-George Ștefan is one of the current shareholders of the Company who became part of
the Company’s shareholders, in 2006. He is a Managing Partner, thus also having an essential
decision-making power in the Company management. Mr. Dan-George Ștefan acted as
Purchasing Consultant in IAC, Paris, for a period of 4 years. He graduated the ‘International
Business Master’s Degree program, from the University of Paris 1 Sorbonne and ‘International
Economics’ at the University of Orleans and the Academy of Economic Studies in Bucharest,
specialized in International Business (2001). He is a member of YPO Romania and a member of
the Bittnet Systems Advisory Board (since 2012), of the CEO Clubs Advisory Board (since 2016)
and of the Board of Directors of Family Business Network Romania (since 2018). Since 2014, he
has been teaching Management at the Romanian-Canadian MBA within the Bucharest
Business School.

Mihaela-Angela Irimia
Ms. Mihaela-Angela Irimia is the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company and has
joined the Company in 2006. She graduated from Alexandru Ioan Cuza University in 2006, with
a degree in Statistics and Economic Forecasts. Currently, she coordinates the operational
department, managing the activity of car purchases, the relationship with the financing parties,
payments’ performance and the HR department.

Elena-Gianina Gherman
Ms. Elena-Gianina Gherman is one of the Company directors and has been within the Company
since its establishment. She graduated from Petre Andrei University in 2005, holding a degree
in Finance - Accounting, and in 2011, she became an expert accountant certified by the Body of
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Experts and Chartered Accountants. Prior to joining the Company, she worked as Chief Financial
Officer for multiple companies. Currently, she coordinates the accounting department and
prepares the financial reports for the senior management.

Dan Iacob
Mr. Dan Iacob is one of the Company directors and has been within the Company since its
establishment. He graduated from the Polytechnical University of Bucharest, in 1994, with a
degree in Automation and Computers. After graduation, he worked as a consultant for a
publishing house, later managing and owning two companies in the field of trading. At present,
he coordinated the operational activity for the Company’s subsidiary and the companies
whereby the Company has minority shareholdings and, together with Mr. Dan Ștefan and Mr.
Marius Ștefan, defines the strategic development lines of the Company.

In the last 5 years, none of the members of the Board of Directors or of the Executive Team has been
prohibited by a court from acting as member of the Board of Directors or from supervising a company.
In the last 5 years, there have been no cases of insolvency, liquidation, bankruptcy, or special
administration of some companies, of which one of the members of the Board of Directors or the
Autonom executive team is a member of the board of directors or supervisor. In the last 5 years there
have been no litigations or administrative procedures in which any of the above-mentioned members
have been involved, regarding their activity within the company, as well as those regarding their
capacity to fulfill their attributions within the company.
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AUT24E
bonds on BSE

About the securities admitted for trading at
Bucharest Stock Exchange
The corporate bonds of Autonom Services S.A., amounting to EUR 20 million, were admitted for
trading on the Main Market of Bucharest Stock Exchange, Bonds segment, on December 4th,
2020 and are traded under the symbol AUT24E. The bonds have a nominal value of EUR 1,000,
a maturity of five years and a fixed interest rate of 4.45%, p.a., payable annually. Following the
private placement, the AUT24E bond issuance had a balanced structure of subscribers, which
consisted of both institutional investors and individual investors.
In 2020, 65 transactions were made and 233 AUT24E bonds changed holders. The total traded
amount of Autonom shares in 2020 was EUR 231,395 (RON 1,120,885).
In H1 2020, Dan Ștefan, in charge of the management activities at Autonom Services, acquired
AUT24E bonds. The issuer reported said transactions on the market, according to the format
imposed by art. 19 MAR of the Market Abuse Regulation.
The maturity date of the AUT24E issuance is November 12th, 2024, and the first payment of the
coupon took place on November 12th, 2020. The interest payment was made to the holders of
AUT24E bonds registered in the Register of Bonds of the Central Depository S.A. on the
reference date October 22nd, 2020.
The next payment for the second coupon will take place on November 12th, 2021. The issuer
does not foresee any impediment in connection with the payment of the next bond coupon.
On June 3, 2020, Fitch Ratings, one of the top three rating agencies in the world, awarded
Autonom Services S.A. IDR (Long-Term Issuer Default Rating) ‘B +’. The corporate bond issue,
which is traded under the symbol AUT24E, received a separate rating, namely‘B-’.
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Company risks
and risk management

Autonom company risks
Risks related to the company activity and the industry in which
it operates
Price risk and Liquidity Risk
In case of the Issuer, the price risk materializes through the fact that car leasing and rental
companies are exposed to potential losses from the sale of vehicles if the selling price is lower
than the residual value. Any change in the prices on the second-hand car market can, therefore,
have a negative effect on the revenues that the company can generate from the sales of used
cars.
Liquidity risk is associated with the holding of fixed assets by the company. The company
undertakes the risk of the residual value of the vehicles it operates under the operating leasing
and short-term rental services. As a rule, in the context of short-term rental activity, the cars
are sold at the end of the operating lease contract, respectively, after 27 months of use. The
company carries out these sale operations systematically for a significant proportion of the car
fleet in its portfolio, thus generating a profit or a loss from these activities. In case of short-term
leasing, the amount obtained from the sale of a used vehicle and the risk that the selling price of
a second-hand car will be less than the accounting value at the end of the operating lease or
period of use is primarily determined by external factors.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that the Company's debtors will not be able to meet their obligations at
maturity, due to the deterioration of their financial statement. The company manages this risk
mainly by diversifying business lines, customers, the degree of exposure in a certain industry or
a certain geographical area. In addition, the financial flows and statements of receipts and
payments for each partner are constantly monitored and controlled while maintaining a real
connection with them.

Cash-flow risk
The company needs a significant amount of cash to service its debt and to carry out planned
capital expenditures, and its ability to generate cash or refinance debt depends on many factors
beyond its control. The company borrows considerable amounts annually to develop its
operations through financial leasing, bank credit and short-term credit facilities to finance
purchasing of new cars. To manage these risks, the company has implemented prudent
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financial management in order to have significant liquidity reserves, which will ensure enough
working capital even in the scenario of late or lowered receipts over a long period.

The company is exposed to risks related to interest rate fluctuations
Most of the Company's financing contracts provide for a variable interest rate, depending on
EURIBOR or ROBOR. Therefore, the Company is exposed to the risk of increasing these interest
rates during the financing agreements, which could lead to the payment of a higher interest and
could have a significant negative effect on the activity, financial situation and results of the
Company's operations.

Risk related to the COVID-19 pandemic
At the time of publishing this report, Romania continues to face an increased number of
COVID-19 cases throughout the country. In 2021, Romania remains under state of alert period
and is successively implementing various relaxation measures. However, if the number of
COVID-19 cases starts to grow rapidly again, a new quarantine period is likely to be
implemented in Romania, including the gradual closure of borders, the restriction or prohibition
of the movement of vehicles or persons in / to certain areas. The quarantine could be
implemented either at national level affecting the company's activity throughout Romania, or at
local level, affecting only the agencies located in certain counties or regions that are subject to
restrictions. The rapid adaptation to the new reality, which contributed to diminishing the
negative effect of the pandemic on the Autonom activity, has already prepared the
management for an adequate response in case a new state of emergency will be declared.
Investors should however consider that such events may have a negative impact on the
company's business.

The company activity may be influenced by a negative evolution of the economic
conditions
The dynamics of the Company's business and profitability is sensitive to the general conditions
of the Romanian economic environment, and a slowdown or recession of the local economy
would be negatively reflected in terms of the vast majority of operational parameters. The
impact of COVID-19 on business in 2021 is impossible to assess and will be directly correlated
with raising the alert, the period needed to recover the Romanian economy, the measures taken
by the state to help local companies and the potential risk of recession. Business dynamics and
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group’s profitability is sensitive to the general conditions of the Romanian economic
environment, and a slowdown or recession in the local economy would be reflected negatively
in terms of the vast majority of operational parameters.

Risks related to the decrease of tourism and disturbances in the functioning of the
air transport industry
Part of the Group's activity, more specifically the short-term car rental service, is seasonal and
may be affected by the evolution of tourism in Romania. In the event of a prolonged state of
emergency or alert or general restrictions on air traffic in or to Romania, the rent-a-car business
line may be adversely affected. To manage this risk, management constantly monitors the
activity of agencies located throughout the country, especially those located in airports, in order
to control the operating costs related to their activity.

The company may not be able to sell used cars at the desired prices, which could lead
to losses
The company assumes the risk of the residual value of the vehicles it operates in the operating
leasing and short-term rental service (rent-a-car) and which it sells at the end of the operating
lease.

Part of the Company's activity is seasonal and may be affected by the evolution of
tourism, as well as by the government's policies to support the sector in the medium
and long term.
The company needs a significant amount of cash to service its debt and to carry
out planned capital expenditures, and its ability to generate cash or refinance
debt depends on many factors that are beyond its control.
Commitments in financing agreements may restrict the Company's business.
The Company is subject to credit risk.
The company is subject to all risks related to the industry in which it operates
Changes in tax legislation could have a negative impact on the operational
results of the Company
The Company's insurance may not be adequate to protect the Company against
all potential losses that may affect it.
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Risks regarding the investments in bonds
Risk of illiquid bond market
Bondholders may not be able to sell their bonds easily or at prices that offer them a return
comparable to that obtained in the case of similar investments that have developed a secondary
market.

The bonds may be suspended or excluded from trading on the
Bucharest Stock Exchange
ASF is authorized to suspend financial instruments from trading or to request BSE to suspend
them from trading if the situation of the relevant issuer is such that the continuation of trading
would affect the interests of investors.

Bondholders are exposed to the risk that the price of the Bonds will fall as a
result of the change in the market interest rate.
Inflation can reduce the value of future principal and interest payments.
The market value of the Bonds may be affected by the creditworthiness of the Company as well
as a number of additional factors, including fluctuations in the market interest rate and the rate
of return of the Bonds, as well as the time remaining until the maturity of the Bonds. The value
of the Bonds depends on several factors that include economic, financial, and political events
that occur in Romania or elsewhere in the world, including factors that affect the capital
markets in general and the market in which the Bonds are traded.

The bonds are subject to most of the Company's liabilities
The bonds are not guaranteed. In case of bankruptcy of the Company, the claims regarding the
Bonds will have a lower rank, with several other receivables to be paid with priority, according
to the legislation in force. Therefore, if, in the event of the Company's bankruptcy, the
Company's assets are not enough to allow the Company to fully repay the receivables of the
creditors with priority rights over the bonds, the bondholders will lose their entire investment in
the bonds. On the other hand, given that most of the Company's financial liabilities are secured,
and the bonds are unguaranteed, there is a risk that, in the event of the foreclosure of some of
the Company's assets, the remaining assets will be insufficient to cover the bondholder’s
investment. In such a case, the bondholders may obtain only a portion of their investment in the
bonds or lose the entire investment.
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Other risks
Investors should consider that the risks presented above are the most significant risks that the
company is aware of at the time of preparing the report. However, the risks presented in this
section do not necessarily include all those risks associated with the issuer's business, and the
company cannot guarantee that it covers all relevant risks. There may be other risk factors and
uncertainties that the company is not aware of at the time of writing and which may change the
issuer's actual results, financial conditions, performance and achievements in the future and
may lead to a decrease in the company's share price. Investors should also carry out the
necessary prior checks in order to draw up their own assessment of the investment
opportunity.
There are no environmental disputes ongoing and no environmental disputes are expected.
For a complete risk assessment and regarding their management by the Issuer, we recommend
that investors go through the dedicated section of the listing prospectus, available here:
https://www.autonom.com/assets/uploads/investitori/Autonom-Service-Prospect-admitere
-la-tranzactionare-27.11.2019-VF-Ro.pdf

Risk management
The group pays special attention to the selection and monitoring of clients for operating
lease services;
Major contract renewal rate of over 95% in the last seven years;
The management of the decision-making process for financing the clients and the
monitoring of their payment behavior is performed by the Finance and Risk Department;
Autonom Services received assistance from the EBRD in 2017 to refine its commercial risk
policy;
Scoring methodology for classification in the risk category, depending on which the financing
conditions and the required guarantees are established;
Clients are classified into four categories: very low risk (blue-chip), regular low risk, regular
medium risk, high risk (not eligible for financing);
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The risk analysis includes the financial information analysis, as well as specific elements such
as management experience, the legal history of associates and Directors, seniority of the
client in its field of activity, verification in CIP, verification of debt owed to the state,
verification of files as debtor and so on;
In the case of clients who are not included in the blue-chip category, the Group ensures that
payments are made on time by requesting personal guarantees from the directors and
associates through promissory notes endorsed in their name;
The group discourages exceeding payment deadlines by charging penalty fees (up to 1% per
day after the payment deadline);
High clients granularity (average fleet/customer ~ 5 vehicles, the share of top 10 customers,
less than 30% in the total operating leasing and rent-a-car turnover);
Within a maximum of 2 months delay of payment, the Group repossesses the vehicles;
The group decides between the sale or use of vehicles returned in advance from operating
leases under rent-a-car services, especially if the event occurred in the first part of an
ongoing of the contract;
The complementarity of the business lines in terms of the flexibility of moving assets
between the two categories of services represents a major competitive advantage for the
Group in terms of risk management.
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Statement from the management
Based on the data available at the time of publishing for this report, we confirm that the
individual and consolidated financial statements hereby included offer the true and accurate
situation on the company’s financial position, the financial performance and cash-flow as of
December 31st, 2020, according to financial and accounting standards applicable to date, and
that the Annual Report for the period of January 1st, 2020 to December 31st, 2020 submitted
to the market operator - Bucharest Stock Exchange - and to the Financial Supervisory Authority
comprises accurate and comprehensive information about the company.
Mihaela Angela Irimia
Chairman of the Board of Directors
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Non-financial report

Corporate governance principles
Autonom has a flat three-tier organizational structure: Board of Directors, managers, and
employees. All managers report directly to the Board of Directors and there is no middle
management. This kind of structure creates a network within the company: each branch is held
as a small business, having its own profits and losses, of which the branch manager is in charge
of. Almost 90% of decisions are made within those teams, without the intervention of the Board
of Directors. The managers report daily achievements to the Board of Directors, they analyze
their own performance and discuss with other branch managers and the rest of the team, so
that they can be more responsible and motivated by their financial results.
The Board of Directors comprises of 3 directors appointed in the GSM (General Shareholders
Meeting), each holding a four-year term. According to the Articles of Association of Autonom, at
any given time, most of the company Directors shall be non-executive managers. The Board of
Directors supervises the activity of the General Manager, and any Board of Directors’ member
has the right to ask the General Manager for information regarding the company’s activity.

The members of the Board of Directors are responsible for:
Fulfilling all the obligations regarding the payments made to the shareholders;
The existence of the paid dividends;
The existence of the registers required by law and their correct recording;
The exact fulfillment of the GSM rulings;
Fulfilling other duties required by the Articles of Association or by the law.
The Chairman of the Board of Directors coordinates the activity of the Board of Directors and
reports to the GMS on the activity of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may validly
decide in the presence of a majority of its members, by a majority of votes. In case of parity, the
vote of the Chairman of the Board of Directors will be decisive.
The professional headquarters of each member of the Board of Directors, as well as of the
General Manager is in Piatra-Neamţ Municipality, 4 Fermelor Street, Neamţ County.
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At the time of preparing this report, the Board of Directors of Autonom consists of the following
members:
Name and Surname

Capacity

Date of
appointment

Term valid until

Mihaela-Angela Irimia

Chairman of the
Board of Directors

Martie 13th, 2013

November 1st, 2022

Elena-Gianina Gherman

Member of the
Board of Directors

November 7th, 2014

November 1st, 2022

Dan Iacob

Member of the
Board of Directors

November 7th, 2014

November 1st, 2022

The Group management is assigned to a General Manager by the Board of Directors. Currently,
the General Manager of Autonom is Mihaela-Angela Irimia, who was appointed on November
1st, 2014, for an indefinite term. The company is represented in relation to third parties and in
court by the General Manager. In the decision-making process, Marius Ștefan and Dan-George
Ștefan, each of them acting as Autonom employee, have a decisional role as well as they have a
decisive contribution regarding the strategy and development directions of the group.

Autonom’s organizational culture and values
Autonom is a family business that operated based on a long term approach. Its success is due
to client satisfaction and the evolution of its 500 employees, and the group's vision is to be an
authentic business model. Business growth, profitability and financial stability are the natural
consequences of this vision. Autonom’s core values are:

Honesty and
integrity are the
foundations of our
company’s growth.
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We do what is
necessary
to help our clients.

We are a team.
Respect, common
sense, and a smile
are our secrets.
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We are adaptable
and flexible.
Simplicity is our way.

We evolve
daily.

The organizational culture of the Autonom group is based on the following four principles:
Supporting employee growth: The company success is defined by the evolution of all
employees. In this sense, the company offers a personalized learning experience through
trainings, coaching, courses and support from company leaders. Also, all employees have
access to a large library with titles from various fields. It is recognized that in Autonom,
reading is a service responsibility, where it is recommended to read at least one book per
month.
Supporting flexibility: Autonom believes in work-life balance to create a great environment
for the employees. Depending on the job, there is the possibility to work from home when
employees want it, and the flexible schedule allows them to start and finish work at times
appropriate to their needs.
Encouraging team involvement in the community: The Autonom Foundation was created to
help those around you and to give group employees the opportunity to initiate and get
involved in projects that have a positive impact on the communities they belong to.
Frequently implemented projects include: providing the necessary materials to go to school
(books, supplies), providing scholarships to young people with the potential to participate in
various training programs, participation as an after-school trainer and much more.
Facilitating an innovative spirit: All Autonom employees are encouraged to freely express
their ideas on how the organization would work better. Thus, an internal program was
created with the help of which the innovation proposals received from colleagues are
gathered, selected and implemented, so that each member of the team has a direct impact
on the transformation of the company.
There is no Human Resources Department within Autonom Group. Managers dedicate 30% of
their time to the development of employees and human resources activities.
Autonom is the only Romanian company that received the title of Best Employer for 5
consecutive years, and in 2018 it joined the community of 123 organizations recognized by
WorldBlu worldwide, which promotes democratic principles and encourages freedom in the
workplace.
The company's activity and organizational culture have been recognized over time by partners
and employees through various awards.
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General principles of the remuneration policy
Transparency is also an essential value in Autonom, because 90% of the information is
accessible in the internal system of Autonom and each management decision is derived from
the company's values.
The general principles for establishing the remuneration policies of the group's employees are
the following:
Attracting, retaining and motivating the best professionals;
Rewarding the achievement of objectives;
Maintaining competitiveness in the remuneration market;
Aligning remuneration with recommendations on good governance;
Promoting transparency on remuneration and the criteria for setting it.
An essential aspect of the Autonom remuneration policy is that the members of the sales team
are remunerated with a fixed salary, without bonuses related to individual performance. The
Group has implemented an annual bonus policy at team level, each employee being bonused
with a profit share, at the level of the annual financial year. Thus, dividends, without exception,
end up in the pocket of every member of the team.

Social initiatives and community involvement
Out of the desire to have a positive impact in the communities Autonom belongs to, in 2013 the
Autonom Foundation was born. It was created in order to achieve three main objectives: to
participate in the development of education, to provide a favorable environment in which the
employees get involved and become volunteers who bring changes in the education of the
communities they belong to, thus urging them to form teams as united as possible and have a
positive impact on society.
Thus, Autonom employees have a pre-established but flexible budget to support the causes and
needs identified in the communities based on simple principles to be followed by any volunteer:
the general field should be education, always propose at least three projects that subsequently
they can prioritize them in implementation and have a team of at least 2-3 volunteers to carry
out the project.
From 2013 until now, Autonom volunteers have been involved in over 500 projects dedicated to
education.
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Together with the Autonom Foundation, the Autonom company is an active supporter of the
development and growth of the quality of the educational process in Romania, being a mobility
partner of those who lend a helping hand in this process.
Since the beginning of the COVID-19 crisis in Romania, the Autonom team has communicated
its openness to help with its own resources the NGOs, foundations and public institutions that
needed mobility during this period of fight against coronavirus. This is how the HELP project
was born. In order to capture and process requests for support from all over the country in less
than 24 hours, a dedicated team was formed for this project, which kept in constant contact
with Autonom volunteers in the field and front-line organizations. Also, a dedicated telephone
line was opened and the help.autonom.ro platform was developed, which was made available
to those who needed support.
With a dedicated team, Autonom managed to support in March-May 2020, 66 NGOs from all
over the country, contributing about 100 vehicles and dozens of volunteers, thus putting their
own resources at the service of the community and those affected. The vehicles were used to
distribute protective equipment needed by doctors or vulnerable people, to distribute food or a
hot meal to those on the front line or those who could not move, to move medical staff safely
and to provide assistance in communities.
Among the supported associations are Asociaţia Nod Maker Space, Vivid, Viziere, StudentPlus,
Fundaţia Comunitară Galaţi, ImparteBucurie.ro, Fundaţia Păpădia, Fundaţia de Sprijin Comunitar, Carpathia, Carusel, Constanţa Unita, Fundaţia Comunitară Cluj, Asociaţia Copii pentru Viitor,
Centru de Resurse pentru Regenerare Urbană, Ator Banatul de Munte, New Romanian Cuisine,
Fundaţia Comunitară Buzău, Asociaţia SAFCI, Cutia cu Medicamente, Dăruiește Aripi, Asociaţia
Adi Hădean, Help Autism, Asociaţia Caritabilă Marius și Prietenii, Fundaţia Comunitară Banatul
Montan and others.
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Environment and waste use/management
At the time of publication of this report, Autonom is working to reduce paper consumption by
issuing invoices in electronic format and encouraging its suppliers to adopt the same behavior.
The company also makes efforts to selectively collect and recycle paper, as well as other waste
such as cardboard or glass. These actions help Autonom to minimize the use of paper and thus
become an eco-friendly company.

Aspects regarding anti-corruption and anti-bribery
A giving bribe or receiving bribe is the giving or offering of a thing of value or advantage, directly
or indirectly, to any person, in order to cause that person or any other person to perform an
inappropriate function or activity. A bribe may be financial or not, and may include receiving or
offering money, loans, contributions or donations, travel, employment offers, refunds,
discounts, goods, services or anything else that may be considered valuable. Gifts or
entertainment can be interpreted as forms of bribery in certain circumstances.
Autonom prohibits the involvement of employees in bribery and has a zero-tolerance policy on
bribery and corruption. Group policy prohibits bribery, offering bribes, as well as soliciting,
accepting or receiving bribes. The group also prohibits employees from accepting gifts or
services that could influence business decisions.

Mihaela Angela Irimia
Chairman of the Board of Directors
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Individual and consolidated financial statements
prepared according to OMFP No. 2844/2016 with
subsequent amendments and completions
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Translation from Romanian
Ernst & Young Assurance Services SRL
Cladirea Bucharest Tower Center, Etaj 22
Bd. Ion Mihalache nr. 15-17 , Sector 1
011171 Bucharest, Romania

Tel: +40 21 402 4000
Fax: +40 21 310 7193
office@ro.ey.com
ey.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Autonom Services S.A.
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Autonom Services S.A. (“The
Company”) and its subsidiary (together “the Group”) with its registered office in Piatra Neamt,
Strada Fermelor nr. 4, identified by the unique tax registration code 18433260, which include the
consolidated statement of financial position as of December 31 st 2020, the consolidated
statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the financial year ended and
a summary of significant singing policies and other explanatory information.
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements provide a true and fair view
of the Group’s consolidated financial position as of December 31st 2020, as well as its
consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows for the year ended in accordance
with the Order of the Minister of Public Finance no. 2844/2016 for the approval of the Accounting
regulations compliant with the International Financial Reporting Standards, with subsequent
amendments and clarifications.
Bases for opinion

We conducted the audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA), Regulation
(EU) no. 537/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council of April 16th 2014 (“Regulation
(EU) no. 537/2014”) and Law no. 162/2017 (“Law 162/2017”).
Our responsibilities according to these standards are described in more detail in the section
“The auditor’s responsibilities for auditing the consolidated financial statements” of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including international standards of independence) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IESBA Code) ethical requirements that are relevant for the audit of
financial statements in Romania, including Regulation (EU) No. 537/2014 and Law 162/2017, we
have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities according to these requirements and according to the
IESBA Code. We consider that the audit samples we obtained are sufficient and adequate to
form the basis for our opinion.

Key audit matter

The key audit matters are those matters that, based on our professional judgement, have
had the greatest significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements iof the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of the audit of the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, and in forming of our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters.
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For each matter below, we presented in that context a description of how our audit approached
that matter.
We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the section, “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” of our report, including in connection with these
key issues. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the issues below, form the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

How our audit addressed the key
audit matters

Key audit matters

Elimination of residual value(s) and useful lives of the
fleet used for leasing, including the fleet of assets
related to the right of use and the specific analysis of
depreciation of these assets
Assets included in the car fleet used for rent, owned by
the Group, in the amount of RON 171,880 thousand or
by leasing contracts classified as assets related to the
right of use - contracts with transfer of ownership or
purchase option, for which it applies IAS 16 from the
point of view of depreciation - in the amount of RON
320.253 thousand as of December 31 2020 - are valued
at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment adjustment. Management should evaluate
the residual value and useful life of an asset at least at
the end of each financial year and assess whether
adjustments for specific impairment are necessary.
Depending on the outcome of these analyses, changes
may be accounted for as a change in accounting
estimates reflected in forward-looking amortization or as
a specific impairment adjustment. The determination of
any impairment adjustment in respect of assets that are
the subject of operating leases depends primarily on how
the recoverable amount is affected by the residual value
that can be obtained at the end of the lease.
st

Our audit work focused on, but was
not
limited
to,
the
following
procedures:

•

We obtained an agreement on how to
manage the risks related to the fleet
used for leasing as it is designed and
implemented at the Group level.

•

We analysed the information and data
included in the operational database
used to assess the residual value and
fair value of vehicles, we compared, for
a sample of transactions during the
financial year, the values obtained
from actual sales compared to the
book values at the date of disposal, in
order to assess the reasonableness of
the revised residual values; we
analysed the trend of impairment
losses following the revision of
residual values and we discussed with
the Group's management about the
categories of vehicles sold at a loss
during the financial year.

•

We also analysed which vehicles for
which there is no active operating
lease at the balance sheet date.

Future residual values are influenced in particular by the
number of kilometers traveled, the asset class and the
manufacturer, the general condition of the vehicle, as
well as the evolution of the used car market (second
hand) at the date they are sold.
The residual values of the vehicles managed by the
Group vary depending on the type of asset and, thus,
the assessment regarding the future values made by
the management is based on a series of
assumptions, estimates and reasoning.

I
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit
matters

The Group revised the residual values of its fleet used for
leasing on December 31 2020 and earlier, on an interim
date, taking into account both internal and external
factors of the Group, such as: actual sales of used
vehicles during the year, correlating these values at the
balance sheet date with the estimated number of
kilometers traveled, the asset class and the gold
produced, the potential use of the vehicle in case of
canceled leases and, possibly, the impact of the COVID19 pandemic on the residual values of vehicles.
Subsequently, based on the analysis performed on
December 31 2020, the management identified a
reduction in the value of certain categories of used
vehicles and a depreciation adjustment was registered in
the amount of RON 7,080 thousand.

•

st

st

We discussed and reviewed the analysis
performed by management regarding the
impact on the residual value taking into
account the age of the vehicle on December
31 2020 and we also assessed the possible
impact arising from the COVID-19 pandemic
in relation to actual sales transactions made
in the course of the financial year.
st

•

Due to the significance of the value of the fleet used for
rent, the estimation uncertainty related to the
determination of the residual value of the assets, the
related useful lives, as well as any necessary specific
depreciation adjustment, I consider that the valuation of
the fleet used for rent, including the fleet of use, is a key
audit matter.

We evaluated the analysis of the events
triggering the impairment made by
management for the assets given for rent,
focusing on the categories of vehicles sold at
a loss during the year, in order to assess
whether there was a decrease in the market
for that asset category. We discussed with
the management and analyzed whether
there were changes in the market that could
have affected the selling price of used cars
and, implicitly, the residual value on a
prospective basis and whether an
adjustment for specific depreciation is
required on December 31 2020. We
analyzed the adjustment of the specific
depreciation registered by the management
regarding certain vehicles on December 31
2020.
st

The presentations made by the Group are included in the
note 2.3.7 Car fleet and other corporate fixed assets, note
3 REASONS, EST / MARI AND HYPOTHETICAL
ACCOUNTS ABOUT THEM SIGNIFICANT - Review of
useful lives / hours and residual values of assets / or inc /
use in the car fleet used for rent, note 14 fixed assets
corporeal - Car fleet used for rent and note 15 The right to
use assets, from the consolidated financial statements.

st

•

We performed an analysis of the sale prices
of used cars, taking into account the
information available after the end of the
financial year, and we assessed whether a
specific or general depreciation adjustment
is required at the balance sheet date.

We also assessed the adequacy of the
presentations included in the consolidated
financial statements.

Other information

Other information includes the consolidated and individual Directors’ Report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our audit report thereon. Management is
responsible for other information.
Our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover other information and
we do not express any form of insurance conclusion on them.
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
this other information and, in doing so, to analyse whether it is not significantly consistent with
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the consolidated financial statements or the knowledge we have. We obtained after the audit or
if they seem to include significant errors. If, based on the activity carried out, we conclude that
there are significant errors regarding this other information, we must report this. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

The liability of the management and of the persons responsible with governance for the
consolidated financial statements

The management of the Group is responsible for the preparation and accurate presentation of
the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Order of the Minister of Public
Finance no. 2844/2016 for the approval of the Accounting Regulations compliant with the
International Financial Reporting Standards, with subsequent amendments and clarifications,
and for that internal control that the management deems necessary to allow the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free of significant misstatements, caused either by
fraud or error.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
ability of the Group to conduct business in accordance with the business continuity principle and
to present, where appropriate, issues relating to business continuity and the use of business
continuity, unless management intends to liquidate the Group or cease its activity or has no real
alternative but to do so.
The persons responsible for governance have the responsibility of supervising the Group ’s
financial reporting process.

The auditor’s responsibilities for auditing the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance as to the extent to which the consolidated
financial statements, taken as a whole, do not contain material misstatement due to error or fraud
and to issue an audit report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but there is no guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISA standards will always detect significant misstatement, if any.
Distortions may be caused by either fraud or error and are considered significant if it can
reasonably be expected that they, either individually or as a whole, will influence users’ economic
decisions based on these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISA standards, we exercise our professional judgment and
maintain our professional scepticism throughout the audit. Also:
We identify and evaluate the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, caused by either fraud or error, establish and perform audit procedures that
respond to these risks and obtain sufficient and adequate audit evidence to form a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a significant misstatement caused by fraud is higher
than the risk of not detecting a significant misstatement caused by error, as fraud may include
complicity, forgery, intentional omission, misrepresentation or circumvention of internal
control.

We understand the internal control relevant to the audit to establish the appropriate audit
procedures in the given circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
We evaluate the adequacy of the singing policies used and the reasonableness of the singing
estimates and the related presentations of information made by the management.
We conclude on the adequacy of the management’s use of the business continuity principle,
and determine, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there is significant uncertainty
about events or conditions that could raise significant doubts about the Group ’s ability to
continue operations. If we conclude that there is significant uncertainty, we must draw
attention, in the audit report, to the related presentations in the consolidated financial
statements or, if these presentations are inadequate, we may change our mind. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our audit report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease operations on a going
concern basis.
We evaluate the presentation, structure and general content of the consolidated financial
statements, including disclosures, and the extent to which the consolidated financial
statements reflect the underlying transactions and events in a manner that provides a fair
presentation.
We obtain sufficient adequate audit evidence about the financial information of the entities or
activities of the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for guiding, supervising and conducting the audit at the group level. We are solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
We communicate to the persons responsible for governance, among other matters, the planned
objectives and the timely scheduling of the audit, as well as the significant findings of the audit,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control, which we identify during our audit.
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We also present to the persons responsible for governance a statement regarding our compliance
with the ethical requirements regarding independence and we communicate to them all relations
and other matters that you can reasonably consider that could affect our independence and,
where appropriate, actions taken to eliminate threats to independence or safeguards applied to
reduce those threats.
Among the matters that we communicate to the persons responsible for governance, we establish
those matters
that had the greatest importance in the audit on the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and, therefore, represent key audit matters.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Reporting on information other than consolidated financial statements and our audit report on
them

In addition to our reporting responsibilities under ISA standards and described in the “Other
Information” section of the Consolidated and Individual Directors’ Report, we have read the
Consolidated and Individual Directors’ Report and report the following:
a) in the Consolidated and Individual Directors’ Report we have not identified information that
is not consistent, in all material respects, with the information presented in the consolidated
financial statements as of December 31 st 2020, attached;
b) the consolidated and individual Director’s Report, identified above, includes, under all
significant matters, the information required by the Order of the Minister of Public Finance
no. 2844/2016 for the approval of the singable Regulations compliant with the International
Financial Reporting Standards, with subsequent amendments and clarifications, Annex 1,
points 15-19;
c) based on our knowledge and understanding gained during the audit of the consolidated
financial statements prepared as of December 31 st 2020 regarding the Group and its
environment, we have not identified any significant erroneous information presented in the
consolidated and individual Directors’ Report.
Other requirements regarding the content of the audit report according to Regulation (EU) no.
537/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Appointment and approval of the auditor

We were appointed auditors of the Group by the General Meeting of Shareholders on July 15,
2020 to audit the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended December 31,
2020. The total duration of the continuing mission, including renewals (extension of the period for
which we were initially appointed) and previous appointments as auditors was for 6 years,
covering the financial years ended on December 31 st 2015 until December 31st 2020.
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Consistency with the additional report addressed to the Audit Committee
Our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements expressed in this report is in accordance with the
additional report addressed to the Company’s Audit Committee, which we issued on April 29 th 2021.

Non-audit services
We did not provide the Group with prohibited non-audit services referred to in Article 5 (1) of
Regulation (EU) No 537/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council and we remain
independent from the Group during the audit.
We have not provided to the Company and the entities controlled by it other services than those
of statutory audit and those presented in the consolidated financial statements.

On behalf of,

Ernst & Young Assurance Services SRL
15-17 Ion Mihalache Blvd., 21st floor, Bucharest, Romania

(rectangular stamp)
Authority for public monitoring of the audit activity
Statutory (ASPAAS)
Audit firm: Ernst & Young Assurance Services S.R.L.
Electronic Public Register: FA77
(rectangular stamp)
Authority for public monitoring of the audit activity
Statutory (ASPAAS)
Financial auditor: Gavrila Felicia Viorica
Electronic Public Register: AF1513
(undecipherable signature)
Bucharest, Romania
April 29th 2021

AUTONOM SERVICES SA
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
All amounts in RON, unless specified otherwise

Translation from Romanian

AUTONOM SERVICES SA
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Prepared in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards adopted by the European Union and OMFP
NO. 2844/2016 with subsequent amendments and additions.
31 DECEMBER 2020

The English version of this Consolidated Financial Statements represents
a translation of the original Consolidated Statements issued in Romanian
language.

AUTONOM SERVICES SA
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
All amounts in RON, unless specified otherwise

Content
Consolidated statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income

3

Consolidated statement of financial position

4

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

5

Consolidated statement of cash flows

6

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

7 - 59

AUTONOM SERVICES SA
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

All amounts in RON, unless specified otherwise

December 31st December 31st
2020
2019

Note
Operating lease income
Additional services revenue
Rent a-car-income
Revenue from sale of vehicles
Proceeds from sale of cars from rental fleet
Other operating income
Total operating income
Fleet expenses
Cost of vehicles sold
Cost of cars from rental fleet sold
Employee benefits expenses
Administrative expenses
Depreciation and impairment of rental fleet and
equipment assets
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of other noncurrent assets
Other operating expenses
Other (losses) / gains – net
Total operating expenses
Operating profit
Finance costs
Finance income
Profit before tax
Income tax expense
Net profit for the financial year

5

6
7

8
9
14,15
14, 15, 16
10
11

12.1
12.2
13
13

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent company
Non-controlling interests
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income
EPS

29

119,138,956
52,205,942
46,843,245
9,884,647
79,387,342
19,568,181
327,028,313

107,933,439
51,386,106
65,860,025
47,454,242
46,053,124
20,026,647
338,713,583

(48,518,269)
(9,458,343)
(83,871,712)
(26,076,433)
(2,090,573)

(58,030,728)
(46,796,426)
(50,397,385)
(28,230,206)
(2,783,101)

(104,890,775)

(85,288,349)

(5,894,025)
(11,990,285)
(969,416)
(293,759,831)

(5,670,375)
(12,037,360)
(8,469,730)
(297,703,660)

33,268,482

41,009,923

(25,274,151)
1,329,928

(21,726,236)
507,193

9,324,259
(2,117,287)
7,206,972

19,791,406
(2,225,226)
17,566,180

7,206,972
7,206,972

17,563,546
2,634
17,566,180

3.60

8.78

These consolidated financial statements from page 3 to page 59 were approved by the Board of Directors and were
authorised for issue on 29 April 2021.

Mihaela Angela Irimia
Name
President of the Board of Directors (undecipherable
signature)

The accompanying notes 1 to 31 are an integral part of these financial statements

SC AVH CONSULTING SRL
Name: Huian Angelica
Professional body registration no. 5138
(undecipherable signature)

AUTONOM SERVICES SA
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
All amounts in RON, unless specified otherwise

Notes
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets
Rental fleet and rental equipment
Right-of-use assets
Other property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Investments in own equity instruments
Trade receivables
Loans to related to affiliated parties

17
14
15
14
16

Current assets
Inventories
Trade receivables
Other receivables and current assets
Prepayments
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

20
21
21
21
22

Equity and liabilities
Equity
Share capital
Other capital reserves
Retained earnings

21
26

23
23
23

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interests
Total equity
Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Bonds
Finance lease liabilities
Lease liabilities
Trade and other liabilities
Deferred revenue
Current liabilities
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Finance lease liabilities
Trade and other liabilities
Provisions
Deferred revenue
Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

31 December
2020

31 December
2019

537,640,128

532,544,153

275,776
202,146,510
323,970,352
1,047,470
1,591,527
423,696
172,554
8,012,243

2,442,166
195,664,513
322,882,415
683.698
1,651,396
423,696
384,713
8,411,556

103,822,538
1,799,740
21,425,893
4,971,276
1,012,467
74,613,162
641,462,666

123,525,967
10,561,590
15,963,853
7,230,612
391,778
89,378,134
656,070,120

20,000,000
14,811,431
72,077,807
106,889,238
106,889,238

20,000,000
13,485,527
65,780,117
99,677,078
7,475
99,684,553

379,353,020
51,508,411
96,622,374
212,758,855
3,897,578
6,475,814
8,089,988

380,379,524
90,007,861
95,341,617
180,880,106
3,327,317
3,800,409
7,022,214

155,220,408
73,432,309
66,055,713
12,592,511
71,400
3,068,475
534,573,428

176,006,043
76,883,979
81,487,710
15,134,040
71,400
2,428,915
556,385,567

641,462,666

656,070,120

-

18
18
15
24
13

18
15
24

These consolidated financial statements from page 3 to page 59 were approved by the Board of Directors
and were authorised for issue on 29 April 2021.
Mihaela Angela Irimia
Name
President of the Board of Directors (undecipherable
signature)

The accompanying notes 1 to 31 are an integral part of these financial statements

SC AVH CONSULTING SRL
Name: Huian Angelica
Professional body registration no. 5138
(undecipherable signature)

AUTONOM SERVICES SA
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
All amounts in RON, unless specified otherwise

Share
capital
As at 1 January 2020
Profit for the year
Increase in legal reserves and other reserves
Acquisition of a subsidiary

20,000,000
-

At 31 December 2020

20,000,000

Share
capital
As at 1 January 2019
Profit for the year
Increase in legal reserves and other reserves
At 31 December 2019

20,000,000
20,000,000

Other capital
reserves

Retained
earnings

Total
equity

13,485,527 66,191,551 99,677,078
- 7,206,972 7,206,972
1,325,904 (1,325,904)
5,188
5,188
106,889,23
14,811,431 72,077,807
8

Other capital
reserves
6,651,922
6,833,605
13,485,527

Retained
earnings
55,461,611
17,563,546
(6,833,605)
66,191,551

Total
equity
82,113,533
17,563,546
99,677,078

Noncontrolling
interest

Total
equity

7,475 99,684,553
- 7,206,972
(7,475)
(2,287)
106,889,23
8

Noncontrolling
interest
4,841
2,634
7,475

Total
equity
82,118,374
17,566,180
99,684,553

These consolidated financial statements from page 3 to page 59 were approved by the Board of Directors and were authorised for issue on April 29th 2021.

Mihaela Angela Irimia
Name
President of the Board of Directors (undecipherable
signature)

The accompanying notes 1 to 31 are an integral part of these financial statements

SC AVH CONSULTING SRL
Name: Huian Angelica
Professional body registration no. 5138 (undecipherable signature)

AUTONOM SERVICES SA
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
All amounts in RON, unless specified otherwise

Notes
Operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of rental fleet and rental equipment
Net foreign exchange differences
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of rental fleet - own resources
Financial income
Interest expense
Movement in current assets allowances

Investing activities
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired
Purchase of other property, plant and equipment
Loans granted to related parties
Loans granted to related parties
Net cash flows used in investing activities
Financing activities
Payment of finance lease liabilities
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Issuance of bonds

2019

9,324,259

19,791,406

5,894,025

5,670,375

104,890,775
6,427,435
124,856
4,058,066
(1,329,928)
18,843,199
969,416

85,288,349
5,782,874
1,070,716
4,344,261
(507,193)
14,747,668
7,490,422

(5,901,659)

(3,648,428)

5,567,433
2,259,336
3,314,966
(5,672,042)
(91,155,650)
83,632,668
731,260
(18,843,199)
(1,020,710)
122,114,506

17,511,532
1,220,006
5,088,397
(10,363,397)
(46,106,239)
45,191,411
97,251
(14,453,748)
(3,387,603)
134,828,060

26

(243,862)
(1,383,089)
992,000
(634,951)

(101,759)
(1,247,789)
(5,077,192)
442,950
(5,983,790)

19
19
19
19

(91,320,225)
53,946,950
(108,193,107)
-

(86,235,908)
26,662,271
(75,635,180)
94,186,057

(145,566,382)

(41,022,760)

(24,086,827)

87,821,509

14
14,15

12.2
12.1
11

Working capital adjustments:
Increase in trade and other receivables and prepayments
Increase/Decrease in inventories
Increase in other receivable
Increase/(decrease) in deferred revenue
Increase / (decrease)in trade and other payables
Purchase of rental fleet and rental equipment
Amounts received for disposal of rental fleet and rental equipment
Interest received
Interest paid
Income tax paid
Net cash flows from operating activities

2020

19

Net cash flows used in financing activities
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

22

80,774,870

(7,046,640)

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

22

56,688,044

80,774,870

These consolidated financial statements from page 3 to page 59 were approved by the Board of
Directors and were authorised for issue on 29 April 2021.
Mihaela Angela Irimia
Name
President of the Board of Directors
(undecipherable signature)

SC AVH CONSULTING SRL
Name: Huian Angelica
Professional body registration no. 5138
(undecipherable signature)
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AUTONOM SERVICES SA
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
All amounts in RON, unless specified otherwise

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

These consolidated financial statements are prepared by Autonom Services SA (hereinafter “the Company
and comprise its activities and those of its subsidiary, together referred hereinafter as ‘’Autonom’’ or ‘’the
Group’’. The consolidated financial statements of the Group were authorised for issue in accordance with a
resolution of the directors on April 29th 2021.
Autonom Services SA is a privately owned, joint stock company with the main activity of renting and leasing
of motor vehicles and light motor vehicles. The company has its headquarters in Piatra Neamt, Fermelor
street, no. 4 with points of business in several cities: Piatra Neamt, Bucharest, Otopeni, Bacau, Constanta,
Suceava, Cluj, Iasi, Galati, Brasov, Sibiu, Targu Mures, Oradea, Craiova, Slatina, Satu Mare, Baia Mare,
Timisoara, Pitesti, Braila, Tulcea, Ramnicu Valcea, Focsani, Buzau.
Autonom Services SA is controlled by Autonom International SRL and ultimately by Stefan Dan George and
Stefan Marius.
On June 30th 2018, Autonom Services SA acquired control over BT Operaţional Leasing SA (“BTOL”, “the
Subsidiary”), after completing the purchase of a 99.85% interest in its share capital. BTOL was previously a
member of the Bank Transilvania Financial Group and was incorporated as a joint stock company in 2001.
From September 2021 The Subsidiary’s main activity consists of renting and leasing of motor vehicles and
light motor vehicles and has its headquarters in Neamţ, Piatra Neamţ, str. Fermelor nr.4.
On December 4th 2020, The company issued corporate bonds worth EUR 20 million, which were admitted to
trading on the Main Market of the Bucharest Stock Exchange, Bonds segment, and which are traded under
the symbol AUT24E. The bonds have a nominal value of 1,000 euros, a maturity of five years and a fixed
interest rate of 4.45%, p.a. payable annually (see Note 19).
For further details on the acquisition of BTOL, see Note 4.
The number of employees of the Group as of December 31st 2020 was 313 (December 31st 2019 was 358).

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1

Basis of preparation

Statement of Compliance
The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Order no. 2.844/2016 for
approving the Accounting Regulations in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, with
subsequent amendments and additions. These provisions are in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards applicable to financial reporting as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) and adopted by the European Union (EU) (IFRS), except as provided in IAS 21 The Effects of
Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates on functional currency.
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for equity investments
measured at fair value through profit or loss. The financial statements are presented in Lei (‘’RON’’), which is
also the Group’s functional currency, and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand RON, except when
otherwise indicated.
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AUTONOM SERVICES SA
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
All amounts in RON, unless specified otherwise

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuing)
Going concern
These financial statements are prepared based on the principle of business continuity. Management
considers it appropriate to use the principle of business continuity in the preparation of financial statements.
Management based its assessment using detailed projections of the Group's cash flows for the period up to
December 31st 2021, prepared using assumptions that include the estimated impact of the Covid 19 pandemic
based on information available at the end of March 2021. These projections take into account the Group's
current available cash resources are the latest projected operating income projections as of December 31st
2020, the anticipated additional operating income from new leases to be entered into during the period
covered by the projections, and the financing of current contracted debt and current financial position at the
reporting date, investments in the rental fleet and other commitments.
2.2

Bases of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and the Subsidiary
as of December 31st 2020.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable income from its involvement with
the Company in which it has invested and has the ability to affect such income through its power over the
company in which it has invested.
Specifically, the Group controls the company in which it has invested, if and only if the Group has:
Authority over the company in which it has invested (e.g. existing rights which give it the authority to direct
the relevant activities of the company in which it has invested).
Exposure or rights to income, variable as a result of his participation in the entity in which he invested.
Ability to exercise authority over the company in which it has invested in order to influence the investor's
income.
In general, there is a presumption that a majority over voting rights results in control. To support this
presumption even when the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights or similar rights of a company
in which it has invested, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances to assess whether it has
power over the company in which it invested, including:
• The contractual agreement / agreements with other voting holders of the company in which it has invested;
• Rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
• The rights and potential voting rights of the Group.
The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls a company in which it has invested if the facts and
circumstances indicate that changes are taking place in one or more of the three control elements. The
consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group gains control of the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during a year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which the
Group gains control until the date on which the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the equity holders of the
parent company of the Group and non-controlling interests, even if it results in non-controlling interests having
a deficit balance.
When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to align their accounting
policies with those of the Group. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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AUTONOM SERVICES SA
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
All amounts in RON, unless specified otherwise

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuing)
A change in the interest of a subsidiary's participation, without loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction. If the Group loses control of a subsidiary; it abandons the related assets (including goodwill),
liabilities, uncontrolled interest and other components of equity, while any resulting gain or loss is recognized
in the income statement. Any investment retained is recognized at fair value.
2.3 Summary of the significant accounting policies
The main accounting policies applied by the Group in preparing these financial statements are presented
below.
2.3.1 Business combination and goodwill
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the sum of the value transferred, which is measured at the acquisition date at fair value, and
the value of any interest that does not control the acquisition.
For each combination, the Group chooses whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquisition
at fair value or at the proportional share of the recognized amount related to identifiable net assets.
Acquisition-related costs are recognized as an expense at the date of occurrence and are included in the
income statement.
When the Group acquires a business, it evaluates the financial assets and liabilities assumed for the
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and conditions relevant to the acquisition date.
Any contingency consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognized at fair value on the date
of acquisition. The contingency equivalent value considered as equity is not remeasured and the subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. The contingency value classified as an asset or liability that is a
financial instrument and within the scope of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments is measured at fair value through
changes in fair value recognized in the income statement under IFRS 9. Other contingent amounts that are
not the scope of IFRS 9 is measured at fair value at each reporting date and changes in fair value are
recognized in profit or loss.
Goodwill is initially measured at cost (being the excess of the total value transferred and the amount
recognized for non-controlling interests and any other interests held in the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed). If the fair value of the net asset acquired exceeds the total value transferred, the
Group reassesses whether all the assets acquired and all liabilities assumed have been correctly identified
and the procedures used to determine the amounts to be recognized at the acquisition date are reviewed. If,
after revaluation, the fair value of the net assets is continuing to be greater than the acquisition cost, the
difference is recognized in the income statement.
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of
testing for impairment, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the date of acquisition, allocated
to each cash-generating unit that is expected to benefit from the combination, whether other assets or
liabilities are allocated to those units.
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AUTONOM SERVICES SA
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
All amounts in RON, unless specified otherwise

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuing)
2.3.2 Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the positions of the financial statements taking into account the
current / fixed assets classification. An asset is current when:
• It is estimated that it will be made or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;
• The main purpose of ownership is trading;
• It is expected to be completed within twelve months of the reporting period;
• Represents cash or cash equivalents, unless limited to exchange or use for debt settlement for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as fixed assets.
A debt is current when:
• It is estimated that it will be paid off within the normal operating cycle;
• It is held mainly for trading purposes;
• To be paid off less than 12 months after the reporting period, or
• There is no unconditional right to defer debt settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
The group classifies any other debt as long-term debt.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are classified as fixed assets or long-term liabilities.
2.3.3

Fair value measurement

Information on the fair value of financial instruments and non-financial assets that are measured at fair
value or where fair values are presented is summarized in the relevant notes.
Fair value is the price that would have been collected for the sale of an asset or paid for the transfer of a debt
in a regulated transaction between market participants at the valuation date. Fair value measurement is based
on the assumption that the asset sale or debt transfer transaction takes place either:
•
In the main asset or debt market;
Or
•
In the absence of a main market, on the most advantageous payment for assets or debt.
•
The main market or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Group.
The fair value of an asset or liability is measured on the basis of the assumption that market participants
would use it in determining the value of the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act to obtain
maximum economic benefit.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account the ability of a market participant to
generate economic benefits through the most intense and best use of the asset or by selling it to another
market participant who will use the most intense asset. and the best.
The Group uses valuation techniques appropriate to the circumstances and for which there are sufficient data
to measure at fair value, making maximum use of relevant observable input data and minimizing
unobservable input data.
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AUTONOM SERVICES SA
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
All amounts in RON, unless specified otherwise

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuing)
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured and presented in the financial statements are included
in the fair value hierarchy. This is described as follows, depending on the lowest significant level for the entire
fair value measurement:
•
Level 1 - quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
•
Level 2 - valuation techniques for which the lowest significant level for fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly;
•
Level 3 - valuation techniques for which the lowest significant level for fair value measurement is
unobservable.
For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis at the end of
each reporting period, the Group determines whether certain assets or liabilities have been transferred
between the levels defined by the fair value hierarchy (based on the low level of information which is
significant for fair value measurement) at the end of each reporting period.
2.3.4 Revenue recognition

Revenues include vehicle rental income - operating leasing and vehicle rental income, equipment rental
income - operational leasing, income from services in addition to operating leasing, sale of goods and other
rental income.
A) Operational leasing income (motor vehicles and equipment), rental income and other operating
income
Revenues from renting vehicles and equipment
Operating lease income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the contractual period, based on all
contractual payments divided by the number of months of the lease.
The income from the rental of motor vehicles is recognized proportionally during the period (number of rental
days in the accounting period) in which the motor vehicles are rented based on the rental contract.
Revenues from early termination fees consist of fees charged to customers at the early termination of leases
and are included in this income category.
Other operating leasing income
Other operating lease income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
B) Revenues from contracts with customers

Revenues from contracts with customers are recognized when control over the goods and services is
transferred to the customer and takes on a value that reflects the value the Group expects in exchange for
those goods and services. The group has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue agreements
because it usually controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer.
Revenue from services incidental to vehicle rental
Services incidental to vehicle rental include rates for repair and maintenance services, tire replacement, car
replacement and insurance services and other contractual components. These services represent different
performance obligations and are usually recognized throughout the contract, based on monthly leasing rates
as the vehicle is continuously with the customer and the service is used continuously or the customer will
have access to the service for the duration of the contract; except for the exchange of tires, which is
recognized at a certain time when this service is provided.

11

AUTONOM SERVICES SA
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuing)
Revenues from the sale of vehicles
Revenues from the sale of motor vehicles refer to motor vehicles purchased for resale and are recognized at
the time when control over the asset is transferred to customers, usually upon delivery of the motor vehicle.
Proceeds from sale of cars from rental fleet
Revenues from the sale of vehicles in the car fleet (operating leases and leases) are recognized when control
over the asset is transferred to customers, usually upon delivery of the car.
The group considers whether there are other promises in the contract that represent different obligations to
execute, of which a proportion of the transaction price must be allocated (e.g. guarantees, loyalty points). In
determining the transaction price for the sale of goods, the Group takes into account the effects of variable
value, the existence of significant financing components, non-monetary value and value payable to the
customer (if any).
Trade receivables
A claim represents the Group's right to an equivalent value (e.g. only the passage of time is necessary before
the payment of the equivalent value is due). Trade receivables are current unpaid receivables arising from
operating leases or receivables arising from the sale of inventories.
See accounting policies for financial assets in section 2.3.13 Financial instruments - initial recognition and
subsequent measurements.
Contractual liabilities
A contractual liability is the obligation to transfer the goods and services to a customer for whom the Group
has received a consideration (or part of the consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays the
equivalent value before the Group transfers the goods or services to the customer, a contractual liability is
recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is the earlier). Contractual liabilities
are recognized as income when the Group provides services or sells goods under a contract. For the Group,
advances from customers for vehicles to be sold are subject to contractual liabilities, in accordance with the
provisions of IFRS 15.
2.3.5

Foreign currencies

The consolidated financial statements of the Group are presented in RON, which is also the functional
currency of both the Parent Company and the subsidiary.
Transactions in foreign currency are converted into RON by applying the exchange rate in force on the date
of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the end of the year
are converted into RON at the exchange rate in force on that date. Realized or unrealized gains or losses on
exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss.
The exchange rate RON - EUR and RON - USD on December 31st 2020 and December 31st 2019 was:

RON - EUR
RON – USD

December 31st
2020
4.8694
3.9660

December 31st
2019
4.7793
4.2608

AUTONOM SERVICES SA
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
All amounts in RON, unless specified otherwise

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuing)
2.3.6

Taxation

Current profit tax

Income tax receivables and payables for the current and previous periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered or paid to the tax authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used in the calculation of
values are those that have been adopted or largely adopted until the end of the reporting period in Romania,
the country in which the Group operates and generates taxable income.
The current profit tax related to the elements recognized directly in capital is recognized in capital and not in
the profit and loss account. Management periodically evaluates tax returns in connection with situations where
applicable tax rules are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions when necessary.
Deferred profit tax
Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet debt method with respect to temporary differences
between the taxable base of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and their net carrying amount
for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.
Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences with the following exceptions:
•
When the deferred income tax liability results from the initial recognition of goodwill or the recognition of
receivables or payables, resulting from transactions other than business combinations, and at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit;
•
Temporary differences resulting from investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
ventures, when the cancellation of temporary differences can be controlled and it is likely that temporary
differences will not be resumed in the foreseeable future.
Deferred income tax receivables are recognized for all temporary differences to carry forward unused tax
losses and credits to the extent that there will be future taxable profit against which unused tax losses and
credits may be used with the following exceptions:
•
When the deferred income tax claim related to deductible temporary differences results from the initial
recognition of receivables or liabilities resulting from transactions other than business combinations, and
at the time of the transaction does not affect either the accounting profit or the taxable profit;
•
With respect to deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that temporary
differences are likely to reverse in the foreseeable future and the taxable profit will be available in relation
to which temporary differences can be used.
The carrying amount of deferred income tax receivables is revised at the balance sheet date and reduced
accordingly if there is no longer any possibility of taxable profits allowing the use of part or all of the deferred
income tax claim to be available. Unrecognized deferred income tax receivables are reconsidered at the
balance sheet date and are recognized to the extent that there is a possibility of taxable profits that would
allow the deferred income tax claim to be settled.
Deferred income tax receivables and liabilities are measured at the tax rates expected to be applicable for
the period in which the asset is realized or the debt is settled based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been adopted or largely adopted by at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred income tax on items recognized outside the income statement is recognized outside the income
statement. Deferred income tax items are recognized, depending on the nature of the underlying transaction,
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

13

AUTONOM SERVICES SA
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
All amounts in RON, unless specified otherwise

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuing)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legal right to offset current tax receivables with current
tax liabilities and if the tax is related to the same taxable entity and is levied by the same tax authority.
Sales taxes (VAT and other similar taxes)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized at net tax, except for the following:
• When a tax arising from the acquisition of assets or services is not recoverable from the tax authority,
in which case the tax is recognized in the acquisition cost of the asset or as part of the expense, as
the case may be;
• Receivables and payables are presented with taxes included in value.
The net amount of the tax to be recovered or paid to the tax authority is included in the amount of receivables
or payables from the statement of financial position.
2.3.7

Rental fleet and other own use property, plant and equipment

The car fleet, the equipment rented, as well as other tangible assets for own use are valued at the net cost
of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
The cost consists of the purchase price and costs directly attributable.
The assets that are the object of operational leasing contracts and lease agreements are presented in the
balance sheet depending on the nature of the asset.
Subsequent costs are included in the carrying amount of the asset or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will revert to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the income statement at the time of their occurrence.
Depreciation method
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset as follows:

Years
4
3-10
3-24

Rental Vehicles*
Leased equipment and machinery
Other furniture, fittings and equipment

*The car is depreciated on a straight-line basis up to their estimated residual values on the date provided for
the disposal, after the conditions anticipated on the used car market have been taken into account.
The residual values, the duration of use and the methods of depreciation of the car fleet, equipment and other
tangible assets are reviewed at the end of each financial year or during it if necessary and adjusted
prospectively.
An item in the category of property, plant and equipment is derecognised when it is sold or when it is no
longer expected to obtain future economic benefits from its use or sale. Any gain or loss arising on the
derecognition of an asset (calculated as the difference between the net proceeds from the sale and the
remaining carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is recognizable.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuing)
Upon termination of leases or leases and once the Group acquires ownership of these assets and
Management decides to sell them, the relevant assets are reclassified as “Inventories” at net book value in
accordance with IAS 16 paragraph 68A and receipts are recognized income in accordance with IFRS 15.
The depreciation policy of depreciable leased assets (under contracts with the option to transfer ownership
or purchase) is in accordance with the Group's normal depreciation policy for similar assets.
2.3.8

Investment property

Real estate investments are initially valued at cost, including transaction costs. After the initial recognition,
real estate investments are highlighted at historical cost, less accumulated depreciation and depreciation.
Real estate investments are derecognised either when they have been sold (e.g. on the date the consignee
obtains control) or when they are permanently taken out of use or no future economic benefits are expected
from their sale.
The difference between the net income from sales and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in profit
or loss during the derecognition period. The equivalent value to be included in the gain or loss resulting from
the derecognition of investment property is determined in accordance with the requirements for determining
the transaction price in IFRS 15.
Transfers are made only to (or from) the real estate investment where a change of use occurs. For a transfer
from real estate investments in the property category occupied by the owner, the cost considered for
subsequent accounting is the fair value at the date of the change of use. If the property occupied by the owner
becomes a real estate investment, the Group accounts for these properties in accordance with the policy
stated in property, plant and equipment until the date of change of use.
2.3.9

Leases

The Group assesses at the beginning of the contract whether it is a lease or contains a lease, i.e. whether
the contract confers the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.
The group as lender
The Group applies a unified recognition and measurement approach to all leases, except short-term leases
and leases for low-value assets - see below. The Group recognizes liabilities arising from leases to make
lease payments and the right to use the assets, which is the right to use the underlying assets.
•

Right of use assets

The group recognizes the right to use the asset from the start date of the contract (e.g. the date on which the
underlying asset is available for use).
The right to use assets is measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and is
adjusted by any re-measurers of leasing liabilities.
The cost of the right to use the assets includes the value of the recognized lease liabilities, the initial cost at
the date of occurrence, as well as the lease payments made on or before the commencement date, less the
leasing incentives received.

15

AUTONOM SERVICES SA
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
All amounts in RON, unless specified otherwise

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuing)

Unless the Group is reasonably certain to acquire ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term,
the recognized rights of use are impaired on a straight-line basis over the shorter estimated useful life between
the useful life and the lease term. The period varies between 1.5 years and 4 years.
If the ownership of the leased asset (vehicles and equipment) is transferred to the Group at the end of the
lease or the cost reflects the exercise of the call option, then the right to use the assets (for vehicles and
equipment) is depreciated using the depreciation method and estimates. used for similar assets held - see
paragraph 2.3.7.
Similar to its own leasing fleet, upon termination of the lease or lease and the management's decision to sell
the vehicles, the relevant assets from the right to use the assets are reclassified to “Stocks” at their carrying
amount, in accordance with IAS 16 paragraph 68A, most often simultaneously with the moment when the
vehicle becomes the property of the Group.
The assets related to the right of use are subject to depreciation, presented in note 2.3.11. See accounting
policies in the Impairment of Non-Financial Assets section.
•

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value
of the lease payments to be made during the lease term. Lease payments include fixed markets (including
fixed market funds), less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
Leasing payments also include the exercise price of a call option, if the Group has reasonable assurance that
it will exercise the option, as well as the payment of penalties for terminating the lease, if the term of the lease
reflects the exercise by the Group of a termination options. Variable leasing payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognized as expenses in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
market occurs.
When calculating the present value of leasing payments, the Group uses the marginal interest rate from the
date of the start of the leasing contract if the default interest rate in the leasing contract is not easy to
determine. After the commencement date, the amount of liabilities arising from the lease is increased to reflect
the increase in interest and reduced for lease payments, in addition, the carrying amount of liabilities arising
from the lease is revalued if there is a change. the duration of the lease, a change in the fixed lease payments
in substance or a change in the valuation of the underlying asset.
•

Subleases

The group is an intermediary lessor in transactions for which a core asset is re-leased by the group to a third
party, and the leasing contract between the main player and the group remains in force.
The Group classifies a sublease as a finance lease or an operating lease as such:
a. if the main lease is a short-term lease, subcontracts are classified as an operating lease;
b. otherwise, the subcontract is classified according to the asset related to the right of use resulting from the
main leasing contract.
For subleases classified as an operating lease, the Group continues to take into account the lease liability
and the asset of the right of use related to the lease agreement like any other lease. Leasing payments
resulting from operating leases are recognized as income on a straight-line basis.
On December 31st 2020, The group does not have ongoing financial subleasing contracts.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuing)
• Short term leases
The Group applies the derogation from the recognition of short-term leases for motor vehicles (i.e. those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the date of commencement and which do not contain
a purchase option). it applies the exemption from the recognition of low value assets in the case of renting
office equipment that is considered to be of low value. Lease payments for short-term leases and leases for
low-value assets are recognized as straight-line expenses over the term of the lease.
The group as lessor
Leases whereby the Group does not significantly transfer all risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. The initial direct costs incurred for negotiating and concluding an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and amortized over the lease term, on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as income in the period in which they are obtained.
The book value of the goods and equipment under operational leasing and of the short-term lease fleet is
depreciated over the lease term or over the useful life of the asset. Depreciation is recognized in the income
statement. Operating lease rates are recognized in the financial statements in their entirety on a straight-line
basis throughout the lease term. The rates are classified and presented in the income category “Operating
leasing income” of the profit and loss account and other elements of the global income. The group leases the
assets of its clients for a period that normally varies between three and four years. In all cases, the leased
assets are returned to the Group at the end of the contractual period.
2.3.10 Borrowing costs

Costs related to loans directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of assets that require
a substantial period of time to be able to be used or sold are added to the cost of those assets. All other costs
related to loans are recognized in the income statement in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with borrowing funds.
2.3.11 Intangible assets

Separate intangible assets are measured at initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination represents their fair value at the acquisition date. After initial recognition, intangible
assets are recorded at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, as
appropriate.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as fixed or indefinite.
Intangible assets with a determined useful life are amortized on a straight-line basis over the economic life
and measured for impairment whenever there are indications of impairment of intangible assets. Depreciation
periods are reviewed at least at the end of each year. Changes in the expected useful lives or in the expected
rate of consumption of future economic benefits incorporated in the assets are accounted for by changing the
method or amortization period, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.
Software, licenses and other similar assets are impaired using the straight-line method over a three-year
period by the Group. Trade relations with customers are amortized over a period of two and a half years.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuing)

An item of intangible assets and any significant part initially recognized are derecognised at the time of
disposal (e.g. on the date on which the beneficiary obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or sale. Any gain or loss on the derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net proceeds from the sale and the net carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income
statement.
2.3.12 Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group analyses the net book values of property, plant and equipment (car fleet
and equipment leased and other property, plant and equipment) and intangible assets, the right to use assets,
real estate investments to determine whether there are indications that these assets have suffered.
impairment losses.
If there are such indications, a formal calculation of the recoverable amount is made, which represents the
maximum between the use value and the fair value, less the costs related to the sale.
The carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount, and the difference is recognized as an expense
(impairment loss) in the consolidated statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income.
In measuring the value in use, estimated future cash flows are discounted at current value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and asset-specific risks for
which future cash flows have not been recognized. adjusted. In determining fair value less costs to sell, an
appropriate valuation method is used. The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and
forecasts, which are prepared separately for each of the Group's cash-generating units to which the individual
assets are allocated. These budgets and projected calculations generally cover a period of five years. A longterm growth rate is calculated and applied to future project cash flows after the fifth year.
An impairment loss recognized for an asset in prior years is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment loss is reversed only to the
extent that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of impairment or amortization, if no impairment had been recognized.
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and when conditions indicate that the carrying amount could be
impaired. Depreciation of goodwill is determined by estimating the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (“UGN”) (or group of UGNs) to which the goodwill refers. When the recoverable amount of the UGN is
less than its carrying amount, then an impairment loss is recognized. Goodwill impairment losses cannot be
reversed in future periods.
2.3.13 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that generates a financial asset for one entity and a financial debt or
equity instrument for another entity.
i)

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurment
At the date of initial recognition, the Group classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at
amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuing)
The classification of financial assets depends both on the Group's business model regarding the management
of financial assets, and on the contractual characteristics of the cash flows related to financial assets. With
the exception of trade receivables that do not have a significant financing component or for which the Group
applied the practical record, the Group initially measured financial assets at fair value plus, in the case of
assets that are not at fair value through profit or loss, costs transaction that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset.
Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied
the practical cost are measured at transaction price determined in accordance with IFRS 15. In order to
classify and measure a financial asset at amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it must generate cash flows that are “principal and interest only payments (NPPD)” related to the principal
amount. This assessment is called the NPPD test and is performed at the instrument level.
The business model of the Group for the management of financial assets refers to the way in which it manages
its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from the collection of contractual cash flows, the sale of financial assets or both.
The group's financial assets are represented only by loans to affiliated parties and trade receivables, cash
and cash equivalents.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the
date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into four categories:
•
Financial assets at amortized cost (debt securities);
•
Financial assets at fair value through other elements of the overall result with the recycling of
accumulated gains and losses (debt securities);
•
Financial assets designated at fair value through other items of comprehensive income, without recycling
cumulative gains and losses on derecognition (equity instruments);
•
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
This category is the most relevant for the Group and represents loans to related parties and trade receivables
and leasing receivables.
The Group measures financial assets at amortized cost if the following conditions are met:
•
Financial assets are held within a business model with the objective of holding financial assets to collect
contractual cash flows;
and
•
The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise to the dates specified in the cash flows which
represent only principal payments and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
listed on an active market. After initial recognition, these financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, less impairment.
The amortized cost is calculated taking into account any reduction or purchase premium and any
commissions and costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuing)
Depreciation based on the effective interest rate is included in the income statement under “Financial income”.
Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
De-recognition
A financial asset (or, if applicable, part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:
• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or
• The Group transferred its rights to receive the cash flows arising from the asset or assumed an
obligation to pay the cash flows received in full, without significant delays, to a pardon, based on a
commitment with identical flows (“ pass-through “) and either (a) the Group has significantly transferred
all risks and rewards related to the asset, or (b) the Group has not transferred and retained significantly
all the risks and rewards related to the asset, but has transferred control on the asset.
When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or entered into a commitment
with identical flows, it assesses whether and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
If it has not transferred and has not retained significantly all the risks and rewards related to the asset, nor
has it transferred control over the asset, it is recognized in proportion to the Group's continued involvement
in the asset. In this case, the Group also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated debt are valued on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.
The continuing involvement in the form of a guarantee on the transferred assets is quantified at the lower of
the initial carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount that the Group may be required to repay.

ii)

Impairment of financial assets

Information on the impairment of financial assets is presented in the following notes:

• Financial instruments risk management
• Trade receivables

(Note 19)
(Note 21)

The Group recognizes a value adjustment for anticipated receivables for all debt securities that are not held
at fair value through profit or loss. Anticipated receivables are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due under the contract and all the cash flows the Group expects to receive, updated to an
approximation of the initial effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit increases that are an integral part of the contractual clauses.
Expected receivables are recognized in two stages: If there was no significant increase in credit risk from the
time of initial recognition, the receivables are measured at 12 months. The value calculated at 12 months
represents the loss from the receivable resulting from non-payment events that may occur in the next 12
months. If there has been a significant increase in credit risk from the time of initial recognition, an impairment
adjustment is required to be measured over the life of the asset, which represents an anticipated loss on
receivables resulting from default events that may occur during the estimated life of a financial asset.
For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified approach to the calculation of anticipated credit losses.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuing)
Therefore, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but recognizes a value adjustment calculated over
the life of anticipated credit losses on each reporting date. The Group has established a matrix of provisions
based on the historical experience of credit losses, adjusted for the specific factors of the debtors and the
economic environment.
Based on historical data on the timely collection of overdue receivables, the Group determined a matrix of
the provision for outstanding receivables at the reporting date, adjusted these provisioning rates for specific
factors for debtors and applied this matrix to update the related provision. expected loss of receivables.
Provisioning rates are based on the analysis of the actual collection of receivables, grouped according to
relevant criteria in two recent time intervals, in order to conclude on the stability and relevance of the
determined loss rates, as described below.
The following steps have been applied to determine historical debt loss rates:
•
•

Identification of open, uncollected invoices at the beginning of each collection interval.
For the above invoices, the determination of the balance receivable at the end of each analysed
interval Expected losses from receivables are determined as uncollected amounts at the end of a collection
interval, applying the assumption that the amounts collected after each analysed interval can improve the
loss rate only marginally.
•
Debt loss rates are calculated for receivables grouped by seniority, as a ratio between the amounts
uncollected at the end of the analysis interval and the amounts outstanding at the beginning of the analysis
period, for the same invoice population.
•
The estimated average loss percentage for 12 months is used to determine the provisioning matrix
at the reporting date.

The Group considers that the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly if its maturity is
exceeded by more than 90 days.

However, in some cases, the Group may consider a financial asset to be provisional when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is in danger of not receiving the full outstanding contractual amounts
before taking into account any credit improvements held by the Group. A financial asset is cancelled when
there are no reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual cash flow.
iii ) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate.
All financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value and, in the case of assessed financial liabilities, are
at amortized cost, net of directly attributable trading costs.
The Group's financial liabilities include only trade payables measured at amortized cost (trade and other
payables, as well as loans and receivables).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuing)
Subsequent events
Loans and borrowings
This is the most relevant category for the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and loans are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (RDE) method. Gains and losses
are recognized in the income statement when the liabilities are derecognized, as well as through the RDE
amortization process.
The amortized cost is calculated taking into account any reduction or acquisition premium and any
commissions and costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. RDE amortization is included as
financing costs in the event of profit or loss.
Trade and other payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group before the end of the
financial year and which are not paid. All amounts are unsecured. Trade payables and other payables are
presented as current payables unless payment is due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are
initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.
Trade payables and other payables with a maturity of 12 monts or less are not discounted.
Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation due is debited, cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial debt is replaced by another financial obligation from the same creditor in
substantive terms! different or if the terms of an existing obligation are substantially changed, such an
exchange or change is treated as derecognition of the original debt and recognition of a new debt. The
difference between the respective book values is recognized in the statement of profit or loss account.
iv) Offsetting OF financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amounts are presented in the statement of
financial position when the Group has the legal right to offset the recognized amounts and intends either to
settle them on a net basis or to recover the asset and settle the debt simultaneous.
2.3.14 Inventories

Inventories, which include vehicles for resale, spare parts, consumables and materials in the form of small
inventory items, are presented at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Upon termination of the leasing
or rental contracts, the relevant assets become the property of the Group and are reclassified from “Property,
plant and equipment to the fleet” or “right to use assets” to “Stocks” at book value. The net realizable value is
estimated based on the selling price related to the normal activity less the estimated costs for the sale.
When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognized as an expense and
reported as a component of cost of sales in the statement of comprehensive income in the period before
which the related income is recognized. The value of any reductions in inventories at net realizable value and
all inventories are recognized as an expense in the same component of the consolidated statement of profit
and loss and other comprehensive income as consumption of that inventory during the period in which the
reduction occurs. or loss, at the line “Other (losses) / gains - net”
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuing)
2.3.15 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash, cash equivalents and short-term deposits in the statement of financial position include cash and cash
equivalents and cash deposits.
For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits
with a maturity of less than 3 months, which are subject to insignificant risks of changes in value, net of bank
overdrafts because they are considered an integral part. of the Group's cash management.
2.3.16 Prepayments

Prepayments are carried at cost less provision for impairment. A prepayment is classified as non-current
when the goods or services relating to the prepayment are expected to be obtained after one year.
Prepayments to acquire current assets are transferred to the carrying amount of the asset once the Group
has obtained control of the asset and it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the asset
will flow to the Group.
Prepayments to acquire property, plant and equipment are classified as other receivables and current assets.
Other prepayments are written off to profit or loss when the goods or services relating to the prepayments
are received. If there is an indication that the assets, goods or services relating to a prepayment will not be
received, the carrying value of the prepayment is written down accordingly and a corresponding impairment
loss is recognized in profit or loss.

2.3.17 Equity

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. External costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are
presented as a deduction from equity from receipts. Any excess of the fair value of the price received over
the par value of the shares issued is recognized as additional paid-in capital.
Dividends
The Group recognizes a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders when the distribution
has been authorized and is therefore no longer at the discretion of the Group.
According to corporate laws in Romania, a distribution is authorized when it is approved by shareholders. A
corresponding amount is recognized directly in equity.
2.3.18 Provisions

General
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a current obligation (legal or implicit) generated by a previous
event, it is likely that an outflow of resources incorporating economic benefits is required to settle the
obligation and the value of the obligation can be estimated reliably. If the Group expects a provision to be
reimbursed in full or in part, for example, under an insurance contract, reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset, but only if reimbursement is almost certain. The expense related to the provision is presented
in the profit and loss account at the net value of any reimbursement.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuing)
If the effect of the time value of money is significant, provisions are discounted using a current Pre-tax rate
that reflects, where applicable, the specific risks of the debt. When the discount is applied, the increase in the
provision as a result of the passage of time is recognized as a financial cost.
Onerous contracts
A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the benefits expected to be obtained by the Group from
a contract are less than the unavoidable cost of fulfilling its obligations under the contract. The provision is
valued at the present value of the minimum between the expected cost of terminating the contract and the
expected net cost of continuing the contract. prior to the provision of a provision, the Group recognizes any
impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.
2.3.19 Employee benefits

During the normal course of business, the Group makes payments on behalf of its employees for pensions
(defined contribution plans), health insurance, payroll taxes which are calculated according to the statutory
quotas in force during the year, based on gross salaries. Food allowances, travel expenses and holiday
allowances are also calculated in accordance with the local legislation in force.
The cost of these payments is induced in the consolidated statement of profit and loss account and other
elements of the overall result in the same period as the related salary cost. Expected debts for holiday
allowances are recognized if there are unperformed leave, according to local legislation.
The Group does not operate any other pension plan or post-employment benefits and, as a result, has no
pension obligations.
2.4. Changes in accounting policies as of January 1st 2020
The accounting policies adopted are in line with those of the previous financial year, except for the following
amended International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) which were adopted by the Group on January
1st 2020.
The Group did not adopt other standards, interpretations or amendments that were issued early but were not
applicable.
• Conceptual Framework in IFRS standards
The International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB1”) issued the revised Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting on March 29, 2018. The Conceptual Framework establishes a comprehensive set of
concepts for financial reporting, standard setting, guidance for financial statements in the development of
accounting policies. consistency and assistance for users in understanding and interpreting standards. The
IASB also issued a separate attached document, Amendments to the Frame References! Conceptual in the
IFRS standards, which establishes the modifications of the affected standards in order to update the
references of the revised Conceptual Framework. The purpose of the document is to support the transition
to the revised Conceptual Framework for the entity that develops accounting policies using the Conceptual
Framework when no IFRS standard applies to a particular transaction. For those who prepare financial
statements and develop accounting policies based on the Conceptual Framework, the document enters into
force for annual periods starting on or after January 1st 2020.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuing)
•

IFRS 3: Business combinations (Amendments)

The IASB has issued amendments to the definition of an enterprise (Amendments to IFRS 3) in order to
address the challenges that arise when an entity determines whether it has acquired an enterprise or a group
of assets. The amendments are in force for business combinations for which the acquisition date is in the
annual reporting period starting on or after January 1st 2020 or later and for asset acquisitions occurring on
or after the beginning of that period, and early application is permitted. This change had no impact on the
current financial year
•

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors: Definition of “Significant”)

The amendments clarify the definition of the term “significant” and how it should be applied.
The new definition states that “information is material if its omission, concealment or misrepresentation could,
in a reasonable scenario, influence users' economic decisions based on financial statements that present
financial information about a specific entity.” Also, the explanations accompanying the definition have been
improved. The amendments also ensure the consistent definition of the term “significant” in all IFRS
Standards. This amendment had no impact on the current financial year.
• Reference interest rate reform: IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 (Amendments)

In September 2019, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 concluding the first stage
of its business to respond to the effects of the Interbank Offered Interest Rate (“IBOR”) reform on financial
reporting. The published amendments address issues that have an impact on financial reporting prior to
replacing an IBOR with an alternative reference rate and address the implications of the specific requirements
for the application of hedge accounting in IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement, which requires a predictive analysis. The amendments provide for temporary
exemptions applicable to all hedging relationships that are directly affected by the IBOR reform, which allow
for the continuation of hedge accounting in the period of uncertainty before replacing an IBOR with an almost
risk-free alternative reference rate. There are also amendments to IFRS 7 financial instruments:
Information to be provided on further information on the uncertainty resulting from the IBOR reform. The
changes take effect for annual periods beginning on or after January 1st 2020 and must be applied
retroactively. The second stage (exposure draft) focuses on issues that could affect financial reporting when
an existing interest rate benchmark is replaced by a risk-free interest rate (RFR). This change has had no
impact. on the current financial year.
NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT IN FORCE FOR THE
FINANCIAL YEAR STARTED ON JANUARY 1st 2019 AND HAVE NOT BEEN ADOPTED EARLY
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Classification of Debts as Current or Long-Term Debts
(Amendments)
The changes take effect for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1st 2022 and early
application is permitted. However, in response to the COV1D-19 pandemic, the Council postponed the date
of entry into force by one year, respectively to January 1st 2023, in order to give companies more time to
implement the required classification changes. The amendments aim to promote consistency in the
application of classification requirements by helping companies determine whether, in the statement of
financial position, liabilities and other payment obligations with uncertain settlement dates should be classified
as current or long-term. The amendments affect the presentation of liabilities in the statement of financial
position and do not change the existing requirements regarding the measurement or timing of the recognition
of any asset, liability, income or expense, nor the information that entities present regarding these items. The
amendments also clarify the debt classification requirements that can be settled by the company by issuing
equity instruments. These changes have not yet been adopted by the EU. Management has assessed that
the application of the changes will not have any impact on the Group's financial position or performance.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuing)
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in associates and joint ventures:
Transactions in the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and the associate or joint
venture (Amendment)
The amendments refer to an inconsistency identified between the requirements of IFRS 10 and those of IAS
28 in connection with the sale or contribution of an investor in favour of the associate or joint venture. The
main consequence of the changes is that a total gain or loss is recognized when the transaction involves an
enterprise (whether or not it is in the form of a subsidiary). A partial gain or loss is recognized when a
transaction involves assets that do not represent an enterprise, even if they are in the form of a subsidiary.
In December 2015, the IASB postponed indefinitely the date of entry into force of this amendment pending
the results of a research project on accounting using the equity method. The changes were not adopted by
the EU. Management has assessed that the application of the changes will not have any impact on the
Group's financial position or performance.
IFRS 3 Business combinations; IAS 16 Property, plant and equipment; IAS 37 Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets, and the 2018-2020 annual improvements (Amendments)
Changes take effect for annual periods beginning on or after January 1st 2022 and early application is
permitted. The IASB has issued amendments with a reduced scope to the following IFRS standards:
➢
➢

➢
➢

IFRS 3 Business combinations (Amendments) update a reference in IFRS 3 to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting, without changing the accounting requirements for business
combinations.
IAS 16 Tangible fixed assets (Amendments) the amendments prohibit a company from deducting from
the costs of property, plant and equipment the amounts received from the sale of the items produced,
while the company is preparing the asset for operation. Instead, a company will recognize these sales
receipts and the related cost in the profit or loss account.
IAS 37 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets (Amendments) changes indicate
exactly what costs a company includes when determining the cost of performing a contract in order to
assess whether a contract is onerous.
The annual improvements 2018-2020 bring minor changes to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standards, IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, IAS 41 Agriculture and the
Illustrative Examples accompanying IFRS 16 Leases

The changes have not yet been adopted by the EU. Management has assessed that the application of the
changes will not have any impact on the Group's financial position or performance.
IFRS 16 Leases for concessions granted as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic (Amendments)
The amendments apply retrospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on or after June 1, 2020. Early
application is permitted, including in financial statements that have not yet been authorized to be issued by
May 28, 2020. The IASB has amended the standard by granting exemptions to tenants. from the application
of the requirements of IFRS 16 regarding the treatment of amendments to leases for leases that arise as a
direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic. The amendments provide a practical solution for tenants to
account for any change in lease payments resulting from the lease concession that arose as a consequence
of COVID-19 in the same way that it would record the change, according to IFRS 16, if it were not a change.
of the lease, the facilities can be applied only if all the following conditions are met:
➢

The change in lease payments results in a revised consideration for the lease that is substantially
similar or lower! for the leasing contract immediately prior to the amendment;
➢
Any reduction in lease payments only affects payments initially due on or before June 30, 2021.
➢
There have been no substantive changes to the other terms and conditions of the leasing contract.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuing)
Management has assessed that the application of the changes will not have any impact on the Group's
financial position or performance.
Reform of the interest rate reference index - Second stage - IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS
16 (Amendments)
In August 2020, the IASB published the Interest Rate Reference Index Reform - Stage Two - Amendments
to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16, complementing its work to address the effects of the IBOR
reform. The amendments provide temporary exemptions that address the effects on financial reporting when
IBOR is replaced by an almost risk-free alternative (RFR). The amendments provide, in particular, for a
practical solution when accounting for changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows related
to financial assets and liabilities, requiring the adjustment of the effective interest rate - treatment similar to
a! a reference rate update event in the contract. The amendments also provide for exemptions from the
termination of the hedging relationship, including a temporary exemption from the need to separately identify
the hedged component when an RFR instrument is designated in a hedging relationship against a risk
component. in addition, the amendments to IFRS 4 are intended to allow insurers that continue to apply IAS
39 to obtain the same exemptions as those provided for in amendments to IFRS 9. There are also
amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures to allows users of financial statements1 to
understand the effects of the IBOR reform on financial instruments and risk management strategy. Changes
take effect for annual periods beginning on or after January 1st 2021 and early application is permitted.
Although the application is retrospective, the entities do not have to make restatements for the previous
periods. Management has assessed that the application of the changes will not have any impact on the
Group's financial position or performance.

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires its management to issue reasoning,
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts presented for income, expenses, assets and liabilities, as
well as the information presented that accompanies them, and contingent liabilities. However, the uncertainty
surrounding these estimates and assumptions could result in a significant future adjustment to the carrying
amount of the assets or liabilities.
Due to the uncertainty inherent in all measurement processes, these estimates are continuously reviewed.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any
future periods affected.
JUDGEMENTS
In the process of applying the Group's policies, the management used the following reasoning, which has the
most significant effect on the amounts presented in the financial statements:
Classification of leasing contracts - The group as lessor
The group has entered into leases for its car portfolio. The Group determined, on the basis of an assessment
of the terms and conditions of the agreements, such as the lease term that does not constitute a significant
part of the economic life of the vehicles and the current value of the minimum lease payments, which does
not amount to the fair value of the vehicle. , that it retains all the risks and benefits of the ownership right over
the motor vehicles and accounts for the contracts in the form of operational leasing.
The same reasoning applies to the equipment contract portfolio.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING REASONS, ESTIMATES AND HYPOTHESES ( continuing)
ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
The main assumptions about the future and other important causes of the uncertainty of the estimates at the
reporting date, which present a significant risk of causing a significant adjustment of the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the next financial year, are presented in continuing. The group based its assumptions
and estimates taking into account economic and market conditions at the date of preparation of the financial
statements. However, existing circumstances and assumptions regarding future developments may change
as a result of changes in the market or circumstances beyond the Group's control. These changes are
reflected in the hypotheses when they occur.
Review of useful lives and residual values of rental fleet assets

The basis for the depreciation of an item in the Group's fleet of motor vehicles leased under an operating
lease is the value of the acquisition cost less the estimated residual value, in combination with the estimated
useful life of the asset.
Management must assess the residual value and useful life of an asset at least at the end of each financial
year and assess whether specific impairment adjustments are necessary. Depending on the outcome of these
analyses, changes are accounted for as a change in accounting estimates reflected in forward-looking
amortization or as an adjustment for specific impairment.
The determination of any adjustment for impairment in respect of assets that are the subject of operating
leases (car fleet) depends primarily on how the recoverable amount is affected by the residual value that can
be obtained at the end of the lease. These estimates could have a significant impact on the carrying amount
of the assets leased to customers (car fleet) and on the amortization recognized in the income statement.
The Group closely monitors changes in residual values used in operating leases, both for the car fleet owned
by the Group and for the car fleet resulting from leases classified as assets related to the right of use (those
with transfer of ownership or purchase option).
Residual values are estimated based on sales value at the end of contracts and are largely influenced by the
number of km travelled by the car, manufacturer, vehicle condition, as well as the situation of second-hand
vehicle markets at the time the vehicles are sold, etc. The Group reviewed the residual values of its leased
fleet on December 31st 2020 and earlier, on an interim basis, taking into account both internal and external
factors, including the impact of pandemics on the second-hand market.
Similar estimates are made for vehicles purchased under leases (the Group as lessee) for which the Group
has the right to take ownership of the assets at the end of the leasing period and intends to exercise these
rights. These rights of use assets are depreciated on a policy similar to that described above, with similar
estimates regarding the residual value and the estimated useful life of the assets.
On December 31st 2020, the residual value is between 15% and 57% (2019: 31% and 63%). The additional
depreciation resulting from the revision of the residual value is RON 4,600 thousand lei.
Adjustments for depreciation of vehicles in the rental fleet
In its annual assessment of potential asset impairment indices, the Group considers both external and internal
sources of information. If there are indications of impairment, an analysis is performed to assess whether the
carrying amount of the asset (fleet of cars owned or presented as a right of use) exceeds the recoverable
amount, the latter being represented by the higher of fair value. little selling costs and usage value. Fair value
less costs to sell is calculated based on data available in the market from firm sales transactions, at market
value, for similar assets or market values that can be observed less costs that cannot be avoided with asset
disposal activities.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING REASONS, ESTIMATES AND HYPOTHESES (continuing)
The value in use is determined by the present value of the expected future cash flows to be obtained from
the cash-generating object or unit.
During 2020, the Group recorded a net impairment adjustment of RON 1,407 thousand covering both its own
fleet and the vehicles purchased under the leasing contracts (assets related to the right of use).
For more details please see the Note 14.
Inventories – cars - net realizable value

Stocks are valued at their net realizable value. These values are determined on the basis of available data
from binding sales transactions, conducted under conditions of full competition, for similar assets or
observable market prices, less incremental costs for the disposal of the asset. After reclassification from
property, plant and equipment or the right to use assets, impairment adjustments are recorded under Other
income.
Impairment losses on trade receivables
Measuring the indicator of anticipated debt losses for financial assets is an area that requires the use of
complex models and estimates of future economic conditions and the behaviour of commercial credit (for
example, the probability of giving rise to probability of default in customers and losses resulting from them).
Reasoning is required on the part of management to apply appropriate estimates and to establish arguments
for measuring anticipated debt losses.
The methodology and assumptions, including the forecasts regarding the future economic conditions, are
periodically analysed by the management. Details of the assumptions and estimation techniques used to
measure anticipated credit losses for receivables are detailed in the “Credit Risk” section of Note 19.
Impairment models are subject to annual review to ensure that they remain current and appropriate for the
purpose and use and performance continues to meet the Group's standards.
4.

COMBINATIONS OF ENTERPRISES

Autonom Services acquired BT Operational Leasing SA on June 30, 2018 with the initial purpose of merging
the two entities and to benefit from synergies. Due to the operational reasons related to the different days in
which the two entities operate, which required the change of vehicle identity cards (administrative procedures
to be performed by state authorities and would have required the immobilization of the entire fleet of BT
Operational Leasing SA for a few days), BT Operational Leasing SA continued its own operations until
January 1st 2021 - see below.
However, from the date of acquisition, the management's intention was to gradually transfer the customers
to Autonom Services (the parent entity), as the leasing contracts in the subsidiary are concluded.
The price paid for a percentage of 99.85% of the shares was in the amount of RON 28,295,325.
Starting with 17.09.2020 Autonom Services became the sole shareholder of BT Operational Leasing SA,
repurchasing the shares held by minorities.
On the date of preparation of these financial statements, the project of merger by absorption of BT Operational
Leasing by Autonom Services SA was approved on 01.01.2021, the company BT Operational Leasing being
deleted from the Trade Register starting with 04.03.2021.
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5. ADDITIONAL SERVICES REVENUE
2020
Insurance revenues and tolls
Maintenance income and other contractual components
Total

2019

41,764,754 36,954,290
10,441,188 14,431,816
52,205,942 51,386,106

6. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2020
Income from penalties
Car damage compensation income
Other income
Other income from renting
Total

2019

4,811,985 8,236,789
3,420,842 1,947,898
11,239,301 9,506,302
96,053
335,658
19,568,181 20,026,647

* For comparability, the amount of car damage compensation was deducted in 2019 from the total income from
penalties.
Other revenues refer to various amounts, re-invoiced to customers and to fuel re-invoicing and various reinvoicing to affiliated companies.

7. FLEET EXPENSES
2020
Fuel
Spare parts expenses
Expenses for repairs, maintenance and reconditioning
Expenditure on operating the car fleet
Insurance expenses
Expenses with other consumables
Expenses with registration of motor vehicles and other
commissions
Expenses for vehicle sanitation
Parking fees
Total

2019

5,048,746 7,905,978
12,452,112 15,755,743
14,432,542 15,917,766
5,446,063 4,523,583
9,732,614 9,967,708
154,837
284,767
192,191 1,798,595
962,517 1,614,871
96,647
261,717
48,518,269 58,030,728

8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
2020

2019

Salaries
Social contributions and other taxes
Expenses with lunch vouchers

24,336,275 26,634,045
680,902
740,115
1,059,256
856,046

Total

26,076,433 28,230,206
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9. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
2020
Telecommunications expenses
Headquarters expenses
Sales and marketing expenses
Other administrative expenses
Total

457,117
526,035
763,644
343,777
2,090,573

2019
593,185
538,134
1,370,220
281,562
2,783,101

10. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
2020
Other services performed by third parties (Note 10.1)
Commissions and fees
Transport of goods and personnel
Travel expenses
Bank fees and similar
Other similar taxes and expenses
Miscellaneous expenses
Miscellaneous expenses
Other expenses
Total

4,324,704
529,029
330,177
355,052
922,371
3,962,808
156,828
1,091,404
317,912
11,990,285

2019
2,491,900
341,760
2,544,260
869,134
1,033,625
2,856,896
795,892
887,011
216,882
12,037,360

10.1 OTHER THIRD PARTY SERVICES
2020
Training courses
IT services
Legal services
Medical services
Protocol
Audit and consulting
Security
Other services
Total

2019

227,921
1,206,682
186,547
152,713
166,106
848,174
121,817
1,414,744
4,324,704

384,915
479,528
364,161
172,401
69,789
688,223
117,013
215,870
2,491,900

Notes

2020

11. OTHER LOSSES / (GAINS) - NET

Net (Gain) / loss transfer of fixed capital assets
Inventory adjustment
Reverse inventory adjustments
Net adjustment for other provisions
Depreciation of fixed assets
Depreciation of trade liabilities
Total

20

21

2019

1,070,716
- 521,809
(668,126)
- (87,449)
(3,959)
1,637,542 6,968,613
969,416 8,469,730

Inventory adjustments represent the amount recognized from the measurement at minimum value between
cost and net realizable value for the machines to be sold.
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12. FINANCE COST/INCOME
12.1. – Finance costs

2020
Interest expense from loans
Interest on lease liabilities under IFRS 16
Foreign exchange losses, net
Total financial costs

2019

9,794,227 7,224,016
9,052,388 7,523,191
6,427,537 6,979,029
25,274,151 21,726,236

The variation of interest expenses from 2019 to 2020 takes into account the higher number of vehicles for
which Autonom Services obtained financing On December 31st 2020 and the interest paid for the bonds
issued in November 2019.
Loss on exchange rate differences refers to the fact that both entities have loans in EUR, and Autonom
Services has a large balance of debts and leases, most of which are denominated in EUR, which are
revalued in the functional currency at the end of the period. While the average EUR / RON exchange rate
had a steady increase in 2019 and 2020, the spot rate on December 31st 2020 increased significantly
compared to the previous year.
December
31st 2020
4.8694
1.9%
4.8371
1.9%

Exchange rate / Date
Spot
Variation
Average
Variation

December 31st
2019
4.7793
0.1%
4.7452
1.9%

12.2. Finance income

Interest income
Total finance income

2020

2019

1,329,928
1,329,928

507,193
507,193

13. INCOME TAX
The main components of corporate income tax expenses for the years ended December 31 st 2020 and
December 31st 2019 are:
2020
2019
Current profit tax:
Current income tax charge:

(1,049,513) (3,083,846)

Deferred income tax:
In connection with the initial recognition and reversal of temporary differences
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss and other
comprehensive income
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13. PROFIT TAX (continuing)
A reconciliation between the fiscal expense and the product of the accounting profit multiplied by the internal
taxation rate of Romania for the years ended On December 31st 2020 and 2019 is the following:

2020
Accounting profit before income tax
At statutory income tax rate of 16%
Non-taxable income
Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes
Legal reserves deduction
Other profit tax reductions
Exemptions for sponsorships
Income tax reported in the statement of profit and loss account and other
comprehensive income

Reconciliation of deferred tax l;iabilities, net

Notes

2019

9,324,259 19,791,406
(1,491,881) (3,166,625)
139,589
(882,774) (822,416)
45,223
140,429
212,145
756,697
727,100
(2,117,287) (2,225,226)

2020

2019

January 1st

(7,022,214) (7,880,834)

Tax / credit expenses during the period recognized in profit or loss

(1,067,774)

December 31st

(8,089,988) (7,022,214)

858,620

Deferred income tax
Reconciliation of deferred income tax with the corresponding elements in the statement of comprehensive
income:

Statement of financial
position
December 31st
2020
Property,plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Impairment of trade receivables
Deferred income
Others
Deferred tax benefit

(9,831,769)
932,775
608,065
200,941

Net deferred tax liabilities

(8,089,988

December
31st
2019

Statement of
comprehensive
income

2020

2019

(9,249,530) 582,239 1,747,884
(372,288) (372,288) (399,488)
1,226,131 293,356 (1,022,188)
881,448 273,383 (881,448)
492,025 291,084 (303,380)
1,067,774 (858,620)
(7,022,214)

The Group offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities refer to corporate income
taxes levied by the same tax authority.
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
On December 31st 2020, the gross book value of fully depreciated fixed assets that were still in use is RON 43,666,072 (December 31 st 2019; 271,480 RON).

Lands
Cost
January 1st 2019
Additions
Transfers in inventories
Transfer to the right to use of the assets
Transfer to real estate investments
Balance on December 31st 2019

Buildings
564,542
564,542

Additions
Transfer in inventories
Transfer to other categories of fixed assets
Transfer in inventories
Disposals
Balance on December 31st 2020

34

Furniture and
fittings

710,195
710,195
-

Rental fleet and
rental
Constructions in
equipment
progress (CIP)

2,530,391
695,397
1,834,994

-

-

564,542

-

585,881
774,208
600,548
2,594,535

502,114,760
51,064,567
58,946,260
250,814,510
243,418,557

Total

- 505,919,888
- 51,064,567
- 58,946,260
- 251,509,907
710,195
- 245,818,093

89,228,205

797,208

87,443,724
5,901,896
239,301,142

(774,208)
23,000

90,611,294
87,443,724
6,502,444
242,483,219
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continuing)
Vehicle fleet and
Lands
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
January 1st 2019
Depreciation expense
Depreciation expense – related to the branch vehicle fleet
Transfer in inventories
to other categories of fixed assets
Transfer to the right to use of the assets
Disposals
Balance on December 31st 2019
Amortisation expense
Depreciation expense
Transfer in inventories
Disposals
Balance on December 31st 2020
Net book value on December 31st 2019
Net book value on December 31st 2020

Furniture and
fittings

Buildings
-

-

564,542
564,542

251,448
119,682

974,571
741,267

371,130
-

-

Rental fleet and
Constructions in
rental
equipment
progress (CIP)

-

1,715,838

77,849,160
39,449,631
5,672,422
22,777,144
52,440,025
47,754,044

894,461
475,691
2,134,607
119,156
459,928

44,644*44 i
190,618
52,363,114
3,071,357
37,154,631
195,664,513
202,146,510

-

Total
79,075,179
40,310,580
5,672,422
22,777,144
371,130
52,440,025
49,469,882

45,538,901
190,618
52,363,114
3,547,049
39,289,239
- 196,348,211
23,000 203,193,980

As of December 31st 2019, out of the total car fleet and rental equipment, RON 23,792 thousand represents rental equipment, and RON 171,874 thousand represents
vehicles from the rental fleet.
As of December 31st 2020, out of the total car fleet and rental equipment, RON 30,267 thousand represents rental equipment, and RON 171,880 thousand represents
vehicles from the rental fleet
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continuing)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment of subsidiary
On December 31st 2019, the management of the Autonomous Group acknowledged that the evolution of the
profitability of the BTOL subsidiary due to the loss of contracts and the decrease of the market value of certain
vehicles for sale could indicate that certain fixed assets of the subsidiary may register a loss of value.
As a result, a depreciation analysis for the BTOL car fleet was performed, at item level, taking into account
the fair value of each vehicle in the car fleet as of December 31 st 2019 compared to their book value on that
date and was recorded a depreciation of RON 5,672,422.
During 2020, following the management analysis, specific depreciation provisions were registered in the
amount of RON 1,407,622 at the level of the entire car fleet - including those presented in the right of use
category. Regarding the value adjustment recorded at the level of the car fleet of the BTOL subsidiary, the
management considered it appropriate to maintain the adjustment, without having any indications that this
value adjustment should be modified.
The summary of depreciation, amortization and impairment of fixed assets for the financial years 2020 and
2019 is included in the following table:

Depreciation of vehicles in the car fleet and rented equipment
Amortization of the right to use assets
Impairment of the right to use assets and vehicles in the car fleet
Depreciation and adjustment for depreciation of vehicles in the car
fleet and equipment

Depreciation of real estate investments
Depreciation of buildings
Depreciation of other assets
Depreciation of customer relations
Depreciation of other fixed assets
Depreciation, amortization and impairment of other fixed assets
Total

2020

2019

44,644,441
58,838,712
1,407,622

39,449,631
5,672,422
40,166,296

104,890,775

85,288,349

59,869
2,529,444
894,461
2,326,800
83,452
5,894,025

85,764
2,112,611
860,258
2,496,800
114,942
5,670,375

110,784,800

90,958,724

As of December 31st 2020, the amounts pledged are RON 493,762,076 - acquisition value (December 31st
2019: 481,421,108 RON).
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
Set out below are the carrying amounts of the Company’s right-of-use assets and lease liabilities and the
movements during the period:

Right-of-use assets
Vehicles and
equipment

Buildings
On January 1st 2019
Recognized upon adoption of IFRS 16
Additions
Depreciation expense
Transfer to inventories (net)
Disposals
Interest expenses
Early termination of leasing agreements
Exchange rate
Payments
On December 31st 2019
Of which:
Current
Non-current

On January 1st 2020
Additions
Amortisation expense
Depreciation expense
Transfer in inventories (net)
Transfers
Interest expenses
Early termination of leasing
agreements
Exchange rate
Payments
On December 31st 2020
Of which:
Current
Non-current

Total

199,439,415
187,872,777
(40,166,296)
(25,315,535)
(3,766,637)
318,063,726

6,207,112
745,499
(2,112,611)
(21,310)
_
4,818,690

Lease
liabilities

205,646,527
188,618,277
(42,278,907)
(25,315,535)
(21,310)
(3,766,637)
322,882,415

155,041,364
6,576,645
188,618,277
7,523,191
(3,766,637)
1,840,155
(93,465,179)
262,367,816
81,487,710
180,880,106

Right-of-use assets
Vehicles and
Buildings
equipment
4,818,690
318,063,726
1,458,817
104,587,315
(2,529,444)
(58,838,712)
(1,217,003)
(40,267,789)
(30,994)
(851,403)
-

Total
322,882,415
106,046,132
(61,368,156)
(1,217,003)
(40,267,789)
(882,397)
-

-

(1,222,850)
-

(1,222,850)
-

3,717,069

320,253,284

Lease
liabilities
262,367,816
106,046,132
9,052,388

(1,222,850)
2,943,695
(100,372,613)
323,970,352 278,814,568
66,055,713
212,758,855

The Group has recognized short-term leasing expenses in the amount of RON 151,057. There are no leases
for low-value assets and no variable lease payments for the year ended on December 31 st 2020.
At the end of the leasing contracts, the vehicles registered as the Right to use the assets become the property
of the group and are used for the rental activity or transferred to stocks to be sold.
Assets acquired under financial leasing are pledged in favour of leasing companies.
The uncollected amounts available from the leasing contracts signed with leasing financial institutions on
December 31st 2020 amount to RON 61,928,696 and EUR 2,524,000 (on December 31 st 2019: EUR 12,969
thousand).
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16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Investment
properties

Cost
On January 1st 2019
Additions
Disposals
On December 31st 2019
Additions
Disposals
On December 31st 2020

1,301,922
339,065
281,085
1,732,465
1,732,465

On January 1st 2019
Depreciation charge
Disposals
On December 31st 2019
Depreciation charge
Dosposals
On December 31st 2020

107,646
85,764
112,341
81,069
59,869
140,938

Net book value
On December 31st 2019
On December 31st 2020

1

1,651,396
1,591,527

The fair value of real estate investments on December 31st 2020 is worth 1,977,400 RON for buildings (on
December 31st 2019: 1,340,145 RON).
Real estate investments represent the buildings rented to the Group's affiliated bettors. Rental income from
real estate investments is presented in note 7 “Other operating income”, under “Other rental income”.
Real estate investments are linearly depreciated over a period of 32-60 years.
The fair value of real estate investments was determined using the income approach, the most significant
unobservable criteria being the rent per square meter (between 2-3.15 EUR) and the discount rate used of
11%.
The real estate investment is pledged in favour of a money as collateral guarantee for the received
financing.
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17.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Licences and
other
intangibles

Customer
relationships

Total

Cost
On January 1st 2019
Additions
Disposals
On December 31st 2019
Additions
Disposals

6,157,000
6,157,000
-

916,890
101,759
1,018,649
243,862
-

7,073,889
101,759
7,175,649
243,862
-

On December 31st 2020

6,157,000

1,262,511

7,419,511

Accumulated amortisation
On January 1st 2019
Amortisation expense
Disposals
On December 31st 2019
Amortisation expense
Disposals

2,496,800
3,830,200
2,326,800
-

398,393
114,942
903,283
83,452
-

398,393
2,611,742
4,733,483
2,410,252.
-

On December 31st 2020

6,157,000

986,735

7,143,735

Net book value
On December 31st 2019
On December 31st 2020

2,326,800
-

115,366
275,776

2,442,166
275,776

Inputs from 2020 consist mainly of the acquisition of software licenses.
18.

INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS
December 31st December 31st
2020
2019

Long-term credits and loans
Long-term loan banks

51,508,411
96,622,374
148,130,785

.90,007,861
95,341,617
185,349,478

Accrued interest for bond
Current bank loans and accrued interest

613,950
72,818,359

115,781
76,768,198

Subtotal

73,432,309

76,883,979

221,563,094

262,233,457

Bonds – unsecured fixed rate

Subtotal
Current

Total credits and loans carrying interest
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18. INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS (continuing)

Bank

Type

Bank D

Overdraft

Bank D

Maturity

Balance in bank
currency at 31 December 2020

Currency

Balance in
RON at 31 December 2020

Short term

Long term

6,669,513

RON

6,669,513

6,669,513

-

Investment loans

04/05/2021
84 months from the date
of the signing of the contract, but no later than
10.07.2025

2,037,037

EUR

9,919,148

2,164,178

7,754,970

Bank J

Overdraft

19/10/2020

2,642,852

RON

2,642,852

2,642,852

-

Bank E

Overdraft

28/11/2020

8,612,753

RON

8,612,753

8,612,753

-

Bank E

Equipment line

02/08/2024

2,351,287

RON

2,351,287

1,131,461

1,219,826

Bank H

Car purchase line

03/03/2023

2,873,663

RON

2,873,663

2,873,663

-

Bank H

Car purchase line

03/03/2023

1,383

EUR

6,734

6,734

-0

Bank G

Credit line

23/07/2020

2,489,000

RON

2,489,000

2,489,000

-

Bank G

Investment loans

05/07/2023

483,417

RON

483,417

446,300

37,117

Bank G

Investment loans

05/07/2022

297,755

RON

297,755

297,755

-

Bank G

Investment loans

27/07/2025

261,352

EUR

1,272,628

602,704

669,924

Credit line

13/11/2021

3,235,509

RON

3,235,509

3,235,509

0

Credit facility

14/11/2025

23,222,874

RON

23,222,874

6,404,942

16,817,932

Car purchase line

30/05/2020

8,162,529

RON

8,162,529

4,564,641

3,597,888

Bank B
Bank B
Bank F

40

AUTONOM SERVICES SA
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
All amounts in RON, unless specified otherwise

Bank C

18.

Car purchase line

max.57 months from the
date of each use luni de
la data fiecarei utilizari
expressed by the application for use and reimbursement;

2,842,390

RON

2,842,390

1,966,555

875,835

RON

-

-

-

INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS (continuing)

Bank C

Car purchase line

36/48 months from the
date of each use expressed by the application
for use and reimbursement;

Bank I

Car purchase line

13/01/2022

1,026,590

RON

1,026,590

512,010

514,580

Bank M

Cra purchase line

19/07/2023

2,493,273

RON

2,493,273

1,341,983

1,151,290

Bank N

Car purchase oine

28/11/2025

307,653

EUR

1,498,086

374,521

1,123,565

20,000,000

EUR

96,622,374

-

96,622,374

9,082,591

EUR

44,226,769

26,481,285

17,745,484

EUR
RON

613,950
221,563,093

613,950
73,432,309

148,130,785

Bank S
Credit facility
Bank B
Total:

Bank

30/11/2023

-

Bonds interest

Type

Bank D
Bank D

Overdraft
Investment loans

Bank J
Bank D
Bank E
Bank H

Overdraft
Investments loan
Equipment line
Equipment line

Maturity

04.04.2020
84 months from the date of signing the
contract but not later than 10.07.2025
10.10.2020
31.01.2020
02.08.2024
03.03.2023

Balance in bank
currency at
31 December
2019

7,439,612
2,481,481
1,163,651
2,151,875
3,569,259
1,272,466

Currency

RON
EUR
RON
EUR
RON
EUR
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Balance in
RON at
31 December
2019

Short term

Long term

7,439,612

7,439,612

-

11,859,744
1,163,651
10,284,456
3,569,259
6,081,498

11,859,744
1,163,651
10,284,456
777,835
2,705,880

2,791,424
3,375,618
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Bank
Bank G
Bank G
Bank B
Bank K

Type

05.07.2022
05.07.2022
2020
15.01.2020
15.01.2021
15.01.2020
Bank F
Credit facility
15.12.2023
Bank A
Credit facility
20.06.2020
Bank C
Unfunded credit fa- 36 months /48 months from the date of
cility, revolving
each use expressed by the application
for use and reimbursement
Bank I
Credit facility
13.01.2022
Bank M
Credit line revolving 19.07.2023
Bank S
Bonds
05.11.2024
Bank B
Credit facility
30.11.2023
Less deferred loan origination
fees
Total:

Investments loan
Investments loan
Car purchase line
Car purchase line

Maturity

Balance in bank
currency at
31 December
2019
2,490,455
137,502
4,958,701

237,085
9,958,850
57,276

385,498
1,538,600
3,824,426
20,000,000
21,378,055

Currency
RON
EUR
RON
EUR

RON
EUR
RON

RON
RON
EUR
EUR

Balance in
RON at
31 December
2019

Short term

Long term

2,490,455
657,164
4,958,701

854,009
117,701
1,488,947

1,636,445
539,463
3,469,754

1,133,098
9,958,850
273,738

1,133,098
9,958,850
273,738

-

385,498
1,538,600
3,824,429
95,701,781
102,172,139

375,536
738,528
1,625,888
115,781
25,970,723

9,963
800,072
2,198,539
95,586,000
76,201,416

(1,259,216)
RON
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262,233,457

(1,259,216)
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185,349,478
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18. INTEREST-BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS (continuing)
Unsecured Corporate Bonds
In November 2019, the Group issued unsecured bonds of 20 million EURO. The bonds issued in euro for five
years expire on November 5th 2024 and have a fixed interest rate of 4.45%. The first interest coupon was paid
on November 5th 2020.
Financial liabilities for unsecured fixed rate bonds are calculated using the financial information in the Group's
consolidated financial statements and include the Consolidated Interest Rate, with a minimum of 4%, and Net
Financial Debts / EBITDA, which must be maximum or equal to 3.5.
Financial commitments related to bonds are fulfilled On December 31st 2020 (were fulfilled on December 31 st
2019).
Interest rate:
The interest rates for local currency loans are ROBOR 1M and ROBOR 3M plus the fixed margin negotiated
with the banks. EURIBOR 3M and EURIBOR 6M plus fixed margin negotiated with banks are used for foreign
currency loans.

Interest bearing loans and borrowings Covenants (other than Bonds):
(other than bonds):

Most of the Company's credit agreements with banks have been amended so that all provisions regarding
financial indicators are aligned with the provisions of the bond issue prospectus, i.e. the indicators from the
consolidated financial statements will be taken into account, respectively the interest rate must be at least 4%
and Net financial debts / EBITDA, which must be maximum or equal to 3.5.
Failure to comply with the agreements would allow banks to request immediate repayment of loans.
On December 31st 2020 all the commitments from the loan agreements signed with the banks were met, with
one exception, a credit facility for the amount of 2,642 thousand RON. This amount was already recorded as a
short-term debt, representing a loan agreement in the table above. In March of this year, an additional contract
was signed for this loan agreement, which was amended to align with those in the bond prospectus. (On
December 31st 2019, certain breaches of commitments in loan agreements were observed under the
contractual framework in force with several currencies, which led to the reclassification of Long-term loans into
Short-term instalments on the balance sheet date, in value of RON 24,720 thousand, representing 4 credit
agreements from the table above).
Pledges:
Bank loans are secured by collateral on: property, plant and equipment (Note 14), real estate investments (Note
16), cash and cash equivalents (Note 22) and receivables (Note 21).
As of December 31st 2020, the Company had a net amount of RON 61,928,696 and 2,524,000 euros available
in credit facilities (December 31st 2019: RON 46,901,048 and 6,211,314 euros), therefore being able to meet
any unforeseen cash needs.
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19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group's main financial liabilities include loans and borrowings, including financial leasing and trade
payables and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Group's operations.
The Group's financial assets are represented by loans, trade and other receivables, cash and short-term
deposits resulting directly from its operations, as well as long-term deposits to guarantee debts on rents.
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk, exchange rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's
management oversees the management of these risks. The Group's management ensures that the activities
through which the Group assumes financial risks are governed by appropriate procedures and that financial
risks are identified, quantified and managed in accordance with the Group's risk appetite.
Interest rate risk
The Group's operating income and cash flows are significantly independent of changes in market interest rates.
Trade receivables and payables and other receivables and payables are non-interest-bearing financial assets
and liabilities. loans are usually exposed to interest rate risk through fluctuations in the market value of longterm and short-term interest-bearing credit facilities. The interest rates for the Group's loans and borrowings are
variable. The interest rates for the Group's credit facilities are presented in Note 18. The change in interest rates
primarily affects loans and borrowings by changing the related cash flows (floating rate debt). The
management's policy is to use mainly variable rate financing. However, at the time of obtaining new loans or
loans, management makes an assessment to determine whether a fixed or variable rate would be more
favourable for the Group for the expected period to maturity.
Interest rate sensitivity

The table below demonstrates sensitivity to a possible reasonable change in the interest rate. With all other
variables held constant, the Group's pre-tax profit and equity are affected by the impact on variable rate loans,
as follows:

2020
RON
EUR
2019
RON
EUR

Increase
in basis
points
1%

Effect on
profit before
tax
(4,017,222)
(994,296)
(3,022,926)

1%

(4,789,585)
(225,354)
(4,564,231)

The group does not insure its interest rate risk.
Changes in percentage points of the interest rate assumed for the sensitivity rate analysis are based on the
current observable market environment. An equal decrease in the interest rate would have the same effect but
an opposite sign.
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19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK MANAGEMENT (continuing)
Foreign currency risk
Exchange rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due
to changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in the exchange rate mainly
refers to the Group's financing activities, as the financing obtained by the Group is expressed in EUR. The vast
majority of income, expenses, trade receivables and payables and other receivables and payables are
expressed in RON.
The Group monitors the currency risk following the changes in the exchange rates of the currencies in which
the balances within the Group and the debts to third parties are expressed. The group has no formal
arrangements to reduce the foreign exchange risk it faces.
Foreign currency sensitivity
The table below demonstrates sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the EUR exchange rate. The
Group's exposure to exchange rate changes for all other currencies is not material.
With all other variables held constant, the Group's profit before tax and equity are affected as follows:

Change in
EUR rate
31 December 2020
31 December 2019

1%
1%

Effect on profit
before tax
(4,017,222)
(4,564,231)

Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a business partner will fail to fulfil its contractual obligations or to experience
financial difficulties, thus generating a financial loss for the Group. The Group is exposed to credit risk from
operating activities (mainly trade receivables) and from financing activities, including cash deposits and financial
institutions.
The Group's credit risk is mainly attributed to trade and other receivables, as well as cash balances. The carrying
amount of trade and other receivables, net of the adjustment for impairment (Note 21) plus cash balances (Note
18) represents the maximum amount exposed to credit risk Management considers that there is no significant
risk of loss for the Group, except for adjustments already registered.
The Group invests cash and cash equivalents in trusted financial institutions. The group has only ordinary
deposits with a good reputation, which did not register any difficulties in 2019 or until the date of approval of
these consolidated financial statements.
There is no significant concentration of credit risk in respect of trade and other receivables because the Group
has a large portfolio of customers.
In order to identify the exposure to credit risk, the Group makes assessments of the financial positions of
counterparties. The Group has internal rules and procedures regarding the analysis and approval of operational
leasing contracts, differentiated by exposure level.
The Group has internal rules and procedures for monitoring the concentration of exposures by sector of activity,
by type of client, by type of financed asset, by geographical area, by risk category.
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19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK MANAGEMENT (continuing)
Trade receivables
The client's credit risk is managed by each unit in accordance with the Group's policies, procedures and control
over credit risk management. A customer's creditworthiness is based on that customer's collection history.
Outstanding receivables and contractual assets are constantly monitored and collection or recovery plans are
discussed with customers as soon as significant payments become outstanding. Receivables related to certain
customers, for which, as a result of the grouping according to specific risk factors (such as the total number of
days of prohibition on collection and the number of overdue maturities repeatedly) as well as the identified legal
and legal aspects have were analysed individually. Based on historical data on the collection of overdue
receivables over time, the Group determined a provisioning matrix for the remaining receivables in the balance
sheet at the reporting date, in which the segmentation of the population represented by outstanding receivables
was performed based on similar characteristics related to line of business and applied this matrix to update the
provision for expected loss of receivables.
Provisioning rates are based on the analysis of the actual collection of receivables to which these general
analysis criteria apply, grouped according to relevant criteria related to the days of delay in collection and the
type of services invoiced. In order to conclude on the stability and relevance of the determined loss rates, the
process was applied for two distinct periods (October 2019 - October 2020 and June 2019 - June 2020) and the
loss rates were established as the average of the rates of the two periods. The detailed analysis is described
below.
The following steps have been applied to determine historical debt loss rates:
➢
➢

Identification of open, uncollected invoices at the beginning of each collection interval,
For the above invoices, the determination of the balance receivable at the end of each analysed interval

Expected losses from receivables are determined as uncollected amounts at the end of a collection interval,
applying the assumption that the amounts collected after each analysed interval can improve the loss rate only
marginally.
Debt loss rates are calculated for receivables grouped by seniority, as a ratio between the amounts uncollected
at the end of the analysis interval and the amounts outstanding at the beginning of the analysis period, for the
same invoice population.
The customer database within the Group is homogeneous in terms of credit risk characteristics, therefore the
following criteria have been used for segmentation of trade receivables.:
• The group entity (i.e., trade receivables and contractual assets were analysed in separate segments for each
entity based on a similar methodology for estimating credit losses); and
• relevant seniority intervals.
The calculation reflects the weighted result in probability, the amount of time in cash and reasonable and
acceptable information that is available at the time of reporting on previous events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions. The group has no material guarantees from customers. Moreover, there
are no credit improvements obtained by the Group that would significantly change the credit risk or affect the
credit risk allocation.
In general, trade receivables are cancelled if they are due more than one year and are not subject to foreclosure.

In continuing, the information on the exposure to credit risk from the trade receivables and contractual assets
of the Group is presented using a matrix of provisions:
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19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK MANAGEMENT (continuing)

31 December 2020
Expected credit loss rate
Gross carrying amount
Expected credit loss

31 December 2019
Expected credit loss rate
Gross carrying amount
Expected credit loss

Current

Trade Receivables
Days past due
31 to 60
61 to 90

1 to 30

1.04%
12,908,514
133,741

Current

4.15%
3,297,372
136,731

32.71%
1,053,132
344,467

Trade Receivables
Days past due
31 to 60
61 to 90

1 to 30

3.67%
7,936,008
291,679

13.26%
1,936,435
256,807

3.73%
6,021,530
224,517

30.61%
1,450,951
444,150

48.34%
723,869
349,905

91 to 120
40.67%
723,762
294,378

91 to 120
62.88%
500,422
314,671

over 120

Total

96.84%
16,915,996
16,381,734

36,835,211
17,547,857

above 120

Total

99.91%
14,297,725
14,285,436

30,930,505
15,910,358

Liquidity risk
The Group has adopted a prudent financial liquidity management approach, based on the premise that sufficient
cash and cash equivalents are maintained and that in the future there will be funding from guaranteed funds in
credit lines. The table below summarizes the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including principal and
future interest estimated under commercial contracts, on December 31st 2020 and December 31st 2019 based
on outdated contractual payments.

31 decembrie 2020
Credite si imprumuturi purtatoare
de dobanzi si leasing financiar
Datorii din leasing
Datorii comerciale si alte datorii
Total:

31 December 2019
Interest-bearing loans and
borrowings and financial leases
Lease liabilities
Trade and other payables
Total:

On
demand

Less than 3
months

3 to 12
months

1 to 5
years

2,642,852

13,387,104

63,280,016 167,053,414

1,506,523
477,817
4,627,192

19,404,915
7,102,337
41,952,680

52,949,426 222,858,800
4,831,562
3,896,940
118,418,152 393,809,154

On
Demand

Less than
3 months

33,323,740
1,431,969
1,839,992
36,595,701

13,426,628
22,395,742
13,294,048
49,116,418
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3 to 12
months

1 to 5
years

36,511,441 224,377,404
64,898,107 189,934,144
101,409,548 414,311,548

>5
years

Total
-

>5
years

3,327,317
3,327,317

246,363,386
296,719,664
16,308,656
559,391,706

Total

307,639,212
278,659,961
18,461,357
604,760,530
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19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK MANAGEMENT (continuing)
As of December 31st 2020, the Group had undrawn committed borrowing facilities in amount of RON
45,593,315 and EUR 11,742,361 (December 31st 2019: RON 49,867,144) therefore being able to meet any
unforeseen cash needs.
The outdated lease payments that must be received annually based on the maturity analysis are the following
(currently no amount receivable is scheduled for more than 5 years):
December 31st 2020 Within 1 year

Total:

1-2 years

139,319,389 103,877,178

2-3 years

3-4 years

4-5 years

67,790,444 35,225,870 5,681,812 351,894,694

December 31st 2019 Within 1 year 1-2 years

2-3 years

Total:

64,028,820 27,520,054 7,343,394

145,018,349

105,715,236

Total

3-4 years

4-5 years

Total

349,681,852

Capital management
Capital includes equity attributable to the capital holders of the parent entity.
The main objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a good credit rating and
sound capital indicators in order to sustain its activity and maximize shareholder value.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes changes to it according to the changes in the economic
conditions and the requirements of the financial commitments. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the payment of dividends to shareholders, repay the capital to shareholders or issue new
shares.
The Group may monitor capital using an indicator of the degree of indebtedness which is the net debt divided
by total capital plus net debt - See Note 28.
The purpose of the Group's capital management is, inter alia, to ensure that it fulfils its financial commitments
in accordance with the capital agreements. loan, which define certain requirements regarding the structure of
capital.
For the performance indicators in force on December 31st 2020 and December 31st 2019, see Note 18.
Fair values
The Group does not have financial instruments recorded at fair value in the statement of financial position.
The carrying amount of interest-bearing loans and loans is approximately the same as the fair value.
Management estimates that the profit margin applicable to Euribor at the balance sheet date would be similar
to the dates of previous withdrawals, as the Group has maintained a low level of indebtedness and a stable
financial situation in recent years, as well as based on statistics published by the National Bank of Romania.
Financial instruments that are not recorded at fair value in the statement of financial position also include
deposits to guarantee rents, trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and trade and other
payables.
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19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK MANAGEMENT (continuing)

Management considers that the carrying amounts of these financial instruments are approximately the same
as their fair values due to their short-term maturity (mostly) and the low trading costs of these instruments.

Changes in debts arising from financing activities

Leasing
Sold on January 1st 2019
Recognised on adopting IFRS
16
Withdrawals
Issuance of bonds
Transaction cost – bond related
Interest expense
Early termination of lease agreements
Reclassification to short term
Repayments
Interest paid
Withdrawals overdraft
Foreign exchange movement
Balance on December 31st 2019

155,041,364

Long-term
loans

Total

82,828,381 130,076,235

367,945,980

6,576,645
188,618,277
- 26,662,271
- 95,009,617
(823,560)
7,523,191
1,857,085
5,367,392
(3,766,637)
- 24,720,476 (24,720,476)
(86,235,908) (39,838,487) (44,226,982)
(7,229,271) (1,857,085) (5,367,392)
8,603,264
1,840,155
570,345
3,372,373
262,367,816 76,883,979 185,349,478

6,576,645
215,280,548
95,009,617
(823,560)
14,747,668
(3,766,637)
(170,301,379)
(14,453,748)
8,603,264
5,782,875
524,601,273

Long-term
loans

Total

262,367,816 76,883,979 185,349,478
106,046,132 11,925,836 42,021,114
9,052,388
4,650,827
5,139,984
(1,222,850)
(91,320,225) (28,199,524) (79,993,583)
(9,052,388) (4,650,827) (5,139,984)
- 10,091,954
2,943,695
2,730,064
753776
278,814,568 73,432,309 148,130,785

524,601,273
159,993,082
18,843,199
(1,222,850)
(199,513,332)
(18,843,199)
10,091,954
6,427,535
500,377,662

Leasing
Balance on January 1st 2020
Withdrawals
Issuance of bonds
Transaction cost – bond related
Interest expenses
Early termination of lease agreements
Payments
Paid interest
Overdraft drawing
Exchange rate variation
Balance on December 31st 2020

Short-term
loans
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20. INVENTORIES
December 31st December 31st
2020
2019
1,799,740
11,229,716
(668,126)
1,799,740
10,561,590

Cars for sale
Other inventories
Less allowances for inventories
Total inventories

The stocks consist mainly of machines for sale and the revenues from these sales are pledged under the
financial leasing contracts that the Group has in force with the banks.
21. COMMERCIAL RECEIVABLES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, CURRENT ASSETS S! EXPENSES!

REGISTERED IN ADVANCE
Trade liabilities
December
December
31st 2020
31st 2019
36,835,211
30,930,505
1,538,729
943,706
(17,547,857) (15,910,358)
599,810
21,425,893
15,963,853
172,554
384,713
21,598,447
16,348,566

Trade receivables
Trade receivables from related parties
Less allowance for impairment of trade receivables
Unbilled receivables
Trade receivables, net
Guarantees – non-current
Total
Other receivables and current assets
VAT and other taxes
Advances granted to suppliers
Other receivables
Total

1,109,371
3,215,008
646,896
4,971,276

3,350,473
3,754,782
125,357
7,230,612

Prepayments

1,012,467

391,778

The terms and conditions relating to related party transactions are described in Note 26.
Trade receivables are not interest-bearing and 70-80% are within 10-40 days and for the difference of 20-30%
the maturity is longer than 40 days.

On January 1st 2019
Provision for anticipated credit losses
Unused amounts resumed
On December 31st 2019

Total
8,941,745
7,777,175
(808,562)
15,910,358

On January 1st 2020
Provision for anticipated credit losses
Unused amounts resumed
On December 31st 2020

15,910,358
1,637,499
17,547,857

Allowance for expected credit losses
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22.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

December 31st
2020
Cash in RON
Overnight deposits
Cash in (foreign currency)
Cash in the cash desk RON
Cash in the cash desk (foreign currency)
Other cash equivalent
Total
Overdraft
Cash and cash equivalents for the statement of cash flows

December
31st 2019

42,050,845
5,621,463
26,773,662
135,916
21,546
9,730
74,613,162

60,749,454
3,577,435
24,826,048
173,934
19,769
31,494
89,378,134

(17,925,118)

(8,603,264)

56,688,044

80,774,870

Except for the value of RON 46.009, all cash accounts are guaranteed in favour of banks (the remaining value
of number accounts that were not guaranteed in favour of banks on December 31 st 2019 is RON 74,791).
23.

ISSUED CAPITAL AND EQUITY RESERVES

Shareholder structure on December 31st 2020 and December 31st 2019 is:
Shareholders
Stefan Dan George
Stefan Marius
Autonom International
Total:

No. of shares Value (RON)
20,000
200,000
20,000
200,000
1,960,000 19,600,000

%

2,000,000 20,000,000

1
1
98
100

The value of the authorized capital on December 31st 2020 was RON 20,000,000 (December 31st 2019: RON
20,000,000) representing 2,000,000 shares (December 31st 2019: 2,000,000 shares). All shares are nominal,
subscribed and paid in full on December 31st 2020. All shares have the same voting rights and a nominal
value of 10 RON / share (December 31st 2019: 10 RON / share).
The shares of Autonom International are also owned by the two shareholders of Autonom Services SA (Ştefan
Dan George and Ştefan Marius, each holding 50% of the shares of Autonom International).

Capital reserves and profit distribution
For the year ended 2020, the Board of Directors approved the following distribution of the company's net
profit:
➢
➢

Creation of legal reserves according to the statutory regulations in the amount of RON 45,223;
Creation of tax reserves according to the legal regulations regarding the profit tax exemption for
investments in the amount of RON 1,259,609 These reserves cannot be distributed.
➢
The remaining profit will be allocated to the carried forward result.
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23. ISSUED CAPITAL AND EQUITY RESERVES (continuing)
Other capital reserves
The increases from “Other capital reserves” refer to the establishment of the legal reserve and to the
establishment of the reserve for fiscal facilities regarding the reinvested profit. The reserve for the fiscal facility
regarding the reinvested profit is not distributable. The company does not intend to distribute the reserves in the
balance sheet from December 31st 2020. The legal reserve is constituted according to the provisions of the
Romanian Law on Commercial Companies, which stipulates that 5% of the annual accounting profit be
transferred to the legal reserve, until the balance of this reserve at 20% of the share capital of an entity.
24.

TRADE LIABILITIES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Trade payables for goods or services
Debts from the acquisition of fixed assets
Debts from unpaid invoices
Trade and other payables to related parties
Salary debts and other debts related to the employee
Debts regarding social security contributions and employees' taxes
VAT and other payment taxes
Other debts
Advances from customers
Deposits for rents and securities, of which:
Short term ratio
Long term ratio
Total

December 31st December 31s
2020
2019
2,977,986
6,307,973
3,314,589
1,515,304
82,914
668,165
1,538,729
604.837
1,619,450
1,449,009
956,554
971,006
281,306
1,082,321
(1500)
941,788
1,722,333
4,778,273
4,140,408
880,695
813,091
3,897,578
3,327,317
16,490,089
18,461,357

On December 31st 2020, pre-payments from customers represent amounts invoiced in advance or amounts
collected in advance with a payment order, extinguished during the following year with invoices for services
provided. Terms and conditions of the above financial debts:
•
Trade payables are not interest-bearing and are normally paid within 30 days;
•
The terms and conditions relating to related party transactions are described in Note 26.
25.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENTS

Competition Council investigation
In 2017, the Competition Council announced an investigation for the operational leasing market regarding the
legality of the exchange of information between the leasing companies (one of the investigated companies being
BT Operational Leasing).
At the end of 2020, the investigation was completed without fines, with only recommendations on how to prepare
quarterly reports.
Following the merger between the two entities, at the date of this reporting, Autonom Services SA took over
these obligations from the quarterly reports.
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25. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENTS (continuing)

Taxation
All amounts owed by the state tax authority were paid or accrued at the balance sheet date. The Romanian tax
system is undergoing a process of consolidation and is being harmonized with European legislation. At the level
of the tax authorities there may be different interpretations in relation to the tax legislation which may lead to
additional taxes and penalties to be paid. If the state authority discovers violations of tax laws and related
regulations, they may lead to confiscation of amounts, also additional tax obligations may be applied; fines and
penalties (which apply to the total outstanding amount). As a result, tax penalties resulting from Violation of
legal provisions can lead to a significant amount payable to the state. The Group considers that it has paid on
time and in full all applicable taxes, penalties and interest, to the extent applicable.
Transfer prices
Romanian tax legislation includes the principle of "market value", according to which transactions between
related parties must take place at market value. According to this concept, transfer prices should be adjusted
to reflect market prices that have been set between unaffiliated companies.
There are a likelihood that transfer pricing checks will be carried out in the future to assess whether the transfer
pricing policy complies with the principle of target market value and therefore there are no distortions that could
affect the taxable base of the Romanian taxpayer.

26. RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURES

During January 1st 2020 - December 31st 2020, the Group conducted transactions with the following related
parties:
Affiliated party

Country of
incorporation

ELS Retail SRL

Romania

Standard Marketing SRL

Romania

Stefan Autoservice SRL

Romania

Stefan si Compania SRL

Romania

United Properties SRL

Romania

Autonom international SRL

Romania

Autonom Hungary KFT
VMS (Vehicle Management
Solution)
CMS (City Shuttle Management
Services)

Romania

Carcentric SRL

Romania

Autonom Assistance SRL

Romania

Clockwise SRL

Romania

Romania
Romania

Nature of the
relation
Entity placed under
shared control
Entity placed under
shared control
Entity placed under
shared control
Entity placed under
shared control
Entity placed under
shared control
Shareholder
Entity placed under
shared control
Entity placed under
shared control
Entity placed under
shared control
Entity placed under
shared control
Entity placed under
shared control
Entity placed under
shared control
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Nature of the transaction
Sales/Purchase of assets and
services
Sales/Purchase of assets and
services
Sales/Purchase of assets and
services
Sales/Purchase of assets and
services
Sales/Purchase of assets and
services
Sales/Purchase of assets and
services, loans granted
Sales/Purchase of assets and
services
Sales/Purchase of assets and
services
Sales/Purchase of assets and
services
Sales/Purchase of assets and
services
Sales/Purchase of assets and
services
Sales/Purchase of assets and
services
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26.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continuing)

The following table provides the total value of transactions that were conducted with related parties during the
relevant period:

Sales to
related
parties
Related party
Stefan si Compania SRL
Autonom Hungary KFT
Autonom International
VMS
CMS
Autonom Assistance
Stefan Autoservice SRL
Carcentric SRL
Marius Stefan
Dan Stefan
Standard Marketing
Total

2020

Related party
Stefan si Compania SRL
Autonom Hungary KFT
Autonom International
VMS
CMS
Proasistta Auto
Stefan Autoservice SRL
Carcentric SRL
Marius Stefan
Dan Stefan
Standard Marketing
Total

2019

Purchases
from related
parties

Amounts
owed
by related
parties

Amounts
owed
to related
parties

207,916
60,980
716,492
2,759,108
945,909
96,053
284,766
35,563
5,106,787

7,844,377
64,098
214,461
1,855,508
936,383
632,735
11,547,562

929,770
-4,689
34,209
196,815
259,448
123,176
1,538,729

18,600
257,566
428,149
29,009
30,231
2,531
766,086

283,055
1,248,407
4,158,315
616,080
148,657
234,455
142,707
156,190
21,076
7,093,039

7,201,057
1,962
228,041
646,677
350,833
560,555
8,989,125

35,779
273,722
608,090
1,048
943,706

422,044
3,519
2,528
57,913
57,569
61,264
604.837

The company granted a loan carrying interest to Autonom International SRL.
December December
31st 2020 31st 2019
Loan book value
Autonom International SRL
Total

8,012,243 8,411,556
8,012,243 8,411,556

Compensation granted to key Group management staff:
2020
811,944
811,944

Employee short term benefits
Fees paid to the entity’s management
Total compensation of key management staff

2019
704,141
43,409
747,550

The values presented in the table are the values recognized as expenses during each reporting period.
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27.

SEGMENT REPORTING

For management purposes, the Group is organized into business units based on independent activities
carried out by each entity of the Group and has two reportable segments, as follows;
•
Autonom Services SA;
•
BT Operational Leasing SA.
The Board of Directors monitors separately the operating results of the business segments in order to adopt
decisions regarding the allocation of resources and the evaluation of performance. The segment's performance
is evaluated based on the segment's net profit and the segment's EBITDA.
Revenues between segments are eliminated and reflected in the "Eliminations" column.
Capital expenditures consist of additions to property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and real estate
investments, excluding assets from the acquisition of subsidiaries.
Adjustments
and
eliminations

Year concluded on
December 31st 2019

Consolidated
values

Autonom

BTOL

Total segments

203,467,742

115,219,195

318,686,937

-

318,686,937

4,482,330

752,061

5,234,391

(5,234,391)

-

Total REVENUE

207,950,072

115,971,256

323,921,328

(5,234,391)

318,686,937

Operating profit

19,512,016

7,398,433

26,910,449

14,100.000

41,009,923

Dividend income

13,018,088

-

13,018,088

(13,018,088)

-

Interest expenses

11,779,051

2,968,617

14,747,668

(461)

14,747,207

Income tax expense

2,524,102

(298,876)

2,225,226

-

2,225,226

Net profit

15,029,503

6,935,835

16,483,742

1,082,437

17,566,179

EBITDA (Note 28)

84,157,345

47,811,827

131,969,172

Total segment assets

512,871,039

124,591,405

637,462,444

-

637,462,444

Total segment liabilities

436,589,227

106,473,403

543,062,630

-

543,062,630

Cost of investment impairment

14,100,000

-

14,100,000

(14,100,000)

-

-

36,994,902

Revenue
Revenue from external clients
Inter-segment revenues

Impairment of assets
CAPEX

36,990,7740

5,672,422

5,672,422

4,162

36,994,902
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27. SEGMENT REPORTING (continuing)
Year concluded on December
Autonom
31st 2020

BTOL

Total segments

Adjustments Consolidated
values
and
eliminations

Revenue
Revenue from external clients

231,282,105

76,327,254

307,609,359

494,823

4,593,605

5,088,428

(5,088,428)

-

231,776,928

80,920,859

312,697,787

(5,088,428)

307,609,359

Operating profit

27,800,811

5,467,671

33,268,482

-

33,268,482

Interest expenses

17,341,586

1,505,026

18,846,614

_

18,846,614

Income tax expense

1,714,289

402,998

2,117,287

Net profit

5,272,245

1,934,727

7,206,972

-

7,206,972

EBITDA (Note 28)

112,444,983

31,608,299

144,053,282

-

144,053,282

Total segment assets

573,357,420

69,971,949

643,329,360

(14,362,422)

628,966,939

Total segment liabilities

467,906,602

47,328,589

515,235,191

(163,047)

515,072,144

Impairment of assets

86,644,172

26,140,628

-

110,684,800

CAPEX

89,476,762

-

-

89,476,762

Inter-segment revenues
Total revenue

Reconciliation of assets

307,609,359

2,117,287

89,476,762

2020

Total segment assets
Investments in equity instruments
Inventories
Other receivables and current assets
Prepayments

2019

641,462,666 637,462,444
423,696
423,696
1,799,740 10,561,590
4,971,276 7,230,612
1,012,467
391,778

Total reconciling assets items

12,495,727 18,607,676

Reconciliation of liabilities
Total segment liabilities
Provisions
Deferred revenue
Deferred income tax liability
Total reconciling liabilities items

28.

534,573,428 543,062,630
71,400
71,400
11,339,896 6,229,324
8,089,988 7,022,214
19,501,284 13,322,938

EBITDA AND OTHER NON-IFRS INDICATORES

EBITDA is one of the key performance indicators monitored by senior anagement. EBITDA would be normalized
to exclude any significant one-off items (either revenues or expenses). No exclusions were required for the year
ended on December 31st 2020.
In addition, the Group presents below three other alternative performance measures: Interest Coverage Ratio
(computed as EBITDA/total interest expense), Net financial debt/EBITDA and Gearing Ratio (computed as
Net financial debt / Equity) as these may prove useful for potential investors.
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28. EBITDA AND OTHER NON-IFRS INDICATORS (continuing)
Consolidated EBITDA is reconciled with the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows:
Notes
Net profit

2020

2019

7,206,972

Adjustments to reconcile net profit with EBITDA:
Financing costs minus financial income
Income tax expenses
Depreciation, amortization and impairment of non-current assets

12
13
14

EBITDA

23,944,223 21,219,043
2,117,287
2,225,226
110,784,800 90,958,724
144,053,282 131,969,172

Bargain purchase gain

-

Normalised EBITDA

17,566,180

-

144,053,282 131,969,172

Interest expenses

13

Interest coverage ratio

18,846,614

14,747,207

7.64

9.83

2020

2019

Credits and loans carrying interest
Securities
Liabilities related to financial leasing
Cash and cash equivalent

124,940,720 166,891,840
96,622,374 95,341,617
278,814,568 262,367,816
74,613,162 89,378,134

Net financial debt

425,764,500 435,223,139

Net financial debt / EBITDA
Equity
Net financial liabilities /Equity

2.98

3.30

106,889,238

99,684,553

3.98

4.37

29. EARNINGS PER SHARE
December 31st December 31st
2020
2019
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the parent entity
Number of ordinary shares
Result per share, basic and diluted (RON / share)
There are no dilutive tools to consider.
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7,206,972
2,000,000
3.60

17,566,180
2,000,000
8.78
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30. AUDITOR’S FEE
The auditor of the Group is Ernst & Young Assurance Services SRL.
The fee for the statutory audit of the consolidated and individual situations is December 31st 2020 of Autonom
Services SA prepared according to MOF 2844/2016 and of the statutory audit of the financial statements on
December 31st 2020 of BT Operational Leasing according to MOF 1802/2014 was 355 thousand lei (VAT not
included).
31. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Credits and loans
In the period between January 1st 2021 and the date of these financial statements, the Group contracted
additional loans in the total amount of 2.5 million euro and 20 million RON, respectively leasing in the
amount of 10 million EUR.
Autonom Services SA - BT Operational leasing SA merger
On the date of preparation of these financial statements, the project of merger by absorption of BT
Operational Leasing by Autonom Services SA was approved on 01.01.2021, the company BT Operational
Leasing being deleted from the Trade Register starting with 04.03.2021.
Other aspects
In 2021, Romania continues to face an increased number of COVID-19 cases in all areas of the country.
Therefore, at the time of publication of these financial statements, Romania was still in the alert state. If the
number of COVID-19 cases begins to increase again at an accelerated pace, there is a likelihood that a new
quarantine period will be implemented, affecting certain counties or regions that are subject to restrictions.
In December 2020, Romania started the vaccination campaign, and at the date of publication of this report,
approximately 10% of the population is completely vaccinated against COVID-19. Based on the decisions taken
by the governments of other countries that have a higher vaccination rate, it is expected that the restrictions in
Romania and neighboring countries will be relaxed as the size of the immunized population increases. At the
same time, a decrease in the number of COVID-19 cases is expected.
Despite the fluctuations in the number of cases of COVID-19 in Romania since the beginning of the year, in the
first quarter of 2021 Autonom registered increases on all business lines. Local companies, as well as
international ones, have an increased interest in investing in operational leasing services. On the rent-a-car
side, Autonom recorded a historic rental rate: 85.7% in Q1 2021 versus 65.2% in Q1 2020. The company
continues to work with different case scenarios to be able to quickly adapt to any recent changes. moment. The
results obtained by the Company in Q1 in 2021 show that the situation is evolving according to the positive
scenario thought by Autonom.
The company continues to make every effort to mitigate the effects of the pandemic on economic activity and
to minimize the risk of illness of employees within the company. At the same time, Autonom ensures at all times
that the vehicles to be rented are properly disinfected.
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31. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (continuing)
The management's position is that the measures currently adopted will ensure business continuity and,
therefore, the business continuity principle remains applicable to these financial statements (see note 2.1
"business continuity”).

These consolidated financial statements from page 3 to page 59 were approved by the Board of Directors and
were authorised for issue on 29 April 2021.
Mihaela Angela Irimia
Name
President of the Board of Directors (undecipherable signature)
SC AVH CONSULTING SRL
Name: Huian Angelica
Professional body registration no. 5138 (undecipherable signature)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Autonom Services S.A.
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Autonom Services S.A. (“The
Company”) and its subsidiary (together “the Group”) with its registered office in Piatra Neamt,
Strada Fermelor nr. 4, identified by the unique tax registration code 18433260, which include the
consolidated statement of financial position as of December 31 st 2020, the consolidated
statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the financial year ended and
a summary of significant singing policies and other explanatory information.
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements provide a true and fair view
of the Group’s consolidated financial position as of December 31st 2020, as well as its
consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows for the year ended in accordance
with the Order of the Minister of Public Finance no. 2844/2016 for the approval of the Accounting
regulations compliant with the International Financial Reporting Standards, with subsequent
amendments and clarifications.
Bases for opinion

We conducted the audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA), Regulation
(EU) no. 537/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council of April 16th 2014 (“Regulation
(EU) no. 537/2014”) and Law no. 162/2017 (“Law 162/2017”).
Our responsibilities according to these standards are described in more detail in the section
“The auditor’s responsibilities for auditing the consolidated financial statements” of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including international standards of independence) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IESBA Code) ethical requirements that are relevant for the audit of
financial statements in Romania, including Regulation (EU) No. 537/2014 and Law 162/2017, we
have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities according to these requirements and according to the
IESBA Code. We consider that the audit samples we obtained are sufficient and adequate to
form the basis for our opinion.

Key audit matter

The key audit matters are those matters that, based on our professional judgement, have
had the greatest significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements iof the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of the audit of the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, and in forming of our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters.
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For each matter below, we presented in that context a description of how our audit approached
that matter.
We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the section, “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” of our report, including in connection with these
key issues. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the issues below, form the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

How our audit addressed the key
audit matters

Key audit matters

Elimination of residual value(s) and useful lives of the
fleet used for leasing, including the fleet of assets
related to the right of use and the specific analysis of
depreciation of these assets
Assets included in the car fleet used for rent, owned by
the Group, in the amount of RON 171,880 thousand or
by leasing contracts classified as assets related to the
right of use - contracts with transfer of ownership or
purchase option, for which it applies IAS 16 from the
point of view of depreciation - in the amount of RON
320.253 thousand as of December 31 2020 - are valued
at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment adjustment. Management should evaluate
the residual value and useful life of an asset at least at
the end of each financial year and assess whether
adjustments for specific impairment are necessary.
Depending on the outcome of these analyses, changes
may be accounted for as a change in accounting
estimates reflected in forward-looking amortization or as
a specific impairment adjustment. The determination of
any impairment adjustment in respect of assets that are
the subject of operating leases depends primarily on how
the recoverable amount is affected by the residual value
that can be obtained at the end of the lease.
st

Our audit work focused on, but was
not
limited
to,
the
following
procedures:

•

We obtained an agreement on how to
manage the risks related to the fleet
used for leasing as it is designed and
implemented at the Group level.

•

We analysed the information and data
included in the operational database
used to assess the residual value and
fair value of vehicles, we compared, for
a sample of transactions during the
financial year, the values obtained
from actual sales compared to the
book values at the date of disposal, in
order to assess the reasonableness of
the revised residual values; we
analysed the trend of impairment
losses following the revision of
residual values and we discussed with
the Group's management about the
categories of vehicles sold at a loss
during the financial year.

•

We also analysed which vehicles for
which there is no active operating
lease at the balance sheet date.

Future residual values are influenced in particular by the
number of kilometers traveled, the asset class and the
manufacturer, the general condition of the vehicle, as
well as the evolution of the used car market (second
hand) at the date they are sold.
The residual values of the vehicles managed by the
Group vary depending on the type of asset and, thus,
the assessment regarding the future values made by
the management is based on a series of
assumptions, estimates and reasoning.

I
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit
matters

The Group revised the residual values of its fleet used for
leasing on December 31 2020 and earlier, on an interim
date, taking into account both internal and external
factors of the Group, such as: actual sales of used
vehicles during the year, correlating these values at the
balance sheet date with the estimated number of
kilometers traveled, the asset class and the gold
produced, the potential use of the vehicle in case of
canceled leases and, possibly, the impact of the COVID19 pandemic on the residual values of vehicles.
Subsequently, based on the analysis performed on
December 31 2020, the management identified a
reduction in the value of certain categories of used
vehicles and a depreciation adjustment was registered in
the amount of RON 7,080 thousand.

•

st

st

We discussed and reviewed the analysis
performed by management regarding the
impact on the residual value taking into
account the age of the vehicle on December
31 2020 and we also assessed the possible
impact arising from the COVID-19 pandemic
in relation to actual sales transactions made
in the course of the financial year.
st

•

Due to the significance of the value of the fleet used for
rent, the estimation uncertainty related to the
determination of the residual value of the assets, the
related useful lives, as well as any necessary specific
depreciation adjustment, I consider that the valuation of
the fleet used for rent, including the fleet of use, is a key
audit matter.

We evaluated the analysis of the events
triggering the impairment made by
management for the assets given for rent,
focusing on the categories of vehicles sold at
a loss during the year, in order to assess
whether there was a decrease in the market
for that asset category. We discussed with
the management and analyzed whether
there were changes in the market that could
have affected the selling price of used cars
and, implicitly, the residual value on a
prospective basis and whether an
adjustment for specific depreciation is
required on December 31 2020. We
analyzed the adjustment of the specific
depreciation registered by the management
regarding certain vehicles on December 31
2020.
st

The presentations made by the Group are included in the
note 2.3.7 Car fleet and other corporate fixed assets, note
3 REASONS, EST / MARI AND HYPOTHETICAL
ACCOUNTS ABOUT THEM SIGNIFICANT - Review of
useful lives / hours and residual values of assets / or inc /
use in the car fleet used for rent, note 14 fixed assets
corporeal - Car fleet used for rent and note 15 The right to
use assets, from the consolidated financial statements.

st

•

We performed an analysis of the sale prices
of used cars, taking into account the
information available after the end of the
financial year, and we assessed whether a
specific or general depreciation adjustment
is required at the balance sheet date.

We also assessed the adequacy of the
presentations included in the consolidated
financial statements.

Other information

Other information includes the consolidated and individual Directors’ Report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our audit report thereon. Management is
responsible for other information.
Our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover other information and
we do not express any form of insurance conclusion on them.
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
this other information and, in doing so, to analyse whether it is not significantly consistent with
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the consolidated financial statements or the knowledge we have. We obtained after the audit or
if they seem to include significant errors. If, based on the activity carried out, we conclude that
there are significant errors regarding this other information, we must report this. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

The liability of the management and of the persons responsible with governance for the
consolidated financial statements

The management of the Group is responsible for the preparation and accurate presentation of
the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Order of the Minister of Public
Finance no. 2844/2016 for the approval of the Accounting Regulations compliant with the
International Financial Reporting Standards, with subsequent amendments and clarifications,
and for that internal control that the management deems necessary to allow the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free of significant misstatements, caused either by
fraud or error.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
ability of the Group to conduct business in accordance with the business continuity principle and
to present, where appropriate, issues relating to business continuity and the use of business
continuity, unless management intends to liquidate the Group or cease its activity or has no real
alternative but to do so.
The persons responsible for governance have the responsibility of supervising the Group ’s
financial reporting process.

The auditor’s responsibilities for auditing the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance as to the extent to which the consolidated
financial statements, taken as a whole, do not contain material misstatement due to error or fraud
and to issue an audit report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but there is no guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISA standards will always detect significant misstatement, if any.
Distortions may be caused by either fraud or error and are considered significant if it can
reasonably be expected that they, either individually or as a whole, will influence users’ economic
decisions based on these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISA standards, we exercise our professional judgment and
maintain our professional scepticism throughout the audit. Also:
We identify and evaluate the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, caused by either fraud or error, establish and perform audit procedures that
respond to these risks and obtain sufficient and adequate audit evidence to form a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a significant misstatement caused by fraud is higher
than the risk of not detecting a significant misstatement caused by error, as fraud may include
complicity, forgery, intentional omission, misrepresentation or circumvention of internal
control.

We understand the internal control relevant to the audit to establish the appropriate audit
procedures in the given circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
We evaluate the adequacy of the singing policies used and the reasonableness of the singing
estimates and the related presentations of information made by the management.
We conclude on the adequacy of the management’s use of the business continuity principle,
and determine, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there is significant uncertainty
about events or conditions that could raise significant doubts about the Group ’s ability to
continue operations. If we conclude that there is significant uncertainty, we must draw
attention, in the audit report, to the related presentations in the consolidated financial
statements or, if these presentations are inadequate, we may change our mind. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our audit report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease operations on a going
concern basis.
We evaluate the presentation, structure and general content of the consolidated financial
statements, including disclosures, and the extent to which the consolidated financial
statements reflect the underlying transactions and events in a manner that provides a fair
presentation.
We obtain sufficient adequate audit evidence about the financial information of the entities or
activities of the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for guiding, supervising and conducting the audit at the group level. We are solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
We communicate to the persons responsible for governance, among other matters, the planned
objectives and the timely scheduling of the audit, as well as the significant findings of the audit,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control, which we identify during our audit.
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We also present to the persons responsible for governance a statement regarding our compliance
with the ethical requirements regarding independence and we communicate to them all relations
and other matters that you can reasonably consider that could affect our independence and,
where appropriate, actions taken to eliminate threats to independence or safeguards applied to
reduce those threats.
Among the matters that we communicate to the persons responsible for governance, we establish
those matters
that had the greatest importance in the audit on the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and, therefore, represent key audit matters.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Reporting on information other than consolidated financial statements and our audit report on
them

In addition to our reporting responsibilities under ISA standards and described in the “Other
Information” section of the Consolidated and Individual Directors’ Report, we have read the
Consolidated and Individual Directors’ Report and report the following:
a) in the Consolidated and Individual Directors’ Report we have not identified information that
is not consistent, in all material respects, with the information presented in the consolidated
financial statements as of December 31 st 2020, attached;
b) the consolidated and individual Director’s Report, identified above, includes, under all
significant matters, the information required by the Order of the Minister of Public Finance
no. 2844/2016 for the approval of the singable Regulations compliant with the International
Financial Reporting Standards, with subsequent amendments and clarifications, Annex 1,
points 15-19;
c) based on our knowledge and understanding gained during the audit of the consolidated
financial statements prepared as of December 31 st 2020 regarding the Group and its
environment, we have not identified any significant erroneous information presented in the
consolidated and individual Directors’ Report.
Other requirements regarding the content of the audit report according to Regulation (EU) no.
537/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council
Appointment and approval of the auditor

We were appointed auditors of the Group by the General Meeting of Shareholders on July 15,
2020 to audit the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended December 31,
2020. The total duration of the continuing mission, including renewals (extension of the period for
which we were initially appointed) and previous appointments as auditors was for 6 years,
covering the financial years ended on December 31 st 2015 until December 31st 2020.
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Consistency with the additional report addressed to the Audit Committee
Our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements expressed in this report is in accordance with the
additional report addressed to the Company’s Audit Committee, which we issued on April 29 th 2021.

Non-audit services
We did not provide the Group with prohibited non-audit services referred to in Article 5 (1) of
Regulation (EU) No 537/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council and we remain
independent from the Group during the audit.
We have not provided to the Company and the entities controlled by it other services than those
of statutory audit and those presented in the consolidated financial statements.

On behalf of,

Ernst & Young Assurance Services SRL
15-17 Ion Mihalache Blvd., 21st floor, Bucharest, Romania

(rectangular stamp)
Authority for public monitoring of the audit activity
Statutory (ASPAAS)
Audit firm: Ernst & Young Assurance Services S.R.L.
Electronic Public Register: FA77
(rectangular stamp)
Authority for public monitoring of the audit activity
Statutory (ASPAAS)
Financial auditor: Gavrila Felicia Viorica
Electronic Public Register: AF1513
(undecipherable signature)
Bucharest, Romania
April 29th 2021
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AUTONOM SERVICES SA
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

All amounts in RON, unless specified otherwise

December 31st December 31st
2020
2019

Note
Operating lease income
Additional services revenue
Rent a-car-income
Revenue from sale of vehicles
Proceeds from sale of cars from rental fleet
Other operating income
Total operating income
Fleet expenses
Cost of vehicles sold
Cost of cars from rental fleet sold
Employee benefits expenses
Administrative expenses
Depreciation and impairment of rental fleet and
equipment assets
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of other noncurrent assets
Other operating expenses
Other (losses) / gains – net
Total operating expenses
Operating profit
Finance costs
Finance income
Profit before tax
Income tax expense
Net profit for the financial year

5

6
7

8
9
14,15
14, 15, 16
10
11

12.1
12.2
13
13

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent company
Non-controlling interests
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income
EPS

29

119,138,956
52,205,942
46,843,245
9,884,647
79,387,342
19,568,181
327,028,313

107,933,439
51,386,106
65,860,025
47,454,242
46,053,124
20,026,647
338,713,583

(48,518,269)
(9,458,343)
(83,871,712)
(26,076,433)
(2,090,573)

(58,030,728)
(46,796,426)
(50,397,385)
(28,230,206)
(2,783,101)

(104,890,775)

(85,288,349)

(5,894,025)
(11,990,285)
(969,416)
(293,759,831)

(5,670,375)
(12,037,360)
(8,469,730)
(297,703,660)

33,268,482

41,009,923

(25,274,151)
1,329,928

(21,726,236)
507,193

9,324,259
(2,117,287)
7,206,972

19,791,406
(2,225,226)
17,566,180

7,206,972
7,206,972

17,563,546
2,634
17,566,180

3.60

8.78

These consolidated financial statements from page 3 to page 59 were approved by the Board of Directors and were
authorised for issue on 29 April 2021.

Mihaela Angela Irimia
Name
President of the Board of Directors (undecipherable
signature)

The accompanying notes 1 to 31 are an integral part of these financial statements

SC AVH CONSULTING SRL
Name: Huian Angelica
Professional body registration no. 5138
(undecipherable signature)

AUTONOM SERVICES SA
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
All amounts in RON, unless specified otherwise

Notes
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets
Rental fleet and rental equipment
Right-of-use assets
Other property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Investments in own equity instruments
Trade receivables
Loans to related to affiliated parties

17
14
15
14
16

Current assets
Inventories
Trade receivables
Other receivables and current assets
Prepayments
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

20
21
21
21
22

Equity and liabilities
Equity
Share capital
Other capital reserves
Retained earnings

21
26

23
23
23

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interests
Total equity
Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Bonds
Finance lease liabilities
Lease liabilities
Trade and other liabilities
Deferred revenue
Current liabilities
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Finance lease liabilities
Trade and other liabilities
Provisions
Deferred revenue
Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

31 December
2020

31 December
2019

537,640,128

532,544,153

275,776
202,146,510
323,970,352
1,047,470
1,591,527
423,696
172,554
8,012,243

2,442,166
195,664,513
322,882,415
683.698
1,651,396
423,696
384,713
8,411,556

103,822,538
1,799,740
21,425,893
4,971,276
1,012,467
74,613,162
641,462,666

123,525,967
10,561,590
15,963,853
7,230,612
391,778
89,378,134
656,070,120

20,000,000
14,811,431
72,077,807
106,889,238
106,889,238

20,000,000
13,485,527
65,780,117
99,677,078
7,475
99,684,553

379,353,020
51,508,411
96,622,374
212,758,855
3,897,578
6,475,814
8,089,988

380,379,524
90,007,861
95,341,617
180,880,106
3,327,317
3,800,409
7,022,214

155,220,408
73,432,309
66,055,713
12,592,511
71,400
3,068,475
534,573,428

176,006,043
76,883,979
81,487,710
15,134,040
71,400
2,428,915
556,385,567

641,462,666

656,070,120

-

18
18
15
24
13

18
15
24

These consolidated financial statements from page 3 to page 59 were approved by the Board of Directors
and were authorised for issue on 29 April 2021.
Mihaela Angela Irimia
Name
President of the Board of Directors (undecipherable
signature)

The accompanying notes 1 to 31 are an integral part of these financial statements

SC AVH CONSULTING SRL
Name: Huian Angelica
Professional body registration no. 5138
(undecipherable signature)

AUTONOM SERVICES SA
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
All amounts in RON, unless specified otherwise

Share
capital
As at 1 January 2020
Profit for the year
Increase in legal reserves and other reserves
Acquisition of a subsidiary

20,000,000
-

At 31 December 2020

20,000,000

Share
capital
As at 1 January 2019
Profit for the year
Increase in legal reserves and other reserves
At 31 December 2019

20,000,000
20,000,000

Other capital
reserves

Retained
earnings

Total
equity

13,485,527 66,191,551 99,677,078
- 7,206,972 7,206,972
1,325,904 (1,325,904)
5,188
5,188
106,889,23
14,811,431 72,077,807
8

Other capital
reserves
6,651,922
6,833,605
13,485,527

Retained
earnings
55,461,611
17,563,546
(6,833,605)
66,191,551

Total
equity
82,113,533
17,563,546
99,677,078

Noncontrolling
interest

Total
equity

7,475 99,684,553
- 7,206,972
(7,475)
(2,287)
106,889,23
8

Noncontrolling
interest
4,841
2,634
7,475

Total
equity
82,118,374
17,566,180
99,684,553

These consolidated financial statements from page 3 to page 59 were approved by the Board of Directors and were authorised for issue on April 29th 2021.

Mihaela Angela Irimia
Name
President of the Board of Directors (undecipherable
signature)

The accompanying notes 1 to 31 are an integral part of these financial statements

SC AVH CONSULTING SRL
Name: Huian Angelica
Professional body registration no. 5138 (undecipherable signature)

AUTONOM SERVICES SA
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
All amounts in RON, unless specified otherwise

Notes
Operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of rental fleet and rental equipment
Net foreign exchange differences
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of rental fleet - own resources
Financial income
Interest expense
Movement in current assets allowances

Investing activities
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired
Purchase of other property, plant and equipment
Loans granted to related parties
Loans granted to related parties
Net cash flows used in investing activities
Financing activities
Payment of finance lease liabilities
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Issuance of bonds

2019

9,324,259

19,791,406

5,894,025

5,670,375

104,890,775
6,427,435
124,856
4,058,066
(1,329,928)
18,843,199
969,416

85,288,349
5,782,874
1,070,716
4,344,261
(507,193)
14,747,668
7,490,422

(5,901,659)

(3,648,428)

5,567,433
2,259,336
3,314,966
(5,672,042)
(91,155,650)
83,632,668
731,260
(18,843,199)
(1,020,710)
122,114,506

17,511,532
1,220,006
5,088,397
(10,363,397)
(46,106,239)
45,191,411
97,251
(14,453,748)
(3,387,603)
134,828,060

26

(243,862)
(1,383,089)
992,000
(634,951)

(101,759)
(1,247,789)
(5,077,192)
442,950
(5,983,790)

19
19
19
19

(91,320,225)
53,946,950
(108,193,107)
-

(86,235,908)
26,662,271
(75,635,180)
94,186,057

(145,566,382)

(41,022,760)

(24,086,827)

87,821,509

14
14,15

12.2
12.1
11

Working capital adjustments:
Increase in trade and other receivables and prepayments
Increase/Decrease in inventories
Increase in other receivable
Increase/(decrease) in deferred revenue
Increase / (decrease)in trade and other payables
Purchase of rental fleet and rental equipment
Amounts received for disposal of rental fleet and rental equipment
Interest received
Interest paid
Income tax paid
Net cash flows from operating activities

2020

19

Net cash flows used in financing activities
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

22

80,774,870

(7,046,640)

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

22

56,688,044

80,774,870

These consolidated financial statements from page 3 to page 59 were approved by the Board of
Directors and were authorised for issue on 29 April 2021.
Mihaela Angela Irimia
Name
President of the Board of Directors
(undecipherable signature)

SC AVH CONSULTING SRL
Name: Huian Angelica
Professional body registration no. 5138
(undecipherable signature)
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AUTONOM SERVICES SA
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
All amounts in RON, unless specified otherwise

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

These consolidated financial statements are prepared by Autonom Services SA (hereinafter “the Company
and comprise its activities and those of its subsidiary, together referred hereinafter as ‘’Autonom’’ or ‘’the
Group’’. The consolidated financial statements of the Group were authorised for issue in accordance with a
resolution of the directors on April 29th 2021.
Autonom Services SA is a privately owned, joint stock company with the main activity of renting and leasing
of motor vehicles and light motor vehicles. The company has its headquarters in Piatra Neamt, Fermelor
street, no. 4 with points of business in several cities: Piatra Neamt, Bucharest, Otopeni, Bacau, Constanta,
Suceava, Cluj, Iasi, Galati, Brasov, Sibiu, Targu Mures, Oradea, Craiova, Slatina, Satu Mare, Baia Mare,
Timisoara, Pitesti, Braila, Tulcea, Ramnicu Valcea, Focsani, Buzau.
Autonom Services SA is controlled by Autonom International SRL and ultimately by Stefan Dan George and
Stefan Marius.
On June 30th 2018, Autonom Services SA acquired control over BT Operaţional Leasing SA (“BTOL”, “the
Subsidiary”), after completing the purchase of a 99.85% interest in its share capital. BTOL was previously a
member of the Bank Transilvania Financial Group and was incorporated as a joint stock company in 2001.
From September 2021 The Subsidiary’s main activity consists of renting and leasing of motor vehicles and
light motor vehicles and has its headquarters in Neamţ, Piatra Neamţ, str. Fermelor nr.4.
On December 4th 2020, The company issued corporate bonds worth EUR 20 million, which were admitted to
trading on the Main Market of the Bucharest Stock Exchange, Bonds segment, and which are traded under
the symbol AUT24E. The bonds have a nominal value of 1,000 euros, a maturity of five years and a fixed
interest rate of 4.45%, p.a. payable annually (see Note 19).
For further details on the acquisition of BTOL, see Note 4.
The number of employees of the Group as of December 31st 2020 was 313 (December 31st 2019 was 358).

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1

Basis of preparation

Statement of Compliance
The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Order no. 2.844/2016 for
approving the Accounting Regulations in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, with
subsequent amendments and additions. These provisions are in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards applicable to financial reporting as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) and adopted by the European Union (EU) (IFRS), except as provided in IAS 21 The Effects of
Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates on functional currency.
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for equity investments
measured at fair value through profit or loss. The financial statements are presented in Lei (‘’RON’’), which is
also the Group’s functional currency, and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand RON, except when
otherwise indicated.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuing)
Going concern
These financial statements are prepared based on the principle of business continuity. Management
considers it appropriate to use the principle of business continuity in the preparation of financial statements.
Management based its assessment using detailed projections of the Group's cash flows for the period up to
December 31st 2021, prepared using assumptions that include the estimated impact of the Covid 19 pandemic
based on information available at the end of March 2021. These projections take into account the Group's
current available cash resources are the latest projected operating income projections as of December 31st
2020, the anticipated additional operating income from new leases to be entered into during the period
covered by the projections, and the financing of current contracted debt and current financial position at the
reporting date, investments in the rental fleet and other commitments.
2.2

Bases of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and the Subsidiary
as of December 31st 2020.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable income from its involvement with
the Company in which it has invested and has the ability to affect such income through its power over the
company in which it has invested.
Specifically, the Group controls the company in which it has invested, if and only if the Group has:
Authority over the company in which it has invested (e.g. existing rights which give it the authority to direct
the relevant activities of the company in which it has invested).
Exposure or rights to income, variable as a result of his participation in the entity in which he invested.
Ability to exercise authority over the company in which it has invested in order to influence the investor's
income.
In general, there is a presumption that a majority over voting rights results in control. To support this
presumption even when the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights or similar rights of a company
in which it has invested, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances to assess whether it has
power over the company in which it invested, including:
• The contractual agreement / agreements with other voting holders of the company in which it has invested;
• Rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
• The rights and potential voting rights of the Group.
The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls a company in which it has invested if the facts and
circumstances indicate that changes are taking place in one or more of the three control elements. The
consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group gains control of the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during a year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which the
Group gains control until the date on which the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the equity holders of the
parent company of the Group and non-controlling interests, even if it results in non-controlling interests having
a deficit balance.
When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to align their accounting
policies with those of the Group. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuing)
A change in the interest of a subsidiary's participation, without loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction. If the Group loses control of a subsidiary; it abandons the related assets (including goodwill),
liabilities, uncontrolled interest and other components of equity, while any resulting gain or loss is recognized
in the income statement. Any investment retained is recognized at fair value.
2.3 Summary of the significant accounting policies
The main accounting policies applied by the Group in preparing these financial statements are presented
below.
2.3.1 Business combination and goodwill
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the sum of the value transferred, which is measured at the acquisition date at fair value, and
the value of any interest that does not control the acquisition.
For each combination, the Group chooses whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquisition
at fair value or at the proportional share of the recognized amount related to identifiable net assets.
Acquisition-related costs are recognized as an expense at the date of occurrence and are included in the
income statement.
When the Group acquires a business, it evaluates the financial assets and liabilities assumed for the
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and conditions relevant to the acquisition date.
Any contingency consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognized at fair value on the date
of acquisition. The contingency equivalent value considered as equity is not remeasured and the subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. The contingency value classified as an asset or liability that is a
financial instrument and within the scope of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments is measured at fair value through
changes in fair value recognized in the income statement under IFRS 9. Other contingent amounts that are
not the scope of IFRS 9 is measured at fair value at each reporting date and changes in fair value are
recognized in profit or loss.
Goodwill is initially measured at cost (being the excess of the total value transferred and the amount
recognized for non-controlling interests and any other interests held in the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed). If the fair value of the net asset acquired exceeds the total value transferred, the
Group reassesses whether all the assets acquired and all liabilities assumed have been correctly identified
and the procedures used to determine the amounts to be recognized at the acquisition date are reviewed. If,
after revaluation, the fair value of the net assets is continuing to be greater than the acquisition cost, the
difference is recognized in the income statement.
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of
testing for impairment, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the date of acquisition, allocated
to each cash-generating unit that is expected to benefit from the combination, whether other assets or
liabilities are allocated to those units.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuing)
2.3.2 Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the positions of the financial statements taking into account the
current / fixed assets classification. An asset is current when:
• It is estimated that it will be made or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;
• The main purpose of ownership is trading;
• It is expected to be completed within twelve months of the reporting period;
• Represents cash or cash equivalents, unless limited to exchange or use for debt settlement for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as fixed assets.
A debt is current when:
• It is estimated that it will be paid off within the normal operating cycle;
• It is held mainly for trading purposes;
• To be paid off less than 12 months after the reporting period, or
• There is no unconditional right to defer debt settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
The group classifies any other debt as long-term debt.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are classified as fixed assets or long-term liabilities.
2.3.3

Fair value measurement

Information on the fair value of financial instruments and non-financial assets that are measured at fair
value or where fair values are presented is summarized in the relevant notes.
Fair value is the price that would have been collected for the sale of an asset or paid for the transfer of a debt
in a regulated transaction between market participants at the valuation date. Fair value measurement is based
on the assumption that the asset sale or debt transfer transaction takes place either:
•
In the main asset or debt market;
Or
•
In the absence of a main market, on the most advantageous payment for assets or debt.
•
The main market or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Group.
The fair value of an asset or liability is measured on the basis of the assumption that market participants
would use it in determining the value of the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act to obtain
maximum economic benefit.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account the ability of a market participant to
generate economic benefits through the most intense and best use of the asset or by selling it to another
market participant who will use the most intense asset. and the best.
The Group uses valuation techniques appropriate to the circumstances and for which there are sufficient data
to measure at fair value, making maximum use of relevant observable input data and minimizing
unobservable input data.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuing)
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured and presented in the financial statements are included
in the fair value hierarchy. This is described as follows, depending on the lowest significant level for the entire
fair value measurement:
•
Level 1 - quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
•
Level 2 - valuation techniques for which the lowest significant level for fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly;
•
Level 3 - valuation techniques for which the lowest significant level for fair value measurement is
unobservable.
For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis at the end of
each reporting period, the Group determines whether certain assets or liabilities have been transferred
between the levels defined by the fair value hierarchy (based on the low level of information which is
significant for fair value measurement) at the end of each reporting period.
2.3.4 Revenue recognition

Revenues include vehicle rental income - operating leasing and vehicle rental income, equipment rental
income - operational leasing, income from services in addition to operating leasing, sale of goods and other
rental income.
A) Operational leasing income (motor vehicles and equipment), rental income and other operating
income
Revenues from renting vehicles and equipment
Operating lease income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the contractual period, based on all
contractual payments divided by the number of months of the lease.
The income from the rental of motor vehicles is recognized proportionally during the period (number of rental
days in the accounting period) in which the motor vehicles are rented based on the rental contract.
Revenues from early termination fees consist of fees charged to customers at the early termination of leases
and are included in this income category.
Other operating leasing income
Other operating lease income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
B) Revenues from contracts with customers

Revenues from contracts with customers are recognized when control over the goods and services is
transferred to the customer and takes on a value that reflects the value the Group expects in exchange for
those goods and services. The group has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue agreements
because it usually controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer.
Revenue from services incidental to vehicle rental
Services incidental to vehicle rental include rates for repair and maintenance services, tire replacement, car
replacement and insurance services and other contractual components. These services represent different
performance obligations and are usually recognized throughout the contract, based on monthly leasing rates
as the vehicle is continuously with the customer and the service is used continuously or the customer will
have access to the service for the duration of the contract; except for the exchange of tires, which is
recognized at a certain time when this service is provided.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuing)
Revenues from the sale of vehicles
Revenues from the sale of motor vehicles refer to motor vehicles purchased for resale and are recognized at
the time when control over the asset is transferred to customers, usually upon delivery of the motor vehicle.
Proceeds from sale of cars from rental fleet
Revenues from the sale of vehicles in the car fleet (operating leases and leases) are recognized when control
over the asset is transferred to customers, usually upon delivery of the car.
The group considers whether there are other promises in the contract that represent different obligations to
execute, of which a proportion of the transaction price must be allocated (e.g. guarantees, loyalty points). In
determining the transaction price for the sale of goods, the Group takes into account the effects of variable
value, the existence of significant financing components, non-monetary value and value payable to the
customer (if any).
Trade receivables
A claim represents the Group's right to an equivalent value (e.g. only the passage of time is necessary before
the payment of the equivalent value is due). Trade receivables are current unpaid receivables arising from
operating leases or receivables arising from the sale of inventories.
See accounting policies for financial assets in section 2.3.13 Financial instruments - initial recognition and
subsequent measurements.
Contractual liabilities
A contractual liability is the obligation to transfer the goods and services to a customer for whom the Group
has received a consideration (or part of the consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays the
equivalent value before the Group transfers the goods or services to the customer, a contractual liability is
recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is the earlier). Contractual liabilities
are recognized as income when the Group provides services or sells goods under a contract. For the Group,
advances from customers for vehicles to be sold are subject to contractual liabilities, in accordance with the
provisions of IFRS 15.
2.3.5

Foreign currencies

The consolidated financial statements of the Group are presented in RON, which is also the functional
currency of both the Parent Company and the subsidiary.
Transactions in foreign currency are converted into RON by applying the exchange rate in force on the date
of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the end of the year
are converted into RON at the exchange rate in force on that date. Realized or unrealized gains or losses on
exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss.
The exchange rate RON - EUR and RON - USD on December 31st 2020 and December 31st 2019 was:

RON - EUR
RON – USD

December 31st
2020
4.8694
3.9660

December 31st
2019
4.7793
4.2608
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuing)
2.3.6

Taxation

Current profit tax

Income tax receivables and payables for the current and previous periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered or paid to the tax authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used in the calculation of
values are those that have been adopted or largely adopted until the end of the reporting period in Romania,
the country in which the Group operates and generates taxable income.
The current profit tax related to the elements recognized directly in capital is recognized in capital and not in
the profit and loss account. Management periodically evaluates tax returns in connection with situations where
applicable tax rules are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions when necessary.
Deferred profit tax
Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet debt method with respect to temporary differences
between the taxable base of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and their net carrying amount
for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.
Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences with the following exceptions:
•
When the deferred income tax liability results from the initial recognition of goodwill or the recognition of
receivables or payables, resulting from transactions other than business combinations, and at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit;
•
Temporary differences resulting from investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
ventures, when the cancellation of temporary differences can be controlled and it is likely that temporary
differences will not be resumed in the foreseeable future.
Deferred income tax receivables are recognized for all temporary differences to carry forward unused tax
losses and credits to the extent that there will be future taxable profit against which unused tax losses and
credits may be used with the following exceptions:
•
When the deferred income tax claim related to deductible temporary differences results from the initial
recognition of receivables or liabilities resulting from transactions other than business combinations, and
at the time of the transaction does not affect either the accounting profit or the taxable profit;
•
With respect to deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that temporary
differences are likely to reverse in the foreseeable future and the taxable profit will be available in relation
to which temporary differences can be used.
The carrying amount of deferred income tax receivables is revised at the balance sheet date and reduced
accordingly if there is no longer any possibility of taxable profits allowing the use of part or all of the deferred
income tax claim to be available. Unrecognized deferred income tax receivables are reconsidered at the
balance sheet date and are recognized to the extent that there is a possibility of taxable profits that would
allow the deferred income tax claim to be settled.
Deferred income tax receivables and liabilities are measured at the tax rates expected to be applicable for
the period in which the asset is realized or the debt is settled based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been adopted or largely adopted by at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred income tax on items recognized outside the income statement is recognized outside the income
statement. Deferred income tax items are recognized, depending on the nature of the underlying transaction,
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuing)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legal right to offset current tax receivables with current
tax liabilities and if the tax is related to the same taxable entity and is levied by the same tax authority.
Sales taxes (VAT and other similar taxes)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized at net tax, except for the following:
• When a tax arising from the acquisition of assets or services is not recoverable from the tax authority,
in which case the tax is recognized in the acquisition cost of the asset or as part of the expense, as
the case may be;
• Receivables and payables are presented with taxes included in value.
The net amount of the tax to be recovered or paid to the tax authority is included in the amount of receivables
or payables from the statement of financial position.
2.3.7

Rental fleet and other own use property, plant and equipment

The car fleet, the equipment rented, as well as other tangible assets for own use are valued at the net cost
of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
The cost consists of the purchase price and costs directly attributable.
The assets that are the object of operational leasing contracts and lease agreements are presented in the
balance sheet depending on the nature of the asset.
Subsequent costs are included in the carrying amount of the asset or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will revert to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the income statement at the time of their occurrence.
Depreciation method
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset as follows:

Years
4
3-10
3-24

Rental Vehicles*
Leased equipment and machinery
Other furniture, fittings and equipment

*The car is depreciated on a straight-line basis up to their estimated residual values on the date provided for
the disposal, after the conditions anticipated on the used car market have been taken into account.
The residual values, the duration of use and the methods of depreciation of the car fleet, equipment and other
tangible assets are reviewed at the end of each financial year or during it if necessary and adjusted
prospectively.
An item in the category of property, plant and equipment is derecognised when it is sold or when it is no
longer expected to obtain future economic benefits from its use or sale. Any gain or loss arising on the
derecognition of an asset (calculated as the difference between the net proceeds from the sale and the
remaining carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is recognizable.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuing)
Upon termination of leases or leases and once the Group acquires ownership of these assets and
Management decides to sell them, the relevant assets are reclassified as “Inventories” at net book value in
accordance with IAS 16 paragraph 68A and receipts are recognized income in accordance with IFRS 15.
The depreciation policy of depreciable leased assets (under contracts with the option to transfer ownership
or purchase) is in accordance with the Group's normal depreciation policy for similar assets.
2.3.8

Investment property

Real estate investments are initially valued at cost, including transaction costs. After the initial recognition,
real estate investments are highlighted at historical cost, less accumulated depreciation and depreciation.
Real estate investments are derecognised either when they have been sold (e.g. on the date the consignee
obtains control) or when they are permanently taken out of use or no future economic benefits are expected
from their sale.
The difference between the net income from sales and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in profit
or loss during the derecognition period. The equivalent value to be included in the gain or loss resulting from
the derecognition of investment property is determined in accordance with the requirements for determining
the transaction price in IFRS 15.
Transfers are made only to (or from) the real estate investment where a change of use occurs. For a transfer
from real estate investments in the property category occupied by the owner, the cost considered for
subsequent accounting is the fair value at the date of the change of use. If the property occupied by the owner
becomes a real estate investment, the Group accounts for these properties in accordance with the policy
stated in property, plant and equipment until the date of change of use.
2.3.9

Leases

The Group assesses at the beginning of the contract whether it is a lease or contains a lease, i.e. whether
the contract confers the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.
The group as lender
The Group applies a unified recognition and measurement approach to all leases, except short-term leases
and leases for low-value assets - see below. The Group recognizes liabilities arising from leases to make
lease payments and the right to use the assets, which is the right to use the underlying assets.
•

Right of use assets

The group recognizes the right to use the asset from the start date of the contract (e.g. the date on which the
underlying asset is available for use).
The right to use assets is measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and is
adjusted by any re-measurers of leasing liabilities.
The cost of the right to use the assets includes the value of the recognized lease liabilities, the initial cost at
the date of occurrence, as well as the lease payments made on or before the commencement date, less the
leasing incentives received.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuing)

Unless the Group is reasonably certain to acquire ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term,
the recognized rights of use are impaired on a straight-line basis over the shorter estimated useful life between
the useful life and the lease term. The period varies between 1.5 years and 4 years.
If the ownership of the leased asset (vehicles and equipment) is transferred to the Group at the end of the
lease or the cost reflects the exercise of the call option, then the right to use the assets (for vehicles and
equipment) is depreciated using the depreciation method and estimates. used for similar assets held - see
paragraph 2.3.7.
Similar to its own leasing fleet, upon termination of the lease or lease and the management's decision to sell
the vehicles, the relevant assets from the right to use the assets are reclassified to “Stocks” at their carrying
amount, in accordance with IAS 16 paragraph 68A, most often simultaneously with the moment when the
vehicle becomes the property of the Group.
The assets related to the right of use are subject to depreciation, presented in note 2.3.11. See accounting
policies in the Impairment of Non-Financial Assets section.
•

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value
of the lease payments to be made during the lease term. Lease payments include fixed markets (including
fixed market funds), less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
Leasing payments also include the exercise price of a call option, if the Group has reasonable assurance that
it will exercise the option, as well as the payment of penalties for terminating the lease, if the term of the lease
reflects the exercise by the Group of a termination options. Variable leasing payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognized as expenses in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
market occurs.
When calculating the present value of leasing payments, the Group uses the marginal interest rate from the
date of the start of the leasing contract if the default interest rate in the leasing contract is not easy to
determine. After the commencement date, the amount of liabilities arising from the lease is increased to reflect
the increase in interest and reduced for lease payments, in addition, the carrying amount of liabilities arising
from the lease is revalued if there is a change. the duration of the lease, a change in the fixed lease payments
in substance or a change in the valuation of the underlying asset.
•

Subleases

The group is an intermediary lessor in transactions for which a core asset is re-leased by the group to a third
party, and the leasing contract between the main player and the group remains in force.
The Group classifies a sublease as a finance lease or an operating lease as such:
a. if the main lease is a short-term lease, subcontracts are classified as an operating lease;
b. otherwise, the subcontract is classified according to the asset related to the right of use resulting from the
main leasing contract.
For subleases classified as an operating lease, the Group continues to take into account the lease liability
and the asset of the right of use related to the lease agreement like any other lease. Leasing payments
resulting from operating leases are recognized as income on a straight-line basis.
On December 31st 2020, The group does not have ongoing financial subleasing contracts.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuing)
• Short term leases
The Group applies the derogation from the recognition of short-term leases for motor vehicles (i.e. those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the date of commencement and which do not contain
a purchase option). it applies the exemption from the recognition of low value assets in the case of renting
office equipment that is considered to be of low value. Lease payments for short-term leases and leases for
low-value assets are recognized as straight-line expenses over the term of the lease.
The group as lessor
Leases whereby the Group does not significantly transfer all risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. The initial direct costs incurred for negotiating and concluding an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and amortized over the lease term, on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as income in the period in which they are obtained.
The book value of the goods and equipment under operational leasing and of the short-term lease fleet is
depreciated over the lease term or over the useful life of the asset. Depreciation is recognized in the income
statement. Operating lease rates are recognized in the financial statements in their entirety on a straight-line
basis throughout the lease term. The rates are classified and presented in the income category “Operating
leasing income” of the profit and loss account and other elements of the global income. The group leases the
assets of its clients for a period that normally varies between three and four years. In all cases, the leased
assets are returned to the Group at the end of the contractual period.
2.3.10 Borrowing costs

Costs related to loans directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of assets that require
a substantial period of time to be able to be used or sold are added to the cost of those assets. All other costs
related to loans are recognized in the income statement in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with borrowing funds.
2.3.11 Intangible assets

Separate intangible assets are measured at initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination represents their fair value at the acquisition date. After initial recognition, intangible
assets are recorded at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, as
appropriate.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as fixed or indefinite.
Intangible assets with a determined useful life are amortized on a straight-line basis over the economic life
and measured for impairment whenever there are indications of impairment of intangible assets. Depreciation
periods are reviewed at least at the end of each year. Changes in the expected useful lives or in the expected
rate of consumption of future economic benefits incorporated in the assets are accounted for by changing the
method or amortization period, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.
Software, licenses and other similar assets are impaired using the straight-line method over a three-year
period by the Group. Trade relations with customers are amortized over a period of two and a half years.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuing)

An item of intangible assets and any significant part initially recognized are derecognised at the time of
disposal (e.g. on the date on which the beneficiary obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or sale. Any gain or loss on the derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net proceeds from the sale and the net carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income
statement.
2.3.12 Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group analyses the net book values of property, plant and equipment (car fleet
and equipment leased and other property, plant and equipment) and intangible assets, the right to use assets,
real estate investments to determine whether there are indications that these assets have suffered.
impairment losses.
If there are such indications, a formal calculation of the recoverable amount is made, which represents the
maximum between the use value and the fair value, less the costs related to the sale.
The carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount, and the difference is recognized as an expense
(impairment loss) in the consolidated statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income.
In measuring the value in use, estimated future cash flows are discounted at current value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and asset-specific risks for
which future cash flows have not been recognized. adjusted. In determining fair value less costs to sell, an
appropriate valuation method is used. The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and
forecasts, which are prepared separately for each of the Group's cash-generating units to which the individual
assets are allocated. These budgets and projected calculations generally cover a period of five years. A longterm growth rate is calculated and applied to future project cash flows after the fifth year.
An impairment loss recognized for an asset in prior years is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment loss is reversed only to the
extent that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of impairment or amortization, if no impairment had been recognized.
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and when conditions indicate that the carrying amount could be
impaired. Depreciation of goodwill is determined by estimating the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (“UGN”) (or group of UGNs) to which the goodwill refers. When the recoverable amount of the UGN is
less than its carrying amount, then an impairment loss is recognized. Goodwill impairment losses cannot be
reversed in future periods.
2.3.13 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that generates a financial asset for one entity and a financial debt or
equity instrument for another entity.
i)

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurment
At the date of initial recognition, the Group classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at
amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss.

18

AUTONOM SERVICES SA
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
All amounts in RON, unless specified otherwise

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuing)
The classification of financial assets depends both on the Group's business model regarding the management
of financial assets, and on the contractual characteristics of the cash flows related to financial assets. With
the exception of trade receivables that do not have a significant financing component or for which the Group
applied the practical record, the Group initially measured financial assets at fair value plus, in the case of
assets that are not at fair value through profit or loss, costs transaction that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset.
Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied
the practical cost are measured at transaction price determined in accordance with IFRS 15. In order to
classify and measure a financial asset at amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it must generate cash flows that are “principal and interest only payments (NPPD)” related to the principal
amount. This assessment is called the NPPD test and is performed at the instrument level.
The business model of the Group for the management of financial assets refers to the way in which it manages
its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from the collection of contractual cash flows, the sale of financial assets or both.
The group's financial assets are represented only by loans to affiliated parties and trade receivables, cash
and cash equivalents.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the
date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into four categories:
•
Financial assets at amortized cost (debt securities);
•
Financial assets at fair value through other elements of the overall result with the recycling of
accumulated gains and losses (debt securities);
•
Financial assets designated at fair value through other items of comprehensive income, without recycling
cumulative gains and losses on derecognition (equity instruments);
•
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
This category is the most relevant for the Group and represents loans to related parties and trade receivables
and leasing receivables.
The Group measures financial assets at amortized cost if the following conditions are met:
•
Financial assets are held within a business model with the objective of holding financial assets to collect
contractual cash flows;
and
•
The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise to the dates specified in the cash flows which
represent only principal payments and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
listed on an active market. After initial recognition, these financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, less impairment.
The amortized cost is calculated taking into account any reduction or purchase premium and any
commissions and costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuing)
Depreciation based on the effective interest rate is included in the income statement under “Financial income”.
Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
De-recognition
A financial asset (or, if applicable, part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:
• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or
• The Group transferred its rights to receive the cash flows arising from the asset or assumed an
obligation to pay the cash flows received in full, without significant delays, to a pardon, based on a
commitment with identical flows (“ pass-through “) and either (a) the Group has significantly transferred
all risks and rewards related to the asset, or (b) the Group has not transferred and retained significantly
all the risks and rewards related to the asset, but has transferred control on the asset.
When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or entered into a commitment
with identical flows, it assesses whether and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
If it has not transferred and has not retained significantly all the risks and rewards related to the asset, nor
has it transferred control over the asset, it is recognized in proportion to the Group's continued involvement
in the asset. In this case, the Group also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated debt are valued on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.
The continuing involvement in the form of a guarantee on the transferred assets is quantified at the lower of
the initial carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount that the Group may be required to repay.

ii)

Impairment of financial assets

Information on the impairment of financial assets is presented in the following notes:

• Financial instruments risk management
• Trade receivables

(Note 19)
(Note 21)

The Group recognizes a value adjustment for anticipated receivables for all debt securities that are not held
at fair value through profit or loss. Anticipated receivables are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due under the contract and all the cash flows the Group expects to receive, updated to an
approximation of the initial effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit increases that are an integral part of the contractual clauses.
Expected receivables are recognized in two stages: If there was no significant increase in credit risk from the
time of initial recognition, the receivables are measured at 12 months. The value calculated at 12 months
represents the loss from the receivable resulting from non-payment events that may occur in the next 12
months. If there has been a significant increase in credit risk from the time of initial recognition, an impairment
adjustment is required to be measured over the life of the asset, which represents an anticipated loss on
receivables resulting from default events that may occur during the estimated life of a financial asset.
For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified approach to the calculation of anticipated credit losses.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuing)
Therefore, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but recognizes a value adjustment calculated over
the life of anticipated credit losses on each reporting date. The Group has established a matrix of provisions
based on the historical experience of credit losses, adjusted for the specific factors of the debtors and the
economic environment.
Based on historical data on the timely collection of overdue receivables, the Group determined a matrix of
the provision for outstanding receivables at the reporting date, adjusted these provisioning rates for specific
factors for debtors and applied this matrix to update the related provision. expected loss of receivables.
Provisioning rates are based on the analysis of the actual collection of receivables, grouped according to
relevant criteria in two recent time intervals, in order to conclude on the stability and relevance of the
determined loss rates, as described below.
The following steps have been applied to determine historical debt loss rates:
•
•

Identification of open, uncollected invoices at the beginning of each collection interval.
For the above invoices, the determination of the balance receivable at the end of each analysed
interval Expected losses from receivables are determined as uncollected amounts at the end of a collection
interval, applying the assumption that the amounts collected after each analysed interval can improve the
loss rate only marginally.
•
Debt loss rates are calculated for receivables grouped by seniority, as a ratio between the amounts
uncollected at the end of the analysis interval and the amounts outstanding at the beginning of the analysis
period, for the same invoice population.
•
The estimated average loss percentage for 12 months is used to determine the provisioning matrix
at the reporting date.

The Group considers that the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly if its maturity is
exceeded by more than 90 days.

However, in some cases, the Group may consider a financial asset to be provisional when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is in danger of not receiving the full outstanding contractual amounts
before taking into account any credit improvements held by the Group. A financial asset is cancelled when
there are no reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual cash flow.
iii ) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate.
All financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value and, in the case of assessed financial liabilities, are
at amortized cost, net of directly attributable trading costs.
The Group's financial liabilities include only trade payables measured at amortized cost (trade and other
payables, as well as loans and receivables).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuing)
Subsequent events
Loans and borrowings
This is the most relevant category for the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and loans are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (RDE) method. Gains and losses
are recognized in the income statement when the liabilities are derecognized, as well as through the RDE
amortization process.
The amortized cost is calculated taking into account any reduction or acquisition premium and any
commissions and costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. RDE amortization is included as
financing costs in the event of profit or loss.
Trade and other payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group before the end of the
financial year and which are not paid. All amounts are unsecured. Trade payables and other payables are
presented as current payables unless payment is due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are
initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.
Trade payables and other payables with a maturity of 12 monts or less are not discounted.
Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation due is debited, cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial debt is replaced by another financial obligation from the same creditor in
substantive terms! different or if the terms of an existing obligation are substantially changed, such an
exchange or change is treated as derecognition of the original debt and recognition of a new debt. The
difference between the respective book values is recognized in the statement of profit or loss account.
iv) Offsetting OF financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amounts are presented in the statement of
financial position when the Group has the legal right to offset the recognized amounts and intends either to
settle them on a net basis or to recover the asset and settle the debt simultaneous.
2.3.14 Inventories

Inventories, which include vehicles for resale, spare parts, consumables and materials in the form of small
inventory items, are presented at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Upon termination of the leasing
or rental contracts, the relevant assets become the property of the Group and are reclassified from “Property,
plant and equipment to the fleet” or “right to use assets” to “Stocks” at book value. The net realizable value is
estimated based on the selling price related to the normal activity less the estimated costs for the sale.
When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognized as an expense and
reported as a component of cost of sales in the statement of comprehensive income in the period before
which the related income is recognized. The value of any reductions in inventories at net realizable value and
all inventories are recognized as an expense in the same component of the consolidated statement of profit
and loss and other comprehensive income as consumption of that inventory during the period in which the
reduction occurs. or loss, at the line “Other (losses) / gains - net”
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuing)
2.3.15 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash, cash equivalents and short-term deposits in the statement of financial position include cash and cash
equivalents and cash deposits.
For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits
with a maturity of less than 3 months, which are subject to insignificant risks of changes in value, net of bank
overdrafts because they are considered an integral part. of the Group's cash management.
2.3.16 Prepayments

Prepayments are carried at cost less provision for impairment. A prepayment is classified as non-current
when the goods or services relating to the prepayment are expected to be obtained after one year.
Prepayments to acquire current assets are transferred to the carrying amount of the asset once the Group
has obtained control of the asset and it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the asset
will flow to the Group.
Prepayments to acquire property, plant and equipment are classified as other receivables and current assets.
Other prepayments are written off to profit or loss when the goods or services relating to the prepayments
are received. If there is an indication that the assets, goods or services relating to a prepayment will not be
received, the carrying value of the prepayment is written down accordingly and a corresponding impairment
loss is recognized in profit or loss.

2.3.17 Equity

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. External costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are
presented as a deduction from equity from receipts. Any excess of the fair value of the price received over
the par value of the shares issued is recognized as additional paid-in capital.
Dividends
The Group recognizes a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders when the distribution
has been authorized and is therefore no longer at the discretion of the Group.
According to corporate laws in Romania, a distribution is authorized when it is approved by shareholders. A
corresponding amount is recognized directly in equity.
2.3.18 Provisions

General
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a current obligation (legal or implicit) generated by a previous
event, it is likely that an outflow of resources incorporating economic benefits is required to settle the
obligation and the value of the obligation can be estimated reliably. If the Group expects a provision to be
reimbursed in full or in part, for example, under an insurance contract, reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset, but only if reimbursement is almost certain. The expense related to the provision is presented
in the profit and loss account at the net value of any reimbursement.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuing)
If the effect of the time value of money is significant, provisions are discounted using a current Pre-tax rate
that reflects, where applicable, the specific risks of the debt. When the discount is applied, the increase in the
provision as a result of the passage of time is recognized as a financial cost.
Onerous contracts
A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the benefits expected to be obtained by the Group from
a contract are less than the unavoidable cost of fulfilling its obligations under the contract. The provision is
valued at the present value of the minimum between the expected cost of terminating the contract and the
expected net cost of continuing the contract. prior to the provision of a provision, the Group recognizes any
impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.
2.3.19 Employee benefits

During the normal course of business, the Group makes payments on behalf of its employees for pensions
(defined contribution plans), health insurance, payroll taxes which are calculated according to the statutory
quotas in force during the year, based on gross salaries. Food allowances, travel expenses and holiday
allowances are also calculated in accordance with the local legislation in force.
The cost of these payments is induced in the consolidated statement of profit and loss account and other
elements of the overall result in the same period as the related salary cost. Expected debts for holiday
allowances are recognized if there are unperformed leave, according to local legislation.
The Group does not operate any other pension plan or post-employment benefits and, as a result, has no
pension obligations.
2.4. Changes in accounting policies as of January 1st 2020
The accounting policies adopted are in line with those of the previous financial year, except for the following
amended International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) which were adopted by the Group on January
1st 2020.
The Group did not adopt other standards, interpretations or amendments that were issued early but were not
applicable.
• Conceptual Framework in IFRS standards
The International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB1”) issued the revised Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting on March 29, 2018. The Conceptual Framework establishes a comprehensive set of
concepts for financial reporting, standard setting, guidance for financial statements in the development of
accounting policies. consistency and assistance for users in understanding and interpreting standards. The
IASB also issued a separate attached document, Amendments to the Frame References! Conceptual in the
IFRS standards, which establishes the modifications of the affected standards in order to update the
references of the revised Conceptual Framework. The purpose of the document is to support the transition
to the revised Conceptual Framework for the entity that develops accounting policies using the Conceptual
Framework when no IFRS standard applies to a particular transaction. For those who prepare financial
statements and develop accounting policies based on the Conceptual Framework, the document enters into
force for annual periods starting on or after January 1st 2020.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuing)
•

IFRS 3: Business combinations (Amendments)

The IASB has issued amendments to the definition of an enterprise (Amendments to IFRS 3) in order to
address the challenges that arise when an entity determines whether it has acquired an enterprise or a group
of assets. The amendments are in force for business combinations for which the acquisition date is in the
annual reporting period starting on or after January 1st 2020 or later and for asset acquisitions occurring on
or after the beginning of that period, and early application is permitted. This change had no impact on the
current financial year
•

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors: Definition of “Significant”)

The amendments clarify the definition of the term “significant” and how it should be applied.
The new definition states that “information is material if its omission, concealment or misrepresentation could,
in a reasonable scenario, influence users' economic decisions based on financial statements that present
financial information about a specific entity.” Also, the explanations accompanying the definition have been
improved. The amendments also ensure the consistent definition of the term “significant” in all IFRS
Standards. This amendment had no impact on the current financial year.
• Reference interest rate reform: IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 (Amendments)

In September 2019, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 concluding the first stage
of its business to respond to the effects of the Interbank Offered Interest Rate (“IBOR”) reform on financial
reporting. The published amendments address issues that have an impact on financial reporting prior to
replacing an IBOR with an alternative reference rate and address the implications of the specific requirements
for the application of hedge accounting in IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement, which requires a predictive analysis. The amendments provide for temporary
exemptions applicable to all hedging relationships that are directly affected by the IBOR reform, which allow
for the continuation of hedge accounting in the period of uncertainty before replacing an IBOR with an almost
risk-free alternative reference rate. There are also amendments to IFRS 7 financial instruments:
Information to be provided on further information on the uncertainty resulting from the IBOR reform. The
changes take effect for annual periods beginning on or after January 1st 2020 and must be applied
retroactively. The second stage (exposure draft) focuses on issues that could affect financial reporting when
an existing interest rate benchmark is replaced by a risk-free interest rate (RFR). This change has had no
impact. on the current financial year.
NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT IN FORCE FOR THE
FINANCIAL YEAR STARTED ON JANUARY 1st 2019 AND HAVE NOT BEEN ADOPTED EARLY
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Classification of Debts as Current or Long-Term Debts
(Amendments)
The changes take effect for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1st 2022 and early
application is permitted. However, in response to the COV1D-19 pandemic, the Council postponed the date
of entry into force by one year, respectively to January 1st 2023, in order to give companies more time to
implement the required classification changes. The amendments aim to promote consistency in the
application of classification requirements by helping companies determine whether, in the statement of
financial position, liabilities and other payment obligations with uncertain settlement dates should be classified
as current or long-term. The amendments affect the presentation of liabilities in the statement of financial
position and do not change the existing requirements regarding the measurement or timing of the recognition
of any asset, liability, income or expense, nor the information that entities present regarding these items. The
amendments also clarify the debt classification requirements that can be settled by the company by issuing
equity instruments. These changes have not yet been adopted by the EU. Management has assessed that
the application of the changes will not have any impact on the Group's financial position or performance.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuing)
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in associates and joint ventures:
Transactions in the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and the associate or joint
venture (Amendment)
The amendments refer to an inconsistency identified between the requirements of IFRS 10 and those of IAS
28 in connection with the sale or contribution of an investor in favour of the associate or joint venture. The
main consequence of the changes is that a total gain or loss is recognized when the transaction involves an
enterprise (whether or not it is in the form of a subsidiary). A partial gain or loss is recognized when a
transaction involves assets that do not represent an enterprise, even if they are in the form of a subsidiary.
In December 2015, the IASB postponed indefinitely the date of entry into force of this amendment pending
the results of a research project on accounting using the equity method. The changes were not adopted by
the EU. Management has assessed that the application of the changes will not have any impact on the
Group's financial position or performance.
IFRS 3 Business combinations; IAS 16 Property, plant and equipment; IAS 37 Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets, and the 2018-2020 annual improvements (Amendments)
Changes take effect for annual periods beginning on or after January 1st 2022 and early application is
permitted. The IASB has issued amendments with a reduced scope to the following IFRS standards:
➢
➢

➢
➢

IFRS 3 Business combinations (Amendments) update a reference in IFRS 3 to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting, without changing the accounting requirements for business
combinations.
IAS 16 Tangible fixed assets (Amendments) the amendments prohibit a company from deducting from
the costs of property, plant and equipment the amounts received from the sale of the items produced,
while the company is preparing the asset for operation. Instead, a company will recognize these sales
receipts and the related cost in the profit or loss account.
IAS 37 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets (Amendments) changes indicate
exactly what costs a company includes when determining the cost of performing a contract in order to
assess whether a contract is onerous.
The annual improvements 2018-2020 bring minor changes to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standards, IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, IAS 41 Agriculture and the
Illustrative Examples accompanying IFRS 16 Leases

The changes have not yet been adopted by the EU. Management has assessed that the application of the
changes will not have any impact on the Group's financial position or performance.
IFRS 16 Leases for concessions granted as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic (Amendments)
The amendments apply retrospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on or after June 1, 2020. Early
application is permitted, including in financial statements that have not yet been authorized to be issued by
May 28, 2020. The IASB has amended the standard by granting exemptions to tenants. from the application
of the requirements of IFRS 16 regarding the treatment of amendments to leases for leases that arise as a
direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic. The amendments provide a practical solution for tenants to
account for any change in lease payments resulting from the lease concession that arose as a consequence
of COVID-19 in the same way that it would record the change, according to IFRS 16, if it were not a change.
of the lease, the facilities can be applied only if all the following conditions are met:
➢

The change in lease payments results in a revised consideration for the lease that is substantially
similar or lower! for the leasing contract immediately prior to the amendment;
➢
Any reduction in lease payments only affects payments initially due on or before June 30, 2021.
➢
There have been no substantive changes to the other terms and conditions of the leasing contract.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuing)
Management has assessed that the application of the changes will not have any impact on the Group's
financial position or performance.
Reform of the interest rate reference index - Second stage - IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS
16 (Amendments)
In August 2020, the IASB published the Interest Rate Reference Index Reform - Stage Two - Amendments
to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16, complementing its work to address the effects of the IBOR
reform. The amendments provide temporary exemptions that address the effects on financial reporting when
IBOR is replaced by an almost risk-free alternative (RFR). The amendments provide, in particular, for a
practical solution when accounting for changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows related
to financial assets and liabilities, requiring the adjustment of the effective interest rate - treatment similar to
a! a reference rate update event in the contract. The amendments also provide for exemptions from the
termination of the hedging relationship, including a temporary exemption from the need to separately identify
the hedged component when an RFR instrument is designated in a hedging relationship against a risk
component. in addition, the amendments to IFRS 4 are intended to allow insurers that continue to apply IAS
39 to obtain the same exemptions as those provided for in amendments to IFRS 9. There are also
amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures to allows users of financial statements1 to
understand the effects of the IBOR reform on financial instruments and risk management strategy. Changes
take effect for annual periods beginning on or after January 1st 2021 and early application is permitted.
Although the application is retrospective, the entities do not have to make restatements for the previous
periods. Management has assessed that the application of the changes will not have any impact on the
Group's financial position or performance.

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires its management to issue reasoning,
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts presented for income, expenses, assets and liabilities, as
well as the information presented that accompanies them, and contingent liabilities. However, the uncertainty
surrounding these estimates and assumptions could result in a significant future adjustment to the carrying
amount of the assets or liabilities.
Due to the uncertainty inherent in all measurement processes, these estimates are continuously reviewed.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any
future periods affected.
JUDGEMENTS
In the process of applying the Group's policies, the management used the following reasoning, which has the
most significant effect on the amounts presented in the financial statements:
Classification of leasing contracts - The group as lessor
The group has entered into leases for its car portfolio. The Group determined, on the basis of an assessment
of the terms and conditions of the agreements, such as the lease term that does not constitute a significant
part of the economic life of the vehicles and the current value of the minimum lease payments, which does
not amount to the fair value of the vehicle. , that it retains all the risks and benefits of the ownership right over
the motor vehicles and accounts for the contracts in the form of operational leasing.
The same reasoning applies to the equipment contract portfolio.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING REASONS, ESTIMATES AND HYPOTHESES ( continuing)
ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
The main assumptions about the future and other important causes of the uncertainty of the estimates at the
reporting date, which present a significant risk of causing a significant adjustment of the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the next financial year, are presented in continuing. The group based its assumptions
and estimates taking into account economic and market conditions at the date of preparation of the financial
statements. However, existing circumstances and assumptions regarding future developments may change
as a result of changes in the market or circumstances beyond the Group's control. These changes are
reflected in the hypotheses when they occur.
Review of useful lives and residual values of rental fleet assets

The basis for the depreciation of an item in the Group's fleet of motor vehicles leased under an operating
lease is the value of the acquisition cost less the estimated residual value, in combination with the estimated
useful life of the asset.
Management must assess the residual value and useful life of an asset at least at the end of each financial
year and assess whether specific impairment adjustments are necessary. Depending on the outcome of these
analyses, changes are accounted for as a change in accounting estimates reflected in forward-looking
amortization or as an adjustment for specific impairment.
The determination of any adjustment for impairment in respect of assets that are the subject of operating
leases (car fleet) depends primarily on how the recoverable amount is affected by the residual value that can
be obtained at the end of the lease. These estimates could have a significant impact on the carrying amount
of the assets leased to customers (car fleet) and on the amortization recognized in the income statement.
The Group closely monitors changes in residual values used in operating leases, both for the car fleet owned
by the Group and for the car fleet resulting from leases classified as assets related to the right of use (those
with transfer of ownership or purchase option).
Residual values are estimated based on sales value at the end of contracts and are largely influenced by the
number of km travelled by the car, manufacturer, vehicle condition, as well as the situation of second-hand
vehicle markets at the time the vehicles are sold, etc. The Group reviewed the residual values of its leased
fleet on December 31st 2020 and earlier, on an interim basis, taking into account both internal and external
factors, including the impact of pandemics on the second-hand market.
Similar estimates are made for vehicles purchased under leases (the Group as lessee) for which the Group
has the right to take ownership of the assets at the end of the leasing period and intends to exercise these
rights. These rights of use assets are depreciated on a policy similar to that described above, with similar
estimates regarding the residual value and the estimated useful life of the assets.
On December 31st 2020, the residual value is between 15% and 57% (2019: 31% and 63%). The additional
depreciation resulting from the revision of the residual value is RON 4,600 thousand lei.
Adjustments for depreciation of vehicles in the rental fleet
In its annual assessment of potential asset impairment indices, the Group considers both external and internal
sources of information. If there are indications of impairment, an analysis is performed to assess whether the
carrying amount of the asset (fleet of cars owned or presented as a right of use) exceeds the recoverable
amount, the latter being represented by the higher of fair value. little selling costs and usage value. Fair value
less costs to sell is calculated based on data available in the market from firm sales transactions, at market
value, for similar assets or market values that can be observed less costs that cannot be avoided with asset
disposal activities.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING REASONS, ESTIMATES AND HYPOTHESES (continuing)
The value in use is determined by the present value of the expected future cash flows to be obtained from
the cash-generating object or unit.
During 2020, the Group recorded a net impairment adjustment of RON 1,407 thousand covering both its own
fleet and the vehicles purchased under the leasing contracts (assets related to the right of use).
For more details please see the Note 14.
Inventories – cars - net realizable value

Stocks are valued at their net realizable value. These values are determined on the basis of available data
from binding sales transactions, conducted under conditions of full competition, for similar assets or
observable market prices, less incremental costs for the disposal of the asset. After reclassification from
property, plant and equipment or the right to use assets, impairment adjustments are recorded under Other
income.
Impairment losses on trade receivables
Measuring the indicator of anticipated debt losses for financial assets is an area that requires the use of
complex models and estimates of future economic conditions and the behaviour of commercial credit (for
example, the probability of giving rise to probability of default in customers and losses resulting from them).
Reasoning is required on the part of management to apply appropriate estimates and to establish arguments
for measuring anticipated debt losses.
The methodology and assumptions, including the forecasts regarding the future economic conditions, are
periodically analysed by the management. Details of the assumptions and estimation techniques used to
measure anticipated credit losses for receivables are detailed in the “Credit Risk” section of Note 19.
Impairment models are subject to annual review to ensure that they remain current and appropriate for the
purpose and use and performance continues to meet the Group's standards.
4.

COMBINATIONS OF ENTERPRISES

Autonom Services acquired BT Operational Leasing SA on June 30, 2018 with the initial purpose of merging
the two entities and to benefit from synergies. Due to the operational reasons related to the different days in
which the two entities operate, which required the change of vehicle identity cards (administrative procedures
to be performed by state authorities and would have required the immobilization of the entire fleet of BT
Operational Leasing SA for a few days), BT Operational Leasing SA continued its own operations until
January 1st 2021 - see below.
However, from the date of acquisition, the management's intention was to gradually transfer the customers
to Autonom Services (the parent entity), as the leasing contracts in the subsidiary are concluded.
The price paid for a percentage of 99.85% of the shares was in the amount of RON 28,295,325.
Starting with 17.09.2020 Autonom Services became the sole shareholder of BT Operational Leasing SA,
repurchasing the shares held by minorities.
On the date of preparation of these financial statements, the project of merger by absorption of BT Operational
Leasing by Autonom Services SA was approved on 01.01.2021, the company BT Operational Leasing being
deleted from the Trade Register starting with 04.03.2021.
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5. ADDITIONAL SERVICES REVENUE
2020
Insurance revenues and tolls
Maintenance income and other contractual components
Total

2019

41,764,754 36,954,290
10,441,188 14,431,816
52,205,942 51,386,106

6. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2020
Income from penalties
Car damage compensation income
Other income
Other income from renting
Total

2019

4,811,985 8,236,789
3,420,842 1,947,898
11,239,301 9,506,302
96,053
335,658
19,568,181 20,026,647

* For comparability, the amount of car damage compensation was deducted in 2019 from the total income from
penalties.
Other revenues refer to various amounts, re-invoiced to customers and to fuel re-invoicing and various reinvoicing to affiliated companies.

7. FLEET EXPENSES
2020
Fuel
Spare parts expenses
Expenses for repairs, maintenance and reconditioning
Expenditure on operating the car fleet
Insurance expenses
Expenses with other consumables
Expenses with registration of motor vehicles and other
commissions
Expenses for vehicle sanitation
Parking fees
Total

2019

5,048,746 7,905,978
12,452,112 15,755,743
14,432,542 15,917,766
5,446,063 4,523,583
9,732,614 9,967,708
154,837
284,767
192,191 1,798,595
962,517 1,614,871
96,647
261,717
48,518,269 58,030,728

8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
2020

2019

Salaries
Social contributions and other taxes
Expenses with lunch vouchers

24,336,275 26,634,045
680,902
740,115
1,059,256
856,046

Total

26,076,433 28,230,206
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9. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
2020
Telecommunications expenses
Headquarters expenses
Sales and marketing expenses
Other administrative expenses
Total

457,117
526,035
763,644
343,777
2,090,573

2019
593,185
538,134
1,370,220
281,562
2,783,101

10. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
2020
Other services performed by third parties (Note 10.1)
Commissions and fees
Transport of goods and personnel
Travel expenses
Bank fees and similar
Other similar taxes and expenses
Miscellaneous expenses
Miscellaneous expenses
Other expenses
Total

4,324,704
529,029
330,177
355,052
922,371
3,962,808
156,828
1,091,404
317,912
11,990,285

2019
2,491,900
341,760
2,544,260
869,134
1,033,625
2,856,896
795,892
887,011
216,882
12,037,360

10.1 OTHER THIRD PARTY SERVICES
2020
Training courses
IT services
Legal services
Medical services
Protocol
Audit and consulting
Security
Other services
Total

2019

227,921
1,206,682
186,547
152,713
166,106
848,174
121,817
1,414,744
4,324,704

384,915
479,528
364,161
172,401
69,789
688,223
117,013
215,870
2,491,900

Notes

2020

11. OTHER LOSSES / (GAINS) - NET

Net (Gain) / loss transfer of fixed capital assets
Inventory adjustment
Reverse inventory adjustments
Net adjustment for other provisions
Depreciation of fixed assets
Depreciation of trade liabilities
Total

20

21

2019

1,070,716
- 521,809
(668,126)
- (87,449)
(3,959)
1,637,542 6,968,613
969,416 8,469,730

Inventory adjustments represent the amount recognized from the measurement at minimum value between
cost and net realizable value for the machines to be sold.
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12. FINANCE COST/INCOME
12.1. – Finance costs

2020
Interest expense from loans
Interest on lease liabilities under IFRS 16
Foreign exchange losses, net
Total financial costs

2019

9,794,227 7,224,016
9,052,388 7,523,191
6,427,537 6,979,029
25,274,151 21,726,236

The variation of interest expenses from 2019 to 2020 takes into account the higher number of vehicles for
which Autonom Services obtained financing On December 31st 2020 and the interest paid for the bonds
issued in November 2019.
Loss on exchange rate differences refers to the fact that both entities have loans in EUR, and Autonom
Services has a large balance of debts and leases, most of which are denominated in EUR, which are
revalued in the functional currency at the end of the period. While the average EUR / RON exchange rate
had a steady increase in 2019 and 2020, the spot rate on December 31st 2020 increased significantly
compared to the previous year.
December
31st 2020
4.8694
1.9%
4.8371
1.9%

Exchange rate / Date
Spot
Variation
Average
Variation

December 31st
2019
4.7793
0.1%
4.7452
1.9%

12.2. Finance income

Interest income
Total finance income

2020

2019

1,329,928
1,329,928

507,193
507,193

13. INCOME TAX
The main components of corporate income tax expenses for the years ended December 31 st 2020 and
December 31st 2019 are:
2020
2019
Current profit tax:
Current income tax charge:

(1,049,513) (3,083,846)

Deferred income tax:
In connection with the initial recognition and reversal of temporary differences
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss and other
comprehensive income
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13. PROFIT TAX (continuing)
A reconciliation between the fiscal expense and the product of the accounting profit multiplied by the internal
taxation rate of Romania for the years ended On December 31st 2020 and 2019 is the following:

2020
Accounting profit before income tax
At statutory income tax rate of 16%
Non-taxable income
Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes
Legal reserves deduction
Other profit tax reductions
Exemptions for sponsorships
Income tax reported in the statement of profit and loss account and other
comprehensive income

Reconciliation of deferred tax l;iabilities, net

Notes

2019

9,324,259 19,791,406
(1,491,881) (3,166,625)
139,589
(882,774) (822,416)
45,223
140,429
212,145
756,697
727,100
(2,117,287) (2,225,226)

2020

2019

January 1st

(7,022,214) (7,880,834)

Tax / credit expenses during the period recognized in profit or loss

(1,067,774)

December 31st

(8,089,988) (7,022,214)

858,620

Deferred income tax
Reconciliation of deferred income tax with the corresponding elements in the statement of comprehensive
income:

Statement of financial
position
December 31st
2020
Property,plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Impairment of trade receivables
Deferred income
Others
Deferred tax benefit

(9,831,769)
932,775
608,065
200,941

Net deferred tax liabilities

(8,089,988

December
31st
2019

Statement of
comprehensive
income

2020

2019

(9,249,530) 582,239 1,747,884
(372,288) (372,288) (399,488)
1,226,131 293,356 (1,022,188)
881,448 273,383 (881,448)
492,025 291,084 (303,380)
1,067,774 (858,620)
(7,022,214)

The Group offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities refer to corporate income
taxes levied by the same tax authority.
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
On December 31st 2020, the gross book value of fully depreciated fixed assets that were still in use is RON 43,666,072 (December 31 st 2019; 271,480 RON).

Lands
Cost
January 1st 2019
Additions
Transfers in inventories
Transfer to the right to use of the assets
Transfer to real estate investments
Balance on December 31st 2019

Buildings
564,542
564,542

Additions
Transfer in inventories
Transfer to other categories of fixed assets
Transfer in inventories
Disposals
Balance on December 31st 2020

34

Furniture and
fittings

710,195
710,195
-

Rental fleet and
rental
Constructions in
equipment
progress (CIP)

2,530,391
695,397
1,834,994

-

-

564,542

-

585,881
774,208
600,548
2,594,535

502,114,760
51,064,567
58,946,260
250,814,510
243,418,557

Total

- 505,919,888
- 51,064,567
- 58,946,260
- 251,509,907
710,195
- 245,818,093

89,228,205

797,208

87,443,724
5,901,896
239,301,142

(774,208)
23,000

90,611,294
87,443,724
6,502,444
242,483,219
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continuing)
Vehicle fleet and
Lands
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
January 1st 2019
Depreciation expense
Depreciation expense – related to the branch vehicle fleet
Transfer in inventories
to other categories of fixed assets
Transfer to the right to use of the assets
Disposals
Balance on December 31st 2019
Amortisation expense
Depreciation expense
Transfer in inventories
Disposals
Balance on December 31st 2020
Net book value on December 31st 2019
Net book value on December 31st 2020

Furniture and
fittings

Buildings
-

-

564,542
564,542

251,448
119,682

974,571
741,267

371,130
-

-

Rental fleet and
Constructions in
rental
equipment
progress (CIP)

-

1,715,838

77,849,160
39,449,631
5,672,422
22,777,144
52,440,025
47,754,044

894,461
475,691
2,134,607
119,156
459,928

44,644*44 i
190,618
52,363,114
3,071,357
37,154,631
195,664,513
202,146,510

-

Total
79,075,179
40,310,580
5,672,422
22,777,144
371,130
52,440,025
49,469,882

45,538,901
190,618
52,363,114
3,547,049
39,289,239
- 196,348,211
23,000 203,193,980

As of December 31st 2019, out of the total car fleet and rental equipment, RON 23,792 thousand represents rental equipment, and RON 171,874 thousand represents
vehicles from the rental fleet.
As of December 31st 2020, out of the total car fleet and rental equipment, RON 30,267 thousand represents rental equipment, and RON 171,880 thousand represents
vehicles from the rental fleet
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continuing)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment of subsidiary
On December 31st 2019, the management of the Autonomous Group acknowledged that the evolution of the
profitability of the BTOL subsidiary due to the loss of contracts and the decrease of the market value of certain
vehicles for sale could indicate that certain fixed assets of the subsidiary may register a loss of value.
As a result, a depreciation analysis for the BTOL car fleet was performed, at item level, taking into account
the fair value of each vehicle in the car fleet as of December 31 st 2019 compared to their book value on that
date and was recorded a depreciation of RON 5,672,422.
During 2020, following the management analysis, specific depreciation provisions were registered in the
amount of RON 1,407,622 at the level of the entire car fleet - including those presented in the right of use
category. Regarding the value adjustment recorded at the level of the car fleet of the BTOL subsidiary, the
management considered it appropriate to maintain the adjustment, without having any indications that this
value adjustment should be modified.
The summary of depreciation, amortization and impairment of fixed assets for the financial years 2020 and
2019 is included in the following table:

Depreciation of vehicles in the car fleet and rented equipment
Amortization of the right to use assets
Impairment of the right to use assets and vehicles in the car fleet
Depreciation and adjustment for depreciation of vehicles in the car
fleet and equipment

Depreciation of real estate investments
Depreciation of buildings
Depreciation of other assets
Depreciation of customer relations
Depreciation of other fixed assets
Depreciation, amortization and impairment of other fixed assets
Total

2020

2019

44,644,441
58,838,712
1,407,622

39,449,631
5,672,422
40,166,296

104,890,775

85,288,349

59,869
2,529,444
894,461
2,326,800
83,452
5,894,025

85,764
2,112,611
860,258
2,496,800
114,942
5,670,375

110,784,800

90,958,724

As of December 31st 2020, the amounts pledged are RON 493,762,076 - acquisition value (December 31st
2019: 481,421,108 RON).
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
Set out below are the carrying amounts of the Company’s right-of-use assets and lease liabilities and the
movements during the period:

Right-of-use assets
Vehicles and
equipment

Buildings
On January 1st 2019
Recognized upon adoption of IFRS 16
Additions
Depreciation expense
Transfer to inventories (net)
Disposals
Interest expenses
Early termination of leasing agreements
Exchange rate
Payments
On December 31st 2019
Of which:
Current
Non-current

On January 1st 2020
Additions
Amortisation expense
Depreciation expense
Transfer in inventories (net)
Transfers
Interest expenses
Early termination of leasing
agreements
Exchange rate
Payments
On December 31st 2020
Of which:
Current
Non-current

Total

199,439,415
187,872,777
(40,166,296)
(25,315,535)
(3,766,637)
318,063,726

6,207,112
745,499
(2,112,611)
(21,310)
_
4,818,690

Lease
liabilities

205,646,527
188,618,277
(42,278,907)
(25,315,535)
(21,310)
(3,766,637)
322,882,415

155,041,364
6,576,645
188,618,277
7,523,191
(3,766,637)
1,840,155
(93,465,179)
262,367,816
81,487,710
180,880,106

Right-of-use assets
Vehicles and
Buildings
equipment
4,818,690
318,063,726
1,458,817
104,587,315
(2,529,444)
(58,838,712)
(1,217,003)
(40,267,789)
(30,994)
(851,403)
-

Total
322,882,415
106,046,132
(61,368,156)
(1,217,003)
(40,267,789)
(882,397)
-

-

(1,222,850)
-

(1,222,850)
-

3,717,069

320,253,284

Lease
liabilities
262,367,816
106,046,132
9,052,388

(1,222,850)
2,943,695
(100,372,613)
323,970,352 278,814,568
66,055,713
212,758,855

The Group has recognized short-term leasing expenses in the amount of RON 151,057. There are no leases
for low-value assets and no variable lease payments for the year ended on December 31 st 2020.
At the end of the leasing contracts, the vehicles registered as the Right to use the assets become the property
of the group and are used for the rental activity or transferred to stocks to be sold.
Assets acquired under financial leasing are pledged in favour of leasing companies.
The uncollected amounts available from the leasing contracts signed with leasing financial institutions on
December 31st 2020 amount to RON 61,928,696 and EUR 2,524,000 (on December 31 st 2019: EUR 12,969
thousand).
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16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Investment
properties

Cost
On January 1st 2019
Additions
Disposals
On December 31st 2019
Additions
Disposals
On December 31st 2020

1,301,922
339,065
281,085
1,732,465
1,732,465

On January 1st 2019
Depreciation charge
Disposals
On December 31st 2019
Depreciation charge
Dosposals
On December 31st 2020

107,646
85,764
112,341
81,069
59,869
140,938

Net book value
On December 31st 2019
On December 31st 2020

1

1,651,396
1,591,527

The fair value of real estate investments on December 31st 2020 is worth 1,977,400 RON for buildings (on
December 31st 2019: 1,340,145 RON).
Real estate investments represent the buildings rented to the Group's affiliated bettors. Rental income from
real estate investments is presented in note 7 “Other operating income”, under “Other rental income”.
Real estate investments are linearly depreciated over a period of 32-60 years.
The fair value of real estate investments was determined using the income approach, the most significant
unobservable criteria being the rent per square meter (between 2-3.15 EUR) and the discount rate used of
11%.
The real estate investment is pledged in favour of a money as collateral guarantee for the received
financing.
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17.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Licences and
other
intangibles

Customer
relationships

Total

Cost
On January 1st 2019
Additions
Disposals
On December 31st 2019
Additions
Disposals

6,157,000
6,157,000
-

916,890
101,759
1,018,649
243,862
-

7,073,889
101,759
7,175,649
243,862
-

On December 31st 2020

6,157,000

1,262,511

7,419,511

Accumulated amortisation
On January 1st 2019
Amortisation expense
Disposals
On December 31st 2019
Amortisation expense
Disposals

2,496,800
3,830,200
2,326,800
-

398,393
114,942
903,283
83,452
-

398,393
2,611,742
4,733,483
2,410,252.
-

On December 31st 2020

6,157,000

986,735

7,143,735

Net book value
On December 31st 2019
On December 31st 2020

2,326,800
-

115,366
275,776

2,442,166
275,776

Inputs from 2020 consist mainly of the acquisition of software licenses.
18.

INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS
December 31st December 31st
2020
2019

Long-term credits and loans
Long-term loan banks

51,508,411
96,622,374
148,130,785

.90,007,861
95,341,617
185,349,478

Accrued interest for bond
Current bank loans and accrued interest

613,950
72,818,359

115,781
76,768,198

Subtotal

73,432,309

76,883,979

221,563,094

262,233,457

Bonds – unsecured fixed rate

Subtotal
Current

Total credits and loans carrying interest
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18. INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS (continuing)

Bank

Type

Bank D

Overdraft

Bank D

Maturity

Balance in bank
currency at 31 December 2020

Currency

Balance in
RON at 31 December 2020

Short term

Long term

6,669,513

RON

6,669,513

6,669,513

-

Investment loans

04/05/2021
84 months from the date
of the signing of the contract, but no later than
10.07.2025

2,037,037

EUR

9,919,148

2,164,178

7,754,970

Bank J

Overdraft

19/10/2020

2,642,852

RON

2,642,852

2,642,852

-

Bank E

Overdraft

28/11/2020

8,612,753

RON

8,612,753

8,612,753

-

Bank E

Equipment line

02/08/2024

2,351,287

RON

2,351,287

1,131,461

1,219,826

Bank H

Car purchase line

03/03/2023

2,873,663

RON

2,873,663

2,873,663

-

Bank H

Car purchase line

03/03/2023

1,383

EUR

6,734

6,734

-0

Bank G

Credit line

23/07/2020

2,489,000

RON

2,489,000

2,489,000

-

Bank G

Investment loans

05/07/2023

483,417

RON

483,417

446,300

37,117

Bank G

Investment loans

05/07/2022

297,755

RON

297,755

297,755

-

Bank G

Investment loans

27/07/2025

261,352

EUR

1,272,628

602,704

669,924

Credit line

13/11/2021

3,235,509

RON

3,235,509

3,235,509

0

Credit facility

14/11/2025

23,222,874

RON

23,222,874

6,404,942

16,817,932

Car purchase line

30/05/2020

8,162,529

RON

8,162,529

4,564,641

3,597,888

Bank B
Bank B
Bank F
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Bank C

18.

Car purchase line

max.57 months from the
date of each use luni de
la data fiecarei utilizari
expressed by the application for use and reimbursement;

2,842,390

RON

2,842,390

1,966,555

875,835

RON

-

-

-

INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS (continuing)

Bank C

Car purchase line

36/48 months from the
date of each use expressed by the application
for use and reimbursement;

Bank I

Car purchase line

13/01/2022

1,026,590

RON

1,026,590

512,010

514,580

Bank M

Cra purchase line

19/07/2023

2,493,273

RON

2,493,273

1,341,983

1,151,290

Bank N

Car purchase oine

28/11/2025

307,653

EUR

1,498,086

374,521

1,123,565

20,000,000

EUR

96,622,374

-

96,622,374

9,082,591

EUR

44,226,769

26,481,285

17,745,484

EUR
RON

613,950
221,563,093

613,950
73,432,309

148,130,785

Bank S
Credit facility
Bank B
Total:

Bank

30/11/2023

-

Bonds interest

Type

Bank D
Bank D

Overdraft
Investment loans

Bank J
Bank D
Bank E
Bank H

Overdraft
Investments loan
Equipment line
Equipment line

Maturity

04.04.2020
84 months from the date of signing the
contract but not later than 10.07.2025
10.10.2020
31.01.2020
02.08.2024
03.03.2023

Balance in bank
currency at
31 December
2019

7,439,612
2,481,481
1,163,651
2,151,875
3,569,259
1,272,466

Currency

RON
EUR
RON
EUR
RON
EUR
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Balance in
RON at
31 December
2019

Short term

Long term

7,439,612

7,439,612

-

11,859,744
1,163,651
10,284,456
3,569,259
6,081,498

11,859,744
1,163,651
10,284,456
777,835
2,705,880

2,791,424
3,375,618
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Bank
Bank G
Bank G
Bank B
Bank K

Type

05.07.2022
05.07.2022
2020
15.01.2020
15.01.2021
15.01.2020
Bank F
Credit facility
15.12.2023
Bank A
Credit facility
20.06.2020
Bank C
Unfunded credit fa- 36 months /48 months from the date of
cility, revolving
each use expressed by the application
for use and reimbursement
Bank I
Credit facility
13.01.2022
Bank M
Credit line revolving 19.07.2023
Bank S
Bonds
05.11.2024
Bank B
Credit facility
30.11.2023
Less deferred loan origination
fees
Total:

Investments loan
Investments loan
Car purchase line
Car purchase line

Maturity

Balance in bank
currency at
31 December
2019
2,490,455
137,502
4,958,701

237,085
9,958,850
57,276

385,498
1,538,600
3,824,426
20,000,000
21,378,055

Currency
RON
EUR
RON
EUR

RON
EUR
RON

RON
RON
EUR
EUR

Balance in
RON at
31 December
2019

Short term

Long term

2,490,455
657,164
4,958,701

854,009
117,701
1,488,947

1,636,445
539,463
3,469,754

1,133,098
9,958,850
273,738

1,133,098
9,958,850
273,738

-

385,498
1,538,600
3,824,429
95,701,781
102,172,139

375,536
738,528
1,625,888
115,781
25,970,723

9,963
800,072
2,198,539
95,586,000
76,201,416

(1,259,216)
RON
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262,233,457

(1,259,216)
76,883,979

185,349,478
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18. INTEREST-BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS (continuing)
Unsecured Corporate Bonds
In November 2019, the Group issued unsecured bonds of 20 million EURO. The bonds issued in euro for five
years expire on November 5th 2024 and have a fixed interest rate of 4.45%. The first interest coupon was paid
on November 5th 2020.
Financial liabilities for unsecured fixed rate bonds are calculated using the financial information in the Group's
consolidated financial statements and include the Consolidated Interest Rate, with a minimum of 4%, and Net
Financial Debts / EBITDA, which must be maximum or equal to 3.5.
Financial commitments related to bonds are fulfilled On December 31st 2020 (were fulfilled on December 31 st
2019).
Interest rate:
The interest rates for local currency loans are ROBOR 1M and ROBOR 3M plus the fixed margin negotiated
with the banks. EURIBOR 3M and EURIBOR 6M plus fixed margin negotiated with banks are used for foreign
currency loans.

Interest bearing loans and borrowings Covenants (other than Bonds):
(other than bonds):

Most of the Company's credit agreements with banks have been amended so that all provisions regarding
financial indicators are aligned with the provisions of the bond issue prospectus, i.e. the indicators from the
consolidated financial statements will be taken into account, respectively the interest rate must be at least 4%
and Net financial debts / EBITDA, which must be maximum or equal to 3.5.
Failure to comply with the agreements would allow banks to request immediate repayment of loans.
On December 31st 2020 all the commitments from the loan agreements signed with the banks were met, with
one exception, a credit facility for the amount of 2,642 thousand RON. This amount was already recorded as a
short-term debt, representing a loan agreement in the table above. In March of this year, an additional contract
was signed for this loan agreement, which was amended to align with those in the bond prospectus. (On
December 31st 2019, certain breaches of commitments in loan agreements were observed under the
contractual framework in force with several currencies, which led to the reclassification of Long-term loans into
Short-term instalments on the balance sheet date, in value of RON 24,720 thousand, representing 4 credit
agreements from the table above).
Pledges:
Bank loans are secured by collateral on: property, plant and equipment (Note 14), real estate investments (Note
16), cash and cash equivalents (Note 22) and receivables (Note 21).
As of December 31st 2020, the Company had a net amount of RON 61,928,696 and 2,524,000 euros available
in credit facilities (December 31st 2019: RON 46,901,048 and 6,211,314 euros), therefore being able to meet
any unforeseen cash needs.

43

AUTONOM SERVICES SA
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
All amounts in RON, unless specified otherwise

19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group's main financial liabilities include loans and borrowings, including financial leasing and trade
payables and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Group's operations.
The Group's financial assets are represented by loans, trade and other receivables, cash and short-term
deposits resulting directly from its operations, as well as long-term deposits to guarantee debts on rents.
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk, exchange rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's
management oversees the management of these risks. The Group's management ensures that the activities
through which the Group assumes financial risks are governed by appropriate procedures and that financial
risks are identified, quantified and managed in accordance with the Group's risk appetite.
Interest rate risk
The Group's operating income and cash flows are significantly independent of changes in market interest rates.
Trade receivables and payables and other receivables and payables are non-interest-bearing financial assets
and liabilities. loans are usually exposed to interest rate risk through fluctuations in the market value of longterm and short-term interest-bearing credit facilities. The interest rates for the Group's loans and borrowings are
variable. The interest rates for the Group's credit facilities are presented in Note 18. The change in interest rates
primarily affects loans and borrowings by changing the related cash flows (floating rate debt). The
management's policy is to use mainly variable rate financing. However, at the time of obtaining new loans or
loans, management makes an assessment to determine whether a fixed or variable rate would be more
favourable for the Group for the expected period to maturity.
Interest rate sensitivity

The table below demonstrates sensitivity to a possible reasonable change in the interest rate. With all other
variables held constant, the Group's pre-tax profit and equity are affected by the impact on variable rate loans,
as follows:

2020
RON
EUR
2019
RON
EUR

Increase
in basis
points
1%

Effect on
profit before
tax
(4,017,222)
(994,296)
(3,022,926)

1%

(4,789,585)
(225,354)
(4,564,231)

The group does not insure its interest rate risk.
Changes in percentage points of the interest rate assumed for the sensitivity rate analysis are based on the
current observable market environment. An equal decrease in the interest rate would have the same effect but
an opposite sign.
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19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK MANAGEMENT (continuing)
Foreign currency risk
Exchange rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due
to changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in the exchange rate mainly
refers to the Group's financing activities, as the financing obtained by the Group is expressed in EUR. The vast
majority of income, expenses, trade receivables and payables and other receivables and payables are
expressed in RON.
The Group monitors the currency risk following the changes in the exchange rates of the currencies in which
the balances within the Group and the debts to third parties are expressed. The group has no formal
arrangements to reduce the foreign exchange risk it faces.
Foreign currency sensitivity
The table below demonstrates sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the EUR exchange rate. The
Group's exposure to exchange rate changes for all other currencies is not material.
With all other variables held constant, the Group's profit before tax and equity are affected as follows:

Change in
EUR rate
31 December 2020
31 December 2019

1%
1%

Effect on profit
before tax
(4,017,222)
(4,564,231)

Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a business partner will fail to fulfil its contractual obligations or to experience
financial difficulties, thus generating a financial loss for the Group. The Group is exposed to credit risk from
operating activities (mainly trade receivables) and from financing activities, including cash deposits and financial
institutions.
The Group's credit risk is mainly attributed to trade and other receivables, as well as cash balances. The carrying
amount of trade and other receivables, net of the adjustment for impairment (Note 21) plus cash balances (Note
18) represents the maximum amount exposed to credit risk Management considers that there is no significant
risk of loss for the Group, except for adjustments already registered.
The Group invests cash and cash equivalents in trusted financial institutions. The group has only ordinary
deposits with a good reputation, which did not register any difficulties in 2019 or until the date of approval of
these consolidated financial statements.
There is no significant concentration of credit risk in respect of trade and other receivables because the Group
has a large portfolio of customers.
In order to identify the exposure to credit risk, the Group makes assessments of the financial positions of
counterparties. The Group has internal rules and procedures regarding the analysis and approval of operational
leasing contracts, differentiated by exposure level.
The Group has internal rules and procedures for monitoring the concentration of exposures by sector of activity,
by type of client, by type of financed asset, by geographical area, by risk category.

45

AUTONOM SERVICES SA
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
All amounts in RON, unless specified otherwise

19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK MANAGEMENT (continuing)
Trade receivables
The client's credit risk is managed by each unit in accordance with the Group's policies, procedures and control
over credit risk management. A customer's creditworthiness is based on that customer's collection history.
Outstanding receivables and contractual assets are constantly monitored and collection or recovery plans are
discussed with customers as soon as significant payments become outstanding. Receivables related to certain
customers, for which, as a result of the grouping according to specific risk factors (such as the total number of
days of prohibition on collection and the number of overdue maturities repeatedly) as well as the identified legal
and legal aspects have were analysed individually. Based on historical data on the collection of overdue
receivables over time, the Group determined a provisioning matrix for the remaining receivables in the balance
sheet at the reporting date, in which the segmentation of the population represented by outstanding receivables
was performed based on similar characteristics related to line of business and applied this matrix to update the
provision for expected loss of receivables.
Provisioning rates are based on the analysis of the actual collection of receivables to which these general
analysis criteria apply, grouped according to relevant criteria related to the days of delay in collection and the
type of services invoiced. In order to conclude on the stability and relevance of the determined loss rates, the
process was applied for two distinct periods (October 2019 - October 2020 and June 2019 - June 2020) and the
loss rates were established as the average of the rates of the two periods. The detailed analysis is described
below.
The following steps have been applied to determine historical debt loss rates:
➢
➢

Identification of open, uncollected invoices at the beginning of each collection interval,
For the above invoices, the determination of the balance receivable at the end of each analysed interval

Expected losses from receivables are determined as uncollected amounts at the end of a collection interval,
applying the assumption that the amounts collected after each analysed interval can improve the loss rate only
marginally.
Debt loss rates are calculated for receivables grouped by seniority, as a ratio between the amounts uncollected
at the end of the analysis interval and the amounts outstanding at the beginning of the analysis period, for the
same invoice population.
The customer database within the Group is homogeneous in terms of credit risk characteristics, therefore the
following criteria have been used for segmentation of trade receivables.:
• The group entity (i.e., trade receivables and contractual assets were analysed in separate segments for each
entity based on a similar methodology for estimating credit losses); and
• relevant seniority intervals.
The calculation reflects the weighted result in probability, the amount of time in cash and reasonable and
acceptable information that is available at the time of reporting on previous events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions. The group has no material guarantees from customers. Moreover, there
are no credit improvements obtained by the Group that would significantly change the credit risk or affect the
credit risk allocation.
In general, trade receivables are cancelled if they are due more than one year and are not subject to foreclosure.

In continuing, the information on the exposure to credit risk from the trade receivables and contractual assets
of the Group is presented using a matrix of provisions:
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19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK MANAGEMENT (continuing)

31 December 2020
Expected credit loss rate
Gross carrying amount
Expected credit loss

31 December 2019
Expected credit loss rate
Gross carrying amount
Expected credit loss

Current

Trade Receivables
Days past due
31 to 60
61 to 90

1 to 30

1.04%
12,908,514
133,741

Current

4.15%
3,297,372
136,731

32.71%
1,053,132
344,467

Trade Receivables
Days past due
31 to 60
61 to 90

1 to 30

3.67%
7,936,008
291,679

13.26%
1,936,435
256,807

3.73%
6,021,530
224,517

30.61%
1,450,951
444,150

48.34%
723,869
349,905

91 to 120
40.67%
723,762
294,378

91 to 120
62.88%
500,422
314,671

over 120

Total

96.84%
16,915,996
16,381,734

36,835,211
17,547,857

above 120

Total

99.91%
14,297,725
14,285,436

30,930,505
15,910,358

Liquidity risk
The Group has adopted a prudent financial liquidity management approach, based on the premise that sufficient
cash and cash equivalents are maintained and that in the future there will be funding from guaranteed funds in
credit lines. The table below summarizes the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including principal and
future interest estimated under commercial contracts, on December 31st 2020 and December 31st 2019 based
on outdated contractual payments.

31 decembrie 2020
Credite si imprumuturi purtatoare
de dobanzi si leasing financiar
Datorii din leasing
Datorii comerciale si alte datorii
Total:

31 December 2019
Interest-bearing loans and
borrowings and financial leases
Lease liabilities
Trade and other payables
Total:

On
demand

Less than 3
months

3 to 12
months

1 to 5
years

2,642,852

13,387,104

63,280,016 167,053,414

1,506,523
477,817
4,627,192

19,404,915
7,102,337
41,952,680

52,949,426 222,858,800
4,831,562
3,896,940
118,418,152 393,809,154

On
Demand

Less than
3 months

33,323,740
1,431,969
1,839,992
36,595,701

13,426,628
22,395,742
13,294,048
49,116,418
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3 to 12
months

1 to 5
years

36,511,441 224,377,404
64,898,107 189,934,144
101,409,548 414,311,548

>5
years

Total
-

>5
years

3,327,317
3,327,317

246,363,386
296,719,664
16,308,656
559,391,706

Total

307,639,212
278,659,961
18,461,357
604,760,530
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19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK MANAGEMENT (continuing)
As of December 31st 2020, the Group had undrawn committed borrowing facilities in amount of RON
45,593,315 and EUR 11,742,361 (December 31st 2019: RON 49,867,144) therefore being able to meet any
unforeseen cash needs.
The outdated lease payments that must be received annually based on the maturity analysis are the following
(currently no amount receivable is scheduled for more than 5 years):
December 31st 2020 Within 1 year

Total:

1-2 years

139,319,389 103,877,178

2-3 years

3-4 years

4-5 years

67,790,444 35,225,870 5,681,812 351,894,694

December 31st 2019 Within 1 year 1-2 years

2-3 years

Total:

64,028,820 27,520,054 7,343,394

145,018,349

105,715,236

Total

3-4 years

4-5 years

Total

349,681,852

Capital management
Capital includes equity attributable to the capital holders of the parent entity.
The main objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a good credit rating and
sound capital indicators in order to sustain its activity and maximize shareholder value.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes changes to it according to the changes in the economic
conditions and the requirements of the financial commitments. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the payment of dividends to shareholders, repay the capital to shareholders or issue new
shares.
The Group may monitor capital using an indicator of the degree of indebtedness which is the net debt divided
by total capital plus net debt - See Note 28.
The purpose of the Group's capital management is, inter alia, to ensure that it fulfils its financial commitments
in accordance with the capital agreements. loan, which define certain requirements regarding the structure of
capital.
For the performance indicators in force on December 31st 2020 and December 31st 2019, see Note 18.
Fair values
The Group does not have financial instruments recorded at fair value in the statement of financial position.
The carrying amount of interest-bearing loans and loans is approximately the same as the fair value.
Management estimates that the profit margin applicable to Euribor at the balance sheet date would be similar
to the dates of previous withdrawals, as the Group has maintained a low level of indebtedness and a stable
financial situation in recent years, as well as based on statistics published by the National Bank of Romania.
Financial instruments that are not recorded at fair value in the statement of financial position also include
deposits to guarantee rents, trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and trade and other
payables.
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19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK MANAGEMENT (continuing)

Management considers that the carrying amounts of these financial instruments are approximately the same
as their fair values due to their short-term maturity (mostly) and the low trading costs of these instruments.

Changes in debts arising from financing activities

Leasing
Sold on January 1st 2019
Recognised on adopting IFRS
16
Withdrawals
Issuance of bonds
Transaction cost – bond related
Interest expense
Early termination of lease agreements
Reclassification to short term
Repayments
Interest paid
Withdrawals overdraft
Foreign exchange movement
Balance on December 31st 2019

155,041,364

Long-term
loans

Total

82,828,381 130,076,235

367,945,980

6,576,645
188,618,277
- 26,662,271
- 95,009,617
(823,560)
7,523,191
1,857,085
5,367,392
(3,766,637)
- 24,720,476 (24,720,476)
(86,235,908) (39,838,487) (44,226,982)
(7,229,271) (1,857,085) (5,367,392)
8,603,264
1,840,155
570,345
3,372,373
262,367,816 76,883,979 185,349,478

6,576,645
215,280,548
95,009,617
(823,560)
14,747,668
(3,766,637)
(170,301,379)
(14,453,748)
8,603,264
5,782,875
524,601,273

Long-term
loans

Total

262,367,816 76,883,979 185,349,478
106,046,132 11,925,836 42,021,114
9,052,388
4,650,827
5,139,984
(1,222,850)
(91,320,225) (28,199,524) (79,993,583)
(9,052,388) (4,650,827) (5,139,984)
- 10,091,954
2,943,695
2,730,064
753776
278,814,568 73,432,309 148,130,785

524,601,273
159,993,082
18,843,199
(1,222,850)
(199,513,332)
(18,843,199)
10,091,954
6,427,535
500,377,662

Leasing
Balance on January 1st 2020
Withdrawals
Issuance of bonds
Transaction cost – bond related
Interest expenses
Early termination of lease agreements
Payments
Paid interest
Overdraft drawing
Exchange rate variation
Balance on December 31st 2020

Short-term
loans
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20. INVENTORIES
December 31st December 31st
2020
2019
1,799,740
11,229,716
(668,126)
1,799,740
10,561,590

Cars for sale
Other inventories
Less allowances for inventories
Total inventories

The stocks consist mainly of machines for sale and the revenues from these sales are pledged under the
financial leasing contracts that the Group has in force with the banks.
21. COMMERCIAL RECEIVABLES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, CURRENT ASSETS S! EXPENSES!

REGISTERED IN ADVANCE
Trade liabilities
December
December
31st 2020
31st 2019
36,835,211
30,930,505
1,538,729
943,706
(17,547,857) (15,910,358)
599,810
21,425,893
15,963,853
172,554
384,713
21,598,447
16,348,566

Trade receivables
Trade receivables from related parties
Less allowance for impairment of trade receivables
Unbilled receivables
Trade receivables, net
Guarantees – non-current
Total
Other receivables and current assets
VAT and other taxes
Advances granted to suppliers
Other receivables
Total

1,109,371
3,215,008
646,896
4,971,276

3,350,473
3,754,782
125,357
7,230,612

Prepayments

1,012,467

391,778

The terms and conditions relating to related party transactions are described in Note 26.
Trade receivables are not interest-bearing and 70-80% are within 10-40 days and for the difference of 20-30%
the maturity is longer than 40 days.

On January 1st 2019
Provision for anticipated credit losses
Unused amounts resumed
On December 31st 2019

Total
8,941,745
7,777,175
(808,562)
15,910,358

On January 1st 2020
Provision for anticipated credit losses
Unused amounts resumed
On December 31st 2020

15,910,358
1,637,499
17,547,857

Allowance for expected credit losses
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22.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

December 31st
2020
Cash in RON
Overnight deposits
Cash in (foreign currency)
Cash in the cash desk RON
Cash in the cash desk (foreign currency)
Other cash equivalent
Total
Overdraft
Cash and cash equivalents for the statement of cash flows

December
31st 2019

42,050,845
5,621,463
26,773,662
135,916
21,546
9,730
74,613,162

60,749,454
3,577,435
24,826,048
173,934
19,769
31,494
89,378,134

(17,925,118)

(8,603,264)

56,688,044

80,774,870

Except for the value of RON 46.009, all cash accounts are guaranteed in favour of banks (the remaining value
of number accounts that were not guaranteed in favour of banks on December 31 st 2019 is RON 74,791).
23.

ISSUED CAPITAL AND EQUITY RESERVES

Shareholder structure on December 31st 2020 and December 31st 2019 is:
Shareholders
Stefan Dan George
Stefan Marius
Autonom International
Total:

No. of shares Value (RON)
20,000
200,000
20,000
200,000
1,960,000 19,600,000

%

2,000,000 20,000,000

1
1
98
100

The value of the authorized capital on December 31st 2020 was RON 20,000,000 (December 31st 2019: RON
20,000,000) representing 2,000,000 shares (December 31st 2019: 2,000,000 shares). All shares are nominal,
subscribed and paid in full on December 31st 2020. All shares have the same voting rights and a nominal
value of 10 RON / share (December 31st 2019: 10 RON / share).
The shares of Autonom International are also owned by the two shareholders of Autonom Services SA (Ştefan
Dan George and Ştefan Marius, each holding 50% of the shares of Autonom International).

Capital reserves and profit distribution
For the year ended 2020, the Board of Directors approved the following distribution of the company's net
profit:
➢
➢

Creation of legal reserves according to the statutory regulations in the amount of RON 45,223;
Creation of tax reserves according to the legal regulations regarding the profit tax exemption for
investments in the amount of RON 1,259,609 These reserves cannot be distributed.
➢
The remaining profit will be allocated to the carried forward result.
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23. ISSUED CAPITAL AND EQUITY RESERVES (continuing)
Other capital reserves
The increases from “Other capital reserves” refer to the establishment of the legal reserve and to the
establishment of the reserve for fiscal facilities regarding the reinvested profit. The reserve for the fiscal facility
regarding the reinvested profit is not distributable. The company does not intend to distribute the reserves in the
balance sheet from December 31st 2020. The legal reserve is constituted according to the provisions of the
Romanian Law on Commercial Companies, which stipulates that 5% of the annual accounting profit be
transferred to the legal reserve, until the balance of this reserve at 20% of the share capital of an entity.
24.

TRADE LIABILITIES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Trade payables for goods or services
Debts from the acquisition of fixed assets
Debts from unpaid invoices
Trade and other payables to related parties
Salary debts and other debts related to the employee
Debts regarding social security contributions and employees' taxes
VAT and other payment taxes
Other debts
Advances from customers
Deposits for rents and securities, of which:
Short term ratio
Long term ratio
Total

December 31st December 31s
2020
2019
2,977,986
6,307,973
3,314,589
1,515,304
82,914
668,165
1,538,729
604.837
1,619,450
1,449,009
956,554
971,006
281,306
1,082,321
(1500)
941,788
1,722,333
4,778,273
4,140,408
880,695
813,091
3,897,578
3,327,317
16,490,089
18,461,357

On December 31st 2020, pre-payments from customers represent amounts invoiced in advance or amounts
collected in advance with a payment order, extinguished during the following year with invoices for services
provided. Terms and conditions of the above financial debts:
•
Trade payables are not interest-bearing and are normally paid within 30 days;
•
The terms and conditions relating to related party transactions are described in Note 26.
25.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENTS

Competition Council investigation
In 2017, the Competition Council announced an investigation for the operational leasing market regarding the
legality of the exchange of information between the leasing companies (one of the investigated companies being
BT Operational Leasing).
At the end of 2020, the investigation was completed without fines, with only recommendations on how to prepare
quarterly reports.
Following the merger between the two entities, at the date of this reporting, Autonom Services SA took over
these obligations from the quarterly reports.
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25. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENTS (continuing)

Taxation
All amounts owed by the state tax authority were paid or accrued at the balance sheet date. The Romanian tax
system is undergoing a process of consolidation and is being harmonized with European legislation. At the level
of the tax authorities there may be different interpretations in relation to the tax legislation which may lead to
additional taxes and penalties to be paid. If the state authority discovers violations of tax laws and related
regulations, they may lead to confiscation of amounts, also additional tax obligations may be applied; fines and
penalties (which apply to the total outstanding amount). As a result, tax penalties resulting from Violation of
legal provisions can lead to a significant amount payable to the state. The Group considers that it has paid on
time and in full all applicable taxes, penalties and interest, to the extent applicable.
Transfer prices
Romanian tax legislation includes the principle of "market value", according to which transactions between
related parties must take place at market value. According to this concept, transfer prices should be adjusted
to reflect market prices that have been set between unaffiliated companies.
There are a likelihood that transfer pricing checks will be carried out in the future to assess whether the transfer
pricing policy complies with the principle of target market value and therefore there are no distortions that could
affect the taxable base of the Romanian taxpayer.

26. RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURES

During January 1st 2020 - December 31st 2020, the Group conducted transactions with the following related
parties:
Affiliated party

Country of
incorporation

ELS Retail SRL

Romania

Standard Marketing SRL

Romania

Stefan Autoservice SRL

Romania

Stefan si Compania SRL

Romania

United Properties SRL

Romania

Autonom international SRL

Romania

Autonom Hungary KFT
VMS (Vehicle Management
Solution)
CMS (City Shuttle Management
Services)

Romania

Carcentric SRL

Romania

Autonom Assistance SRL

Romania

Clockwise SRL

Romania

Romania
Romania

Nature of the
relation
Entity placed under
shared control
Entity placed under
shared control
Entity placed under
shared control
Entity placed under
shared control
Entity placed under
shared control
Shareholder
Entity placed under
shared control
Entity placed under
shared control
Entity placed under
shared control
Entity placed under
shared control
Entity placed under
shared control
Entity placed under
shared control
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Nature of the transaction
Sales/Purchase of assets and
services
Sales/Purchase of assets and
services
Sales/Purchase of assets and
services
Sales/Purchase of assets and
services
Sales/Purchase of assets and
services
Sales/Purchase of assets and
services, loans granted
Sales/Purchase of assets and
services
Sales/Purchase of assets and
services
Sales/Purchase of assets and
services
Sales/Purchase of assets and
services
Sales/Purchase of assets and
services
Sales/Purchase of assets and
services
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26.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continuing)

The following table provides the total value of transactions that were conducted with related parties during the
relevant period:

Sales to
related
parties
Related party
Stefan si Compania SRL
Autonom Hungary KFT
Autonom International
VMS
CMS
Autonom Assistance
Stefan Autoservice SRL
Carcentric SRL
Marius Stefan
Dan Stefan
Standard Marketing
Total

2020

Related party
Stefan si Compania SRL
Autonom Hungary KFT
Autonom International
VMS
CMS
Proasistta Auto
Stefan Autoservice SRL
Carcentric SRL
Marius Stefan
Dan Stefan
Standard Marketing
Total

2019

Purchases
from related
parties

Amounts
owed
by related
parties

Amounts
owed
to related
parties

207,916
60,980
716,492
2,759,108
945,909
96,053
284,766
35,563
5,106,787

7,844,377
64,098
214,461
1,855,508
936,383
632,735
11,547,562

929,770
-4,689
34,209
196,815
259,448
123,176
1,538,729

18,600
257,566
428,149
29,009
30,231
2,531
766,086

283,055
1,248,407
4,158,315
616,080
148,657
234,455
142,707
156,190
21,076
7,093,039

7,201,057
1,962
228,041
646,677
350,833
560,555
8,989,125

35,779
273,722
608,090
1,048
943,706

422,044
3,519
2,528
57,913
57,569
61,264
604.837

The company granted a loan carrying interest to Autonom International SRL.
December December
31st 2020 31st 2019
Loan book value
Autonom International SRL
Total

8,012,243 8,411,556
8,012,243 8,411,556

Compensation granted to key Group management staff:
2020
811,944
811,944

Employee short term benefits
Fees paid to the entity’s management
Total compensation of key management staff

2019
704,141
43,409
747,550

The values presented in the table are the values recognized as expenses during each reporting period.
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27.

SEGMENT REPORTING

For management purposes, the Group is organized into business units based on independent activities
carried out by each entity of the Group and has two reportable segments, as follows;
•
Autonom Services SA;
•
BT Operational Leasing SA.
The Board of Directors monitors separately the operating results of the business segments in order to adopt
decisions regarding the allocation of resources and the evaluation of performance. The segment's performance
is evaluated based on the segment's net profit and the segment's EBITDA.
Revenues between segments are eliminated and reflected in the "Eliminations" column.
Capital expenditures consist of additions to property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and real estate
investments, excluding assets from the acquisition of subsidiaries.
Adjustments
and
eliminations

Year concluded on
December 31st 2019

Consolidated
values

Autonom

BTOL

Total segments

203,467,742

115,219,195

318,686,937

-

318,686,937

4,482,330

752,061

5,234,391

(5,234,391)

-

Total REVENUE

207,950,072

115,971,256

323,921,328

(5,234,391)

318,686,937

Operating profit

19,512,016

7,398,433

26,910,449

14,100.000

41,009,923

Dividend income

13,018,088

-

13,018,088

(13,018,088)

-

Interest expenses

11,779,051

2,968,617

14,747,668

(461)

14,747,207

Income tax expense

2,524,102

(298,876)

2,225,226

-

2,225,226

Net profit

15,029,503

6,935,835

16,483,742

1,082,437

17,566,179

EBITDA (Note 28)

84,157,345

47,811,827

131,969,172

Total segment assets

512,871,039

124,591,405

637,462,444

-

637,462,444

Total segment liabilities

436,589,227

106,473,403

543,062,630

-

543,062,630

Cost of investment impairment

14,100,000

-

14,100,000

(14,100,000)

-

-

36,994,902

Revenue
Revenue from external clients
Inter-segment revenues

Impairment of assets
CAPEX

36,990,7740

5,672,422

5,672,422

4,162

36,994,902
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27. SEGMENT REPORTING (continuing)
Year concluded on December
Autonom
31st 2020

BTOL

Total segments

Adjustments Consolidated
values
and
eliminations

Revenue
Revenue from external clients

231,282,105

76,327,254

307,609,359

494,823

4,593,605

5,088,428

(5,088,428)

-

231,776,928

80,920,859

312,697,787

(5,088,428)

307,609,359

Operating profit

27,800,811

5,467,671

33,268,482

-

33,268,482

Interest expenses

17,341,586

1,505,026

18,846,614

_

18,846,614

Income tax expense

1,714,289

402,998

2,117,287

Net profit

5,272,245

1,934,727

7,206,972

-

7,206,972

EBITDA (Note 28)

112,444,983

31,608,299

144,053,282

-

144,053,282

Total segment assets

573,357,420

69,971,949

643,329,360

(14,362,422)

628,966,939

Total segment liabilities

467,906,602

47,328,589

515,235,191

(163,047)

515,072,144

Impairment of assets

86,644,172

26,140,628

-

110,684,800

CAPEX

89,476,762

-

-

89,476,762

Inter-segment revenues
Total revenue

Reconciliation of assets

307,609,359

2,117,287

89,476,762

2020

Total segment assets
Investments in equity instruments
Inventories
Other receivables and current assets
Prepayments

2019

641,462,666 637,462,444
423,696
423,696
1,799,740 10,561,590
4,971,276 7,230,612
1,012,467
391,778

Total reconciling assets items

12,495,727 18,607,676

Reconciliation of liabilities
Total segment liabilities
Provisions
Deferred revenue
Deferred income tax liability
Total reconciling liabilities items

28.

534,573,428 543,062,630
71,400
71,400
11,339,896 6,229,324
8,089,988 7,022,214
19,501,284 13,322,938

EBITDA AND OTHER NON-IFRS INDICATORES

EBITDA is one of the key performance indicators monitored by senior anagement. EBITDA would be normalized
to exclude any significant one-off items (either revenues or expenses). No exclusions were required for the year
ended on December 31st 2020.
In addition, the Group presents below three other alternative performance measures: Interest Coverage Ratio
(computed as EBITDA/total interest expense), Net financial debt/EBITDA and Gearing Ratio (computed as
Net financial debt / Equity) as these may prove useful for potential investors.
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28. EBITDA AND OTHER NON-IFRS INDICATORS (continuing)
Consolidated EBITDA is reconciled with the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows:
Notes
Net profit

2020

2019

7,206,972

Adjustments to reconcile net profit with EBITDA:
Financing costs minus financial income
Income tax expenses
Depreciation, amortization and impairment of non-current assets

12
13
14

EBITDA

23,944,223 21,219,043
2,117,287
2,225,226
110,784,800 90,958,724
144,053,282 131,969,172

Bargain purchase gain

-

Normalised EBITDA

17,566,180

-

144,053,282 131,969,172

Interest expenses

13

Interest coverage ratio

18,846,614

14,747,207

7.64

9.83

2020

2019

Credits and loans carrying interest
Securities
Liabilities related to financial leasing
Cash and cash equivalent

124,940,720 166,891,840
96,622,374 95,341,617
278,814,568 262,367,816
74,613,162 89,378,134

Net financial debt

425,764,500 435,223,139

Net financial debt / EBITDA
Equity
Net financial liabilities /Equity

2.98

3.30

106,889,238

99,684,553

3.98

4.37

29. EARNINGS PER SHARE
December 31st December 31st
2020
2019
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the parent entity
Number of ordinary shares
Result per share, basic and diluted (RON / share)
There are no dilutive tools to consider.
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7,206,972
2,000,000
3.60

17,566,180
2,000,000
8.78
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30. AUDITOR’S FEE
The auditor of the Group is Ernst & Young Assurance Services SRL.
The fee for the statutory audit of the consolidated and individual situations is December 31st 2020 of Autonom
Services SA prepared according to MOF 2844/2016 and of the statutory audit of the financial statements on
December 31st 2020 of BT Operational Leasing according to MOF 1802/2014 was 355 thousand lei (VAT not
included).
31. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Credits and loans
In the period between January 1st 2021 and the date of these financial statements, the Group contracted
additional loans in the total amount of 2.5 million euro and 20 million RON, respectively leasing in the
amount of 10 million EUR.
Autonom Services SA - BT Operational leasing SA merger
On the date of preparation of these financial statements, the project of merger by absorption of BT
Operational Leasing by Autonom Services SA was approved on 01.01.2021, the company BT Operational
Leasing being deleted from the Trade Register starting with 04.03.2021.
Other aspects
In 2021, Romania continues to face an increased number of COVID-19 cases in all areas of the country.
Therefore, at the time of publication of these financial statements, Romania was still in the alert state. If the
number of COVID-19 cases begins to increase again at an accelerated pace, there is a likelihood that a new
quarantine period will be implemented, affecting certain counties or regions that are subject to restrictions.
In December 2020, Romania started the vaccination campaign, and at the date of publication of this report,
approximately 10% of the population is completely vaccinated against COVID-19. Based on the decisions taken
by the governments of other countries that have a higher vaccination rate, it is expected that the restrictions in
Romania and neighboring countries will be relaxed as the size of the immunized population increases. At the
same time, a decrease in the number of COVID-19 cases is expected.
Despite the fluctuations in the number of cases of COVID-19 in Romania since the beginning of the year, in the
first quarter of 2021 Autonom registered increases on all business lines. Local companies, as well as
international ones, have an increased interest in investing in operational leasing services. On the rent-a-car
side, Autonom recorded a historic rental rate: 85.7% in Q1 2021 versus 65.2% in Q1 2020. The company
continues to work with different case scenarios to be able to quickly adapt to any recent changes. moment. The
results obtained by the Company in Q1 in 2021 show that the situation is evolving according to the positive
scenario thought by Autonom.
The company continues to make every effort to mitigate the effects of the pandemic on economic activity and
to minimize the risk of illness of employees within the company. At the same time, Autonom ensures at all times
that the vehicles to be rented are properly disinfected.

58

AUTONOM SERVICES SA
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
All amounts in RON, unless specified otherwise

31. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (continuing)
The management's position is that the measures currently adopted will ensure business continuity and,
therefore, the business continuity principle remains applicable to these financial statements (see note 2.1
"business continuity”).

These consolidated financial statements from page 3 to page 59 were approved by the Board of Directors and
were authorised for issue on 29 April 2021.
Mihaela Angela Irimia
Name
President of the Board of Directors (undecipherable signature)
SC AVH CONSULTING SRL
Name: Huian Angelica
Professional body registration no. 5138 (undecipherable signature)
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